
 

AGENDA FOR 
 

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 

 
Contact:: Michael Cunliffe 
Direct Lne: 0161 253 5399 

E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk 
Website:  www.bury.gov.uk 

 
 
To: All Members of Planning Control Committee 

 
Councillors : G McGill (Chair), S Arif, C Boles, D Duncalfe, 

U Farooq, J Harris, M Hayes, B Ibrahim, D Quinn, 
G Staples-Jones and M Walsh 

 

 
Dear Member/Colleague 

 
Planning Control Committee 

 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control Committee 
which will be held as follows:- 
 

Date: Tuesday, 27 August 2024 

Place:  Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Briefing 

Facilities: 

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 

briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related 

report should be contacted. 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider whether they 
have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if so, to formally declare 
that interest. 
 

3   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 23RD JULY 2024  (Pages 3 - 

4) 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday the 23rd July 2024 are attached. 

 

4   PLANNING APPLICATIONS  (Pages 5 - 78) 

 
Reports attached. 

 

5   DELEGATED DECISIONS  (Pages 79 - 90) 

 
A report from the Head of Development Management on all delegated planning 
decisions since the last meeting of the planning control committee is attached. 

 

6   PLANNING APPEALS  (Pages 91 - 142) 

 
A report from the Head of Development Management on all planning appeal 
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee is attached. 

 

7   VALIDATION CHECKLISTS  (Pages 143 - 150) 

 
A report from the Head of Development Management is attached detailing the 
Council is required to maintain a planning application validation checklist. There is a 
need to update Bury’s further following the adoption of the Places for Everyone Joint 
Development Plan (PfE). 
 

8   URGENT BUSINESS   
 
Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair agrees may 
be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 



 

 

1 

 
 Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
 Date of Meeting: 23 July 2024 

 
 Present: Councillor G McGill (in the Chair) 

Councillors S Arif, C Boles, D Duncalfe, U Farooq, J Harris, M Hayes, 
B Ibrahim, D Quinn and G Staples-Jones 
 

 Also in attendance:  Councillors R Gold, D Green, E O’Brien, A Quinn and S Thorpe 
 

 Public Attendance: 35 members of the public were present at the meeting. 

   

 

PCC.1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillor M Walsh. 
There was no substitute representative for Councillor Walsh. 
 

PCC.2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

PCC.3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 9TH JULY 2024  
 

Delegated decision: 

 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 9th July 2024 be approved as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair. 
 

PCC.4  PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted in relation to applications 
for planning permission.  
 
There was supplementary information to add in respect of application number 70449 and 
70484. 
 
The Committee heard representations from objectors, applicants and Ward Councillors in 
respect of applications submitted. This was limited to three minutes for the speaker. 
 
Delegated decisions: 

 
1. That the Committee be Minded to Approve the following application in accordance with 

the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the report and any 
supplementary information submitted and subject to all other conditions included: - 

 
Longfield Shopping Centre/Car Park, Fairfax Road Car Park and adjoining land at Bury 
New Road, Rectory Lane and Fairfax Road, Prestwich 

Hybrid Planning Application constituting EIA Development comprising: 
Full application for demolition of existing buildings/structures and erection of phased mixed 
use development including Community Hub with flexible uses of library, offices, medical/health 
services (Classes F1 (a-f), F2(b), E(c), E(e), E(g)) & retail uses (Classes E(a), E(b) F2(a)) & 
Sui Generis (hot food takeaway & bar), new Market Hall (Classes E(a), E(b) & Sui Generis 
(hot food takeaway and bar)), Commercial Building with flexible uses including retail, offices, 
gymnasium (Classes E(a), E(b), E(c), E(d), E(g), F2(a), Travel Hub with car parking & cycle 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Planning Control Committee, 23 July 2024  

 
 

 

2 

parking (Sui Generis), public square & realm, associated landscaping, car parking provision, 
cycle storage & associated works; and, 
 
Part Outline application (all matters reserved) - mixed use development of residential (Class 
C3), flexible commercial, business, service, local community & learning uses (Classes E, F) & 
Sui Generis (hot food takeaway & bar), engineering works to Rectory Lane, new public realm, 
associated landscaping, car parking provision, cycle storage & associated works 
 
2. That the Committee be Minded to Approve the following application in accordance with 

the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the report and any 
supplementary information submitted and subject to all other conditions included: - 

 
Fairways Lodge Hotel, George Street, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9WS 

Demolition of existing hotel building and erection of a block of 52 no. retirement living 
apartments including communal facilities, landscaping and car parking provision 
 

PCC.5  DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent planning 
application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers since the last meeting of the 
Planning Control Committee. 
 
Delegated decision: 
 
That the report and appendices be noted.  
 

PCC.6  PLANNING APPEALS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent planning 
and enforcement appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee.  
 
Delegated decision: 

 
That the report and appendices be noted.  
 

PCC.7  URGENT BUSINESS  

 
No urgent business was reported. 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR G MCGILL 
Chair  
 
(Note:  The meeting started at 7.20pm and ended at 8.40pm) 

 

 

Page 4



Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee

On: 27 August 2024

By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: Identified in each case.

Policy: Identified in each case.

Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:
The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;
The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.  

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could
include a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, I have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions.

Development Manager

Background Documents

1. The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.
2. Certificates relating to the ownership.
3. Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.
4. Responses from Consultees.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 6



1  Township Forum - Ward:  North Manor App No.  70932

 Location: 5 Sandringham Drive, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4DJ
 Proposal: Front porch and single storey rear extension
 Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
2  Township Forum - Ward:  Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington

Park
App No.  70583

 Location: Sedgley Park Rugby Union Football Club, Philips Park Road West,
Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7DZ

 Proposal: Temporary installation of five cabins to create 3 no. classrooms, W/C and
kitchen facilities for The College of Rugby

 Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
3  Township Forum - Ward:  Prestwich - Sedgley App No.  70755

 Location: Land between 13 & 14 Scholes Walk, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0AZ
 Proposal: Erection of 1 no. bungalow
 Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
4  Township Forum - Ward:  Prestwich - Holyrood App No.  70763

 Location: Land at rear of 7-11 Carisbrook Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45
6UP

 Proposal: Erection of 1 no.bungalow
 Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
Ward: North Manor Item   1 

 
Applicant: Mr David Marno 
 
Location: 5 Sandringham Drive, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4DJ 

 
Proposal: Front porch and single storey rear extension  
 
Application Ref:   70932/Full Target Date:  03/09/2024 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
This application is a householder development and would normally be dealt with 
under delegated powers.  It is presented to the committee as the applicant is a 
member of staff.  
 
Description 
The application relates to a semi-detached bungalow, which is located on Sandringham 
Drive. The bungalow is constructed from red brick with a tile roof and has been extended 
previously with a conservatory located adjacent to the attached neighbour on the rear 
elevation. There are rooms in the roofspace, which are served by a rooflight and a window 
on the gable elevation. There is a large rear garden, which is predominantly hardstanding 
and a path at the side of the property.  There is a garage immediately adjacent to the 
attached neighbour with a driveway in front for 1 vehicle. 
 
There are residential properties to the north, south and west of the site. There are dwellings, 
a substation and a rear yard in connection with a row of shops to the east of the site. 
 
The proposed development involves the demolition of the existing conservatory and the 
erection of a single storey rear extension and a front porch.  
 
The proposed single storey rear extension would be project 3.5 metres from the original rear 
elevation and would extend across the full width of the rear elevation. The proposed 
extension would measure 2.5 metres to the eaves and 4.4 metres at its highest point.  
 
The proposed porch would be located on the front elevation and would measure 2.75 
metres by 1 metre and would be 3.5 metres in height at its highest point.  
 
The proposed rear extension would be constructed from render with a tile roof and the 
proposed porch would be constructed from brick with a tile roof.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
None relevant 
 
Adjacent site 
34603 - Conversion of flat roofs to pitched roofs at 4 Balmoral Close, Tottington. Approved 
with conditions - 5 October 1998. 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 16 July 2024.  
 
There has been no response. 

Page 9



 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
None required. 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent [Not relevant/has/has not] agreed with pre-start 
conditions 
 
Development Plan and Policies 
H2/3 Extensions and Alterations 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for 
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the 
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material 
planning considerations.  
 
The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be 
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For 
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a 
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically 
mentioned. 
 
Visual amenity - SPD 6 and UDP Policy H2/3 seek to achieve a high standard of design 
that compliments the original building, and does not have a detrimental impact on the 
character and appearance of neighbouring properties and the general street scene. 
 
The proposed extension is located entirely to the rear of the premises, the boundary of 
which is bounded by residential gardens. As such, the proposal would not be visible from 
Sandringham Drive. The proposed extension would be of simple and unobtrusive design 
that would not overwhelm the dwelling or result in over development of the associated 
residential amenity space. The proposed extension has a pitched roof replicating the shape 
and style of the existing dwelling. The use of render at the rear would differentiate the 
proposed extension from the original dwelling and as it is located at the rear, would not be a 
prominent feature in the streetscene.  
 
The proposed porch would not project excessively from the front of the main dwelling and is 
of a typical domestic appearance for a porch. A number of properties have porches on the 
wider estate and as such, the proposed development would not be out of character for the 
area. The proposed porch would be constructed from brick with a tile roof, which would 
match the main dwelling.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have a detrimental impact on the character 
of the property, neighbouring dwellings or street scene and the proposal would be in 
accordance with Policies H2/3 and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD6. 
 
Residential amenity - SPD6 and Policy H2/3 seek to reduce the impact of proposals on the 
residential amenity of neighbouring properties.  
 
The existing conservatory on the rear elevation is located adjacent to the boundary with No. 
3 Sandringham Drive and would project 2.7 metres. The proposed extension would project 
3.5 metres (a further 0.8 metre) and would measure 2.5 metres to the eaves. As such, the 
proposed extension would fail the 45 degree rule. 

Page 10



 
SPD6 states that single storey extensions in excess of 3 metres should be assessed 
against the 45/25 degree line from the neighbouring habitable room window and where the 
extension will lie in relation to the sun.  Extensions in excess of 3 metres will not normally 
be permitted unless it can be demonstrated that the amenity of the neighbour will not be 
seriously and detrimentally affected. 
 
The proximity of the window to No.3 is such that the proposal would encroach the 45 degree 
line at a point less than 3 metres. This neighbouring property is located to the south of the 
proposed extension and as such, it would only have a limited impact upon the amenity of 
the adjacent neighbour (No. 3). A further material consideration is the 'larger homes 
scheme' which allows semi detached properties to extend up to 6 metres from the original 
rear wall where there are no objections from neighbours. No representations have been 
received on this application. Therefore, the proposed development would not have a 
significant adverse impact upon the amenity of the occupiers of No. 3 Sandringham Drive.  
 
The proposed development would comply with the 45 degree line when drawn from the 
habitable room window to No. 7 Sandringham Drive and as such, would not have a 
significant adverse impact upon their amenity. 
 
There would be 13 metres from the rear elevation of the proposed extension to the 
boundary, which would be in excess of the 7 metre aspect standard.  
 
The proposed addition of rooflights would be permitted development and due to their 
location, would not have an adverse impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring 
properties.  
 
The proposed front porch would not class as a habitable room and there would be over 24 
metres between the proposed porch and No. 2 Sandringham Drive. As such, there would be 
no adverse impact. 
 
An adequate level of private amenity space would be retained at the front and rear 
 
Adequate level of private amenity space retained at front and rear. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the 
amenity of the neighbouring properties and would be in accordance with Policy H2/3 and 
EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD 6. 
 
Highways issues - The proposed development would reduce the number of bedrooms at 
the property from 4 to 2 and the existing driveway would be retained. As such, there would 
be adequate parking facilities available and the proposed development would comply with 
Policies H2/3 and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD6. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 

Page 11



 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered Location plan, 1/17/2024, 2/17/2024 
and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the 
drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Leach on 0161 253 5322 

Page 12



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 70932

5 Sandringham Drive, 
Tottington, Bury, BL8 4DJ

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

2

El

1

1
2

Sub Sta

12

3
13

2

18
14

1
1

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

1.3.

4.

2.

70932 - Viewpoints

Page 13



70932 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 Page 14



70932 

Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 

Page 15



P
age 16



P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 
Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park Item   2 

 
Applicant:  The College of Rugby 
 
Location: Sedgley Park Rugby Union Football Club, Philips Park Road West, Whitefield, 

Manchester, M45 7DZ 
 

Proposal: Temporary installation of five cabins to create 3 no. classrooms, W/C and kitchen 
facilities for The College of Rugby 

 
Application Ref:   70583/Full Target Date:  19/06/2024 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The site is an established sporting facility as a rugby club that is spread over two sites, with 
the main clubhouse and two main pitches being located on Park Road and 4 playing pitches 
being located on land on the south side of Philips Park Road West. 
 
The application site is on the land off Philips Park Road West, opposite detached 
bungalows - nos. 36 - 46 Philips Park Road West (even) which boarders the M60 Motorway.  
It is accessed from two points on either side of the Rugby Pitches on Philips Park Road 
West.  A pedestrian access is present in the north-east corner of the application site, with a 
vehicular access and track is located within the north-east corner of the site.  This access, 
track and informal parking area is used by the Rugby Club.   
 
The applicant, the College of Rugby, is a Further Education ("FE") College based at the 
working Rugby Union Club.  It hires space from the Rugby Club to provide their education 
rugby training and coaching course and due to the Rugby Club creating an income from 
renting the building out during the week, the College of Rugby has found itself without any 
internal space to carry out their teaching function. 
 
The development proposed seeks to place 5 portacabins at the southern end of the access 
track/ application site to provide three classrooms, a kitchen area and a W/C for a 
temporary 5 year period.  Each of the three classroom portacabins would measure 
approximately 6m x 5m and have a height of 2.8m.  The kitchen and W/C cabins would 
measure approximately 4.2m x 1.2m x 2.8m.  The cabins propose to be sat on levelling 
pads on the existing compacted hardcore present in the site, therefore the buildings would 
have no foundations.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
Application Site Fields 
46164 - All weather sports pitch with associated floodlighting and amendments to track - 
Approved with Conditions, 28/06/2006 
 
43931 - Construction of single lane access track - Retrospective application.  Approved 
with Conditions, 09/03/2005  
 
43307 - Installation of floodlight system on existing rugby pitch at Philips Park Road West - 
Approved with Conditions, 13/10/2004 
 
41900 - Erection of 4 floodlights to existing rugby pitch - Refused, 02/03/2004 

Page 19



 
34553 - Infilling of land to form sports field - Approved with Conditions, 15/02/2000 
 
Site containing Rugby Club, Park Road 
30527 - Installation of Mast & associated Antennae equipment - Approved with Conditions, 
19/01/1995 
 
30927 - Installation of 24 metre high lattice tower and associated Antennae equipment - 
Approved with Conditions, 22/06/1995 
 
32122 - Prior Approval Determination: Erection of 8 no. Antennas and 1 no. Equipment 
Cabins - Prior Approval Not Required, 05/06/1996 
 
31992 - Levelling of land and creation of sports pitches and erection of 3.6m  
41504 - Car Park - Approved with Conditions, 17/12/2003 
 
41900 - Erection of 4 floodlights to existing Rugby pitch - Refused, 02/03/2004 
 
43930 - Erection of single storey cabin for storage and sale of programmes - Refused, 
08/03/2005 
 
65629 - New balcony to front - Approve with Conditions 21/08/2020 
 
59593 - Erection of a temporary stand containing 448 seats for a period from 5 February 
2016 to 19 September 2016 - Withdrawn by Applicant, 04/04/2016 
 
Publicity 
Two Site Notices were initially erected on Philips Park Road, one on the access gates to the 
application site, and one on the pavement opposite the site on a lamppost.  
Representations pointed out that the initial application contained the incorrect address and 
therefore the address of the application was changed and thus the application was 
re-advertised on the 29 April 2024.  
 
13 nearby neighbouring properties have been consulted.  7 letters of objection have been 
received who raise the following concerns: 
 

• Notified Officers that the address submitted for the application site was incorrect. 

• Existing inconsiderate parking on Philips Park Road West by users of the Rugby Pitches 
and Spectators prevents neighbours safely entering and leaving their properties in a 
safe manner. 

• Restriction on width of road due to cars parking on Philips Park Road West. 

• Request that parking provision is provided on the site. 

• Suggest removing the grass verge along Philips Park Road west. 

• Assert there is restrictive covernants on the land prohibiting building on it. 
   
Christian Wakeford MP has written in confirming support for the proposal stating: 
 
"Having visited the club and The College of Rugby to see their activities in my constituency 
– I know how important the service they provide is. Firstly to facilitate alternative provision in 
the borough of Bury but more significantly to offer a sport, an outdoor activity, an 
opportunity to provide life skills and even the potential of a career in Rugby to young people 
in our community. 
 
I feel that the installation of the portacabins will enhance the activity already being carried 

Page 20



out on the fields, by creating a warm & dry provision for when the inevitable British weather 
strikes but by also reducing on road parking for staff & visitors." 
 
Those who have made representations will be informed of the Planning Control Committee 
meeting. 
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - Verbally raised concerns over the restricted visibility at the vehicular 
access of the site.  Any written recommendation will thus be reported in the Supplementary 
Report. 
 
Borough Engineer - Drainage Section - No comments or observations received. 
 
United Utilities (Water and waste) - No objections. 
 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections. 
 
Waste Management - No comments or observations received. 
 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the planting of 4 native trees 
being planted on the site to secure a net gain to biodiversity. 
 
The Coal Authority - No objections. 
 
GMCA - Minerals and Waste - No objections due to the proposal being temporary in 
nature. 
 
Sports England - No objections, subject to conditions requiring conditions to ensure the 
existing playing pitches are not compromised and remain in full use during construction/ 
siting of the proposed containers, and requiring them only to be used by the College of 
Rugby (the applicant).  
 
Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has not agreed with pre-start conditions 
 
Development Plan and Policies 
OL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt 
OL1/5 Mineral Extraction and Other Development in the Green Belt 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
OL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt 
RT1/1 Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area 
JP-C2 Digital Connectivity 
JP-C8 Transport Requirements of New Development 
JP-G7 Trees and Woodland 
JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
JP-G9 The Green Belt 
JP-S2 Carbon and Energy 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for 
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the 
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material 

Page 21



planning considerations.  
 
The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be 
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For 
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a 
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically 
mentioned. 
 
The main issues for consideration in this case are: 
 

• Whether the principle of the proposed land uses is acceptable on site 

• The provision of Sports Facilities and Education facilities in this location 

• The impact on the Playing Field 

• The sites Location in the Green Belt and whether the proposal meets the exceptions test 
for development in the Green Belt 

• Whether harm would be caused to the sense of openness and permanence of the 
Green Belt 

• Whether harm would be caused to trees on site 

• Whether harm would be caused to ecology and protected species on site  

• Highway matters, including whether the proposed car parking provision is acceptable on 
highway safety grounds. 

• Whether the ground on which the development would be sited would be safe 
 
Whether the principle of the proposed land uses is acceptable on site 
 
The provision of Sports Facilities and Education facilities in this location 
The NPPF encourages promoting healthy and safe communities through the delivery of 
community facilities such as sports venues and other local services to enhance the 
sustainability of communities and residential environments. 
 
UDP Policy RT1/1: Protection of Recreation Provision in the urban area, seeks to protect 
existing outdoor public or private recreation spaces, including amongst other things, playing 
fields.  Exceptions to this, amongst other things, includes that development may be 
permitted where sports and recreation facilities can best be retained and enhanced through 
the redevelopment of a small part of the site. Whilst this site lies within the Green Belt, it is 
located adjacent to the urban area and forms part of the recreation space associated with 
Sedgley Park Rugby Club.  The siting of the proposed classrooms and associated welfare 
cabins are located at the opposite end of the playing fields to the residential properties 
along Philips Park Road West and therefore the proposed facilities would cause no harm to 
the amenities of the occupants of properties bordering the playing fields/ Rugby pitches. 
 
The Proposal and its impact on the Playing Field 
The proposal affects land which is part of the home of Sedgley RUFC and is used as their 
training facility. The site consists of 2 adult and two junior rugby union pitches and is to the 
southwest of their home ground stadium across Philips Park Road. The area of affected 
playing field measures 3.16ha. 
 
The proposal intends to temporarily locate 5 cabins to create 3 classroom facilities for The 
College of Rugby. These are shown to be located to the far southwest of the playing field 
land and in an area which has no pitches or supporting facilities. The site will use the 
existing access and have 8 car parking spaces, although the latter are shown on the 
existing layout – Drawing No.0079-MASTA-A-0201 Rev A. The submitted information states 
that their purpose is to create a space to provide development for local children through 
education, sports and life skills. As such Sport England consider this as an educational 

Page 22



facility. 
 
The proposed development affects only land incapable of forming part of a playing pitch. In 
addition, the Rugby Pitches are the site are contained by a timber railing which clearly 
separates them from the existing access track and the area where the proposed cabins 
seek to be sited. 
   
To conclude, none of the existing pitches, shown numbered 1-4 on the submitted Drawing 
are impacted by the proposal and thus the proposal is therefore acceptable in this regard  
and is in compliance with UDP Policy RT1/1.   
 
Sport England have suggested conditions requiring no development should commence until 
details of  a conditions requiring details of any constructors compound and its subsequent 
removal be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; securing the 
continuity of the existing sports use of the playing fields (rugby pitches) and ensuring the 
use of the cabins are only for the purposes pertaining to the operations of the College of 
Rugby.  The recommended conditions, albeit slightly amended to make them specific to the 
College of Rugby/ the applicant, are thus duly recommended. 
 
The sites Location in the Green Belt and whether the proposal meets the exceptions test for 
development in the Green Belt 
The application site is located on land designated as Green Belt. Paragraph 154 of the 
Framework specifies what buildings are acceptable in the Green Belt, which includes, 
amongst other things, the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing 
use of land or a change of use) for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, cemeteries and burial 
grounds and allotments; as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green Belt 
and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within it.  The proposal seeks to 
provide facilities to support outdoor sport and is therefore considered to be an exception 
within the Green Belt. 
 
Whether harm would be caused to the sense of openness and permanence of the Green 
Belt 
The application site is boarded by trees to the south along its boundary with the M60 
motorway and by trees and hedgerows to all other boundaries of the site.  It is therefore 
wholly contained.  Due to this, the limited height of the proposed containers, and the 
temporary nature of the buildings, the proposal would not cause harm to the openness and 
permanence of the Green Belt.  
 
Taking account of all of the above, the principle of the proposed development is acceptable 
in this Green Belt location. 
 
Whether harm would be caused to trees on site  
The application site sits between extensive woodland and is bordered by trees.  
 
The proposed containers would not be sited close to trees and therefore would cause no 
harm to the root protection areas of any of the trees that border the playing fields. 
 
Whether harm would be caused to ecology and protected species on site  
The application site is a green field site boarded by Woodland which lies between woodland 
areas. The woodland to the north of the site is ancient semi-natural woodland and is 
considered to be a Priority Habitat.  
 
GMEU has reviewed the application and considered that some correction of the Biodiversity 
Baseline calculation was necessary to record the presence of the Priority Habitat/ ancient 
semi-natural woodland and to correctly specify the type of land on which the proposed 

Page 23



containers would be sited prior to determination of the application, in order to ensure that 
that the Council makes a decision on accurate information.  
 
 The development would be located on a very small area of bare ground/short ephemeral 
vegetation.  Whilst badger and great crested newts are known to occur in the locality, given 
the development only covers 105 sqm Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) consider 
that no further information or measures are required and the only ecological issue for this 
application is biodiversity net gain (BNG).   
 
Paragraph 180 of the NPPF 2023 states that the planning policies and decisions should 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment, minimising impacts on and 
providing net gains to biodiversity. PfE Policy JP-G8: A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity 
and Geodiversity seeks to provide a 10% net-gain to biodiversity which is the same as the  
mandatory requirement. 
 
A biodiversity net gain (BNG) calculation therefore supports this application and the planting 
of 4 x native Hazel trees is proposed, as shown on Drawing No. 0079-MASTA-DR-A-0204 - 
Native Tree Locations which would be located between the existing access track and the 
trees on the western boundary of the playing fields. 
 
At the request of Officers, the baseline and BNG calculations have been amended to ensure 
it/ they correctly classify the land in question and records the presence of the Priority Habitat 
(Ancient Semi-Natural Woodland) within 500 metres of the application site, and therefore 
can be relied on for the purposes of making a decision. 
 
The correction of the biodiversity baseline calculation and the subsequent BNG 
re-calculation demonstrates that the planting of 4 native Hazel trees would result in an 
approximately 18% net gain to biodiversity.  On this basis Officers are satisfied that given 
the scale of the development and the land available for tree planting that this is adequate to 
be confident that the statutory biodiversity net-gain requirement can be met/discharged and 
accordingly the proposal accords with the requirements of PfE Policy Jo-G8: A Net 
Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity. 
 
Highway matters, including whether the proposed car parking provision is acceptable 
on highway safety grounds. 
This proposal seeks to utilise the same vehicular access, track and informal parking area.  
From the representations received, the main areas of concern appear to be caused by 
parking taking place opposite the properties that border the application site and thus block 
driveways and cause a narrowing of Philips Park Road West which prevents two-way traffic 
along this length of Philips Park Road West.   
 
The Highways section has raised some concern regarding the visibility from the site access 
which is constrained due to neighbouring tree canopies and the Rugby Club's own roadside 
hedge impede visibility.  The applicant has confirmed that the hedge bordering Philips Park 
Road West would be trimmed to aid with visibility, however, due to the woodland to the west 
of the vehicular access not being within the ownership of the Rugby Club, legally the 
applicant cannot trim them.   
  
In assessing the proposals impact on highway safety, it is important to look at what the site 
is already authorised for.  It is clear from the Planning History section of this report, that the 
access track and site entrance has had the benefit of planning permission since March 2005 
by virtue of planning applications 43931 and 46164 and is used for the activities run by the 
Rugby Club on this land, without any restrictions and can continue to be used at the times 
and frequencies it chooses. This is a strong fall-back position and is therefore a material 
planning consideration in the assessment of this proposal which carries significant weight in 

Page 24



a decision. 
 
This application seeks to install 5 cabins on the land which would be in use during school 
time hours - 08:00 - 16:00 hours, Monday to Friday, during term times only, which is during 
the quietest time of the day in this location.  Given the authorised use of the site and the fall 
back position of the site access and access track being able to be used at any time of the 
day by the Rugby Club users, and the College of Rugby would only occupy a small area of 
the site, there is no strong reason to resist this proposal.  In addition, to ensure that no 
more than the College of Rugby staff and pupils utilise the classrooms and associated 
facilities, the applicant has agreed a personal condition can be imposed on any subsequent 
planning approval.  Such a condition is therefore recommended. 
 
Whether the ground on which the development would be sited would be safe 
Part of the playing fields/ rugby pitches on the south side of Phillips Park Road West falls 
within the defined Development High Risk Area for Coal Mining legacies. 
 
The Coal Authority records indicate that within that part of the application site and 
surrounding area there maybe coal mining features and hazards which should be 
considered as part of development proposals. When considering this particular proposal; on 
the basis that the area where the development will be falls outside the defined Development 
High Risk Area, the Coal Authority do not consider that a Coal Mining Risk Assessment is 
necessary for this proposal and consequently do not object to this proposal.  
 
The Council's Environment Section has reviewed the application and has no comments to 
make regarding contaminated land given the classroom, kitchen and W/C containers are 
pre-built structures that would be sited upon pads, therefore no ground beneath the 
containers would not be broken. 
 
Considering the above, the ground that the development would be sited is considered to be 
safe and thus is acceptable for the development proposed, which seeks to install the 
proposed portacabins on pads, therefore above-ground level. 
 
Carbon, Energy and Sustainability matters  
Policy JP-S2: Carbon & Energy sets out the steps required to achieve net zero carbon 
emissions. 
 
These proposals seek to utilise existing and second hand steel container classrooms, 
kitchen and W/C containers, and therefore, the proposals would therefore have a negligible 
impact on carbon and energy production during any construction period and during its 
temporary operation stage.   
 
Digital Connectivity  
PfE Policy JP-C2: Digital Connectivity requires development to have full fibre to premises 
connections unless infeasible or unviable, with multiple-ducting. The policy supports the 
provision of free, secure, high-speed public wi-fi connections, particularly in the most 
frequented areas. The applicant has confirmed that the development will be provided with 
full connections in accordance with the requirements of PfE Policy JP-C2.  
 
Due to the site proposals being for a temporary period of five years, its rural siting, it would 
be unrealistic, infeasible and would render this education establishment unviable, to provide 
full fibre connectivity to the development proposals.  However, due to the College of Rugby 
being an education provider, wifi connectivity will be provided and thus the proposals would 
accord with the principles of PfE Policy JP-C2. 
 
Conclusion 

Page 25



The development has been assessed as being as being acceptable development within the 
Green Belt which would not cause long term harm to the openness and permanence of the 
Green Belt.   
 
The proposals have not had any unacceptable impacts upon visual amenity, general 
amenity or highway safety and would deliver education facilities for the benefit of students of 
the College of Rugby. 
 
Given the above, the proposal would be compliant with the above stated UDP and PfE 
policies and the NPPF. Therefore, in accordance with the Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act, and it therefore recommended that the proposal merits 
temporary approval. 
 
Response to representaions not addressed in the report 
 
Restwictive covernants 
Whilst restrictive covernants may exist on the land restricting any buildings, the presence of 
a restrictive covenant is not a consideration material to the grant of planning permission. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. Permission is hereby granted for a limited period only, namely for a period expiring 
5 years from the date of this decision notice, and the building, works and use 
comprising the development for which permission is hereby granted are required 
to be respectively removed and discontinued at the end of the said period and the 
land reinstated to its former condition unless a valid application is received by the 
Local Planning Authority for its retention. 
Reason. In view of the temporary nature of the development and in order to retain 
control over its continued use having regard to the particular nature of the site and 
surroundings pursuant to the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 

2. This decision relates to the following drawings numbers: 
 
0079-MASTA-A-201 Rev. B: Block Plans - Existing and Proposed 
0079-MASTA-DR-A-0800 Rev. B: Location Photos (including Proposed Site Plan); 
0079-MASTA-DR-A-0301 Rev. A: Proposed Plans and Elevations; and, 
0079-MASTA-DR-A-0204: Native Tree Planting, and the development shall not be 
carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. No development shall commence until full details of: 

Page 26



 
(a) the works/contractors’ compound (including any buildings, moveable 
structures, works, plant, machinery, access and provision for the storage of 
vehicles, equipment and/or materials); and 
 
(b) a scheme for the removal of the works/contractors' compound and 
therestoration of the land on which it is situated are submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority after consultation with Sport England.  
 
The works/contractors’ compound shall not be provided and used on the site other 
than in accordance with 
the approved details and shall be removed and the land on which it is situated 
restored in accordance with the approved details before occupation of the 
development hereby approved. 
 
Reason: To protect the playing field from damage, loss or availability of use and to 
accord with Policy RT1/1of the Unitary Development Plan and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 

4. No development shall commence until a scheme to ensure either: 
 
(a) the continuity of the existing sports use of the playing fields (rugby pitches) or 
 
(b) the provision of replacement facilities [during construction works/other 
activities] has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority [after consultation with Sport England]. The scheme must 
set out details of the size, location, type and make-up of the facilities or 
replacement facilities (as appropriate) together with arrangements for access. The 
scheme must include a timetable for the provision of the facilities or replacement 
facilities (as appropriate). The approved scheme shall be implemented and 
complied with in full throughout the carrying out of the development. 
 
Reason: To protect [playing fields/sports facilities] from damage, loss or availability 
of use during the construction of the development and to accord with Policy RT1/1 
of the Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

5. The use of the cabins shall be for purposes pertaining to the operations of The 
College of Rugby and for no other use. 
 
Reason: To maintain the quality of and secure the safe use of the rugby 
education/sporting provision to accord with Policy RT1/1 of the Unitary 
Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

6. The use of the cabins hereby permitted shall not be used outside the following 
times: 08.00 to 16.00 on Mondays to Fridays during school terms times. 
 
Reason. In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy JP-C8: 
Transport Requirements of New Development of the Places for Everyone Joint 
Development Plan. 

 

7. The 4 native Hazel trees, identified on Drawing no. 0079-MASTA-DR-A-0204 shall 
be planted within the first available tree planting period (November to March) 
following occupation of the steel containers being used as education classrooms 
hereby approved.  

Page 27



 
The trees shall be of a standard size (10-12 cm girth), root balled, stalked and tied 
and shall be kept weed free and watered as appropriate. 
 
Reason: Ensuring the trees are helped to develop and in the interests of providing 
net-gains to biodiversity, in accordance with Policies JP-G7: Trees and Woodland, 
and Policy JP-G8: A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity, of the 
Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan, Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and 
Built Design, and EN8/2 - Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan, and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 
For further information on the application please contact Claire Booth on 0161 253 5396

Page 28



 
 
 

Page 29



Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

Sedgley Park Rugby Union 
Football Club, Philips Park Road 
West, Whitefield, Manchester, 
M45 7DZ

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Gantry

4
4

4
2

60

2
0

2

5
0

36

28

204
47

North Lodge

19 1
3

4
1

45

48

46

33

1

36

2

2
6

Issues

North Wood

North Wood

Philips Park

El Sub Sta

M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60
M 60

M 60

PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST

PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST

PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST

PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST

PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST

PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST

PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST
PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST

PHILIPS PARK ROAD WEST

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

P
A

R
K

S
TO

N
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

105.5m

106.9m

102.2m

6.

1.

5.

2.

4.

3.

7.

70583 - Viewpoints

Page 30



70583 

Aerial Image: showing application site set between woodland 

 

Photo 1: 

 

 

 

 Page 31



70583 

Photo 2: 

 

Photo 3: Access Track 

 
Page 32



70583 

Photo 4:  View further along site access towards where the proposed containers would be sited: 

 

Photo 5: Car Parking on Philips Park Road West along boundary of application site – the Rugby pitches were not 
in use at the time. 

 

Page 33



70583 

Photo 6: Parking on Philips Park Road West facing towards Park Road: 

 

 

Photo 7: Vehicular access point 

 Page 34



M60 South

North Wood

Philips Park Road West

Philips 
Park

36
46

48

36

M60 North
 

Pitch 1 Pitch 2 Pitch 3

Pitch 4

Access track

Pedestrian 
access

On street vehicle lay-by

Entrance

S
h

o
rt

 s
ta

y
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

M60 South

North Wood

Philips Park Road West

Philips 
Park

36
46

48

36

M60 North
 

Pitch 1 Pitch 2 Pitch 3

Pitch 4

V
e
h

ic
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

ra
c
k

Pedestrian 
access

On street vehicle lay-by

S
h

o
rt

 s
ta

y
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

Entrance

0m 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m

Scale

Checked byDrawn by

DateProject number

Status

Title

Project

Drawing No.

Revision

Copyright © 2023 MAST ARCHITECTURE

The concepts and information contained on this drawing are 
the property of MAST Architecture. Use or copying of this 
drawing in whole or in part without the written permission 
constitutes an infringement of copyright. All intellectual 

property rights reserved.

Limitation: This drawing has been prepared on behalf of and 
for the exclusive use of the Client and is subject to and 

issued in connection with the provisions of the agreement 
between the MAST Architecture and its client. MAST 

Architecture accepts no liability or responsibility whatsoever 
for or in respect of any use of or reliance upon this drawing 

by and any third party.

Figured dimensions only to be taken from these designs and 
drawings. Work to annotated dimensions only. All 

dimensions to be checked on site. MAST Architecture to be 
informed immediately of any discrepancies before work 
proceeds. Drawings are to be read in conjunction with 
relevant specifications, Structural Engineers / Service 

Engineers and Interior Design drawings. 

KEY:

NOTES:

- Site tolerance required for all dimension and levels.

www.mastarchitecture.co.uk
info@mastarchitecture.co.uk

www.instagram.com/mast.arch
www.facebook.com/mastarchitecture

Architecture / Planning / Building Regulations / Interiors

1 : 2000@A3 A

Block Plans - Existing and Proposed

0079

Sedgley Rugby Club - Training Ground

Feb 2024

MP MP

Planning

0079-MASTA-A-0201

N

1 : 2000

OS Site Plan_Block Plan Existing

1 : 2000

OS Site Plan_Block Plan Proposed

Cabin Locations seeking approval

Rev Description Date By

A Scale updated. Additional
information added

15.03.24 MP

P
age 35



P
age 36



P
age 37



P
age 38



  
 
Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley Item   3 

 
Applicant: Mr F Moghimi 
 
Location: Land between 13 & 14 Scholes Walk, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0AZ 

 
Proposal: Erection of 1 no. bungalow 
 
Application Ref:   70755/Full Target Date:  02/09/2024 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The site relates to a vacant plot of land which is located within an established residential 
estate surrounded by dwellings on all sides.    
 
The plot is accessed via a pathway which is formed between No 13 and No 14 Scholes 
Walk which gradually rises up from Scholes Walk by approx 2m and leads directly to an 
opening into the site but which is currently inaccessible due to the site entrance and plot 
being completely overgrown with vegetation and trees.  
 
The site is enclosed by a perimeter fence to all boundaries.   
 
The proposed development proposes the erection of 1 no dwelling.  The dwelling would be 
a bungalow type, located centrally within the plot but with the front entrance orientated to 
face the access path to the site.  It would be constructed of red brick with a tile roof.  
 
The site is bounded by a 1.8m high fence which would be retained, repaired or replaced 
where necessary. The scheme proposes a lawned garden, tree planting and shrubbery.  
 
The access to the site from Scholes Walk would be retained for pedestrians only with a 
parking space formed within an area of grassed land on Scholes Walk next to where other 
residents and visitors to the area park.  
 
The site has previously been granted a planning consent for 1 no bungalow and parking 
space (approved 2016) to be provided within the grassed area of land, as proposed in this 
application. 
To compare the scale of development now proposed -  
 
Previously approved scheme   
Footprint area of dwelling - 125sqm 
Height - 6.4m 
 
Proposed scheme 
Footprint area of dwelling - 104.5sqm 
Height - 4.6m 
 
Relevant Planning History 
59530 - Erection of 1 no. bungalow (resubmission) - Approve with Conditions 21/01/2016 
59086 - Erection of 1 no. bungalow - Withdrawn by Applicant 27/10/2015 
43791 - Residential development - semi detached - Refused 13/12/2004 (inadequate 
garden area, insufficient and conflicting information regarding access and parking and 

Page 39



pedestrians),   
16/0272 - Untidy land -  15/07/2016 
16/0480 - Untidy Land -  23/01/2017 
17/0369 - Untidy Land -  02/10/2017 
 
Publicity 
Letters sent to 25 properties on 21/5/24. 
 
5 objections received (4 different addresses) which raise the following issues -  
 

• Previously objected to this proposal when it was applied for in the past. 

• Would cause noise pollution, the coming & going of work vehicles, spreading dirt & dust 
and the impact on health. 

• A bungalow would still block any sun. 

• Think the last proposal was refused due to water/sewage unavailability around the land. 

• My garden is prone to sinking & any upheaval in the land that has asked for planning 
permission would likely cause more sinking due to the sewage tunnels under my 
garden. 

• Capacity for parking in the cul de sac is already at breaking point as previously stated. 
Not only this but there is no pavement at the bottom where the proposal is and the road 
is only one car wide, pedestrians and children have to use the road so any increase in 
vehicle numbers will mean added danger as homes generate traffic other than their 
own, e.g. deliveries and visitors, 

• The trees are under a preservation order so cannot be touched even if the idea was 
suggested.  

• Planning permission has previously been refused on this plot due at least in part to 
parking issues.  

• Utilities are stretched and failing with old pipes constantly having to be repaired. Also 
the government is against permission being granted on sites like this under so called " 
Garden Grabbing " which came into force in 2010 to prevent building in high density 
residential areas, relevant in this case as the plot was originally part of the garden of no 
14 Scholes Walk and not deemed suitable to build on for above reasons. 

• This is the only access for both houses number 13 and number 14 any building work on 
this plot means getting in and out from these property's will be impossible.  The 
pathway is stepped and it is not wide enough for machine's to be driving in and out from 
this plot of land access will be restricted for both houses. It will be too dangerous for 
children from both households. 

 
The application was made invalid (10/6/24) when it was confirmed by the applicant that the 
development would not be a self-build, and therefore a BNG metric and assessment would 
be required for validation purposes.  
 
The application was subsequently made valid (9/7/24) on receipt of a BNG metric and 
assessment.    
 
Neighbours were re-notified by letter on 9/7/24.  
3 objections received with the following comments  -  
 

• I strongly object to the erection of a bungalow on this plot of land. 

• It is a haven of wildlife living in this area & quite peaceful  - I can think of nothing worse 
than building vehicles destroying this plot bringing nothing but dust dirt chaos & noise 
pollution. 

• The dirt & dust would affect my health. 

• In this area we have had many sewage bursts & ground sinking & the upheaval would 

Page 40



contribute further to more sewage bursts that contribute to rats. 

• Having received the amended proposal strongly object once more as it is now 
suggested a new parking space be carved into the 'green' , the centrepiece of Scholes 
Walk and what makes it such a lovely peaceful place to live. 

• A new parking space would not only damage our beloved green space but also spoil the 
general aesthetic of the view from surrounding properties 

• This is a cul de sac with already very limited parking. The application is now for no 
parking or access for the actual property which is certainly not enough for a three 
bedroomed property but would also be on a tight corner. 

• This cul de sac is unique in layout and has no pavement so all pedestrians walk on the 
road, already pretty dangerous but will be made worse by provisions for more vehicles 
being made.  

• Question how it can be possible for somebody to suggest a green space not owned by 
them can be dug up to assist in their application. This will set a precedence for everyone 
to apply to have a parking space made.  

• This land was originally part of the garden of a property and there was a reason it was 
not built on at the time. It is not appropriate. 

• There is lots of wildlife, including hedgehogs which are protected, and they will be put 
further at risk. 

 
Comment -  

• Suggest that the applicant should show some enhancements to this green area to 
minimise the additional visual intrusion by the introduction of another car parking space 
into the area. 

 
Those who have made representations will be informed of the Planning Control Committee 
meeting.  
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section -  
Property & Technical Services - Estates Consultancy - No response received 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land and Air Quality - No objection subject to 
conditions 
Waste Management - No response received.  
United Utilities (Water and waste) - No objection subject to condition.  
Prestwich Village Neighbourhood Forum - No objection 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objection subject to conditions 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions 
 
Development Plan and Policies 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
H2/6 Garden and Backland Development 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
JP-S4 Flood Risk and the Water Environment 
JP-C5 Streets For All 
JP-C6 Walking and Cycling 

Page 41



JP-H3 Type, Size and Design of New Housing 
JP-H4 Density of New Housing 
JP-C2 Digital Connectivity 
JP-S2 Carbon and Energy 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for 
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the 
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material 
planning considerations.  
 
The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be 
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For 
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a 
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically 
mentioned. 
 
Housing Land Supply and Principle of Residential Development 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) should be treated as a material planning 
consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the supply 
of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. The Framework 
states that unless they have an adopted plan that is less than five years old that identified a 
five year supply of specific deliverable sites at the time of conclusion of the examination, 
then local planning authorities should identify and update annually a supply of specific 
developable sites to provide either a minimum of five years' worth of housing, or a minimum 
of four years' worth of housing in certain circumstances set out in NPPF paragraph 226.  
 
The joint Places for Everyone Plan was adopted with effect from 21 March 2024 and sets 
the up-to-date housing requirement for Bury against which the deliverable supply of housing 
land must be assessed. PfE Policy JP-H1 sets the following stepped targets for Bury: 
- 246 homes per year from 2022-2025; 
- 452 homes per year from 2025-2030; then 
- 520 homes per year from 2030-2039. 
 
Bury's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply 
position, which is made up of sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that 
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a 
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of 
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the deliverable land supply 
calculations as many sites will take longer than five years to come forward and be fully 
developed (e.g. some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). In addition to 
the housing land supply in the SHLAA, the joint Places for Everyone Plan allocates 
significant strategic sites for housing within Bury and will accelerate housing delivery within 
the Borough to meet housing needs. 
 
Following the adoption of Places for Everyone, the Council is now able to demonstrate a 
deliverable 5 year supply of housing land when assessed against the adopted PfE housing 
requirement. 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework also sets out the Housing Delivery Test, which is 
an assessment of net additional dwellings provided over the previous three years against 
the homes required. Where the test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially 

Page 42



below (less than 75%) the housing requirement over the previous years, this needs to be 
taken into account in the decision-taking process. The latest results published by the 
Government show that Bury has a housing delivery test result of less than 75%, and 
therefore, this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for 
residential development. 
 
Therefore, paragraph 11d) of the National Planning Policy Framework states that where 
there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for 
determining the application are out-of-date, planning permission should be granted unless: 
i. The application of policies in the Framework that protect areas, or assets of particular 
importance, provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole. 
 
In terms of housing delivery the Borough has under-delivered against the local housing 
need, and as a result the 'tilted balance' applies and planning permission should be granted 
unless the above points Para 11(d) i or ii apply.  
 
The site is considered to be in a sustainable location for housing within the urban area and 
sitting outside the Green Belt. The national requirement to significantly boost the supply of 
housing under the NPPF is a material consideration that would favour the residential 
development of this site in principle. 
 
Layout 
Policy JP-H4 - Requires new housing development to be delivered at a density appropriate 
to the location, reflecting the relative accessibility of the site by walking, cycling and public 
transport and the need to achieve efficient use of land and high quality design. Policy JP-H4 
sets out minimum densities that should be considered. The site is within an area where a 
density of 50 dwellings per hectare applies.  
 
The site area equates to around 0.44 hectares, which would indicate a minimum capacity of 
2 dwellings. As set out in JP-H4, lower densities may be acceptable where they can be 
clearly justified by local housing market issues or site-specific issues.  
 
Access to the site and consideration of separation distances to neighbouring dwellings on 
this small site constrain the ability of the site to achieve 50 dwellings per hectare. As such, 
the proposal for 1 dwelling on this plot is considered to be acceptable. 
 
Policies H2/1 and H2/2 provide the assessment criteria for detailed matters relating to 
height, appearance, density and character, aspects and finishing materials for new 
residential developments.  Policy JP-H3 - Seeks to provide an appropriate mix of dwelling 
types and sizes reflecting local plan policies and having regard to relevant local evidence.  
 
UDP Policy H2/6 - Garden and Backland Development gives special regard to factors 
relating to -  

• the concentration of such development in the surrounding area 

• the relative density of the proposal to that of the surrounding area 

• the impact on neighbouring properties and the local environment 

• access arrangements 
 
The site is broadly square in form and it is proposed to position the bungalow more or less 
centrally within the plot orientated with the front entrance to face the access path.    
 
To the rear of the dwelling would be the garden area which would extend to the rear 

Page 43



boundary by over 7m which would provide an acceptable level of amenity space and in 
accordance with SPD6.  
The site is bounded on 3 sides by an existing fence and the southern boundary would be  
reinstated with a 1.8m high fence which would screen the lower half of the new dwelling 
from views from No 13 Scholes Walk. 
It is also proposed to landscape the garden and provide tree planting to areas around the 
boundary which would aide in screening parts of the development. 
 
The access to the site is unusual in that there is only a pathway wide enough for 
pedestrians with little if any capacity to widen the access to facilitate a vehicle safely and as 
such this would remain a pedestrian access only.  
It is therefore proposed to provide parking remote from the site by using part of the grassed 
piece of land on Scholes Walk to form one parking space.   Many of the houses on 
Scholes Walk do not have in-curtilage parking and there are other spaces within this area of 
land which provide parking for residents on Scholes Walk and as such the proposal would 
be acceptable in principle (details discussed further in the Highway section below).    
 
Internally, living accommodation would comprise living room, kitchen/diner and 3 no 
bedrooms. 
 
PfE Policy JP-H3 - Seeks to provide an appropriate mix of dwelling types and sizes. All new 
dwellings must -  
1. comply with the nationally described space standards, and  
2. be built to the 'accessible and adaptable standard in Part M4(2) of Building Regulations 
unless specific site conditions make this impracticable.  
 
The applicant states that the dwellings comply with the nationally described space 
standards for a 3 bed dwelling. The applicant has confirmed that the dwelling will be built to 
the accessible and adaptable standard in Part M4(2) of Building Regulations and this would 
be secured by condition. 
 
It is therefore considered the proposed development would be acceptable and would 
comply with Policies H2/1, H2/2, H2/6, JP-H3 and JP-H4. 
 
Design and appearance 
In terms of its setting, the site is located within a residential estate comprising mews, semi- 
detached properties and bungalows.  Given the site constraints and relationship to the 
surrounding dwellings, it is considered that a bungalow would be the appropriate solution in 
providing a dwelling on this particular plot. 
 
The proposed dwelling would have a footprint area of 104.5sqm with a ridge height of 4.6m 
and as such would be a modest sized building within the plot.  
It would be brick built with a tiled roof and elevations would be simple and incorporate 
windows to habitable rooms.  Materials would be secured by condition. 
 
The site is more or less enclosed by surrounding development and not widely open to public 
views and therefore visual impact would be limited.  That said, it is considered the design 
and appearance, scale and setting of the dwelling would be appropriate to this area and as 
such is considered to comply with Policies H2/1, H2/2, H2/6, JP-H3 and JP-H4. 
 
Impact on residential amenity 
SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between residential properties and as such, 
would be relevant in this case, requiring a distance of 6.5m between a blank wall and 
directly facing window. 
 

Page 44



The proposed dwelling would be orientated at an angle to the surrounding houses and as 
such there would not be a direct interface between habitable windows in the new dwelling 
and those in neighbouring properties. 
 
The only habitable room windows proposed would be to the front and rear elevations and 
given these would be at the ground floor, the distance away from adjacent dwellings, 
orientation of the property together with the provision of a 1.8m high boundary fence and 
landscaping, it is considered the proposed development would not have a significantly 
harmful impact on the amenity of nearby occupiers.  
 
The proposed development would therefore comply with Policies H2/2 and SPD6.  
 
Parking and access 
SPD11 states that the maximum number of parking spaces would be 2 spaces per 3 bed 
property within a high access area. 
 
The development proposes 1 parking space.   
 
The parking space would be provided adjacent to the existing parking spaces which are 
formed within the square on Scholes Walk. This land is council owned and the applicant has 
served the appropriate notice to the Council who have agreed in principle to the release of 
the land for the parking space.   
 
The parking space would be added next to two existing spaces within the square.  Whilst 
set close to a bend in the road, there would be sufficient space to manoeuvre in/out of the 
space with adequate levels of visibility.  Scholes Walk is a circular route and whilst not 
signed as a one-way system, cars appear to travel in one direction.  The area is relatively 
quiet, only serves the residents on Scholes Walk and does not generate significant levels of 
traffic.  
The proposed parking space would be located no closer to a corner of the road than the 
other bays which are provided around the square and no worse a situation than already 
exits in the area.    
 
In terms of the level of parking to be provided for the development, the site has good access 
to public transport and local services and as such in this instance one space would be 
considered acceptable. 
 
The Highway Authority have raised no objection to the proposed development subject to 
conditions.  
 
The proposed development would therefore comply with Policies HT2/4, JP-C5 and JP-C6.  
 
Ecology 
All issues can be dealt with by condition or informative. 
 
Nesting Birds & Hedgehogs 
 
There is the potential for birds & hedgehogs to use shrubs/trees to be removed.  All British 
birds nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected by Section 1 of the 
Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, as amended.  Should there be a need to remove any of 
the foliage for the development until after the lst of March in any one year, GMEU would 
recommend a condition be added to restrict tree and shrub removal.   
 
Biodiversity Net Gain 
The information submitted with the application includes a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 

Page 45



and Statutory Biodiversity Metric from David Bentley Ecology (Jul 2024). 
 
The appraisal found the site had some ecological value, being largely bramble scrub with 
some scattered trees.  The majority of the trees on the site are due to be lost to the 
development.   
 
GMEU have examined the Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) metric spreadsheet (Jul 2024) 
provided by the applicants ecologist and are satisfied with the calculations provided. 
 
After construction of the development and on-site biodiversity remediation there is due to be 
a loss of 0.14 scrub units and a gain of 0.16 individual tree units, with an overall net gain of 
0.02 area unit.  
 
All habitat distinctiveness trading rules have not been adhered to. The loss of 0.14 units of 
medium distinctiveness scrub units should be replaced with the same broad habitat or with 
a more higher distinctive habitat. 
 
The applicant should now provide and implement a suitable Biodiversity Gain Plan (BGP) 
including a Habitat Management and Monitoring Plan (HMMP) for the on site and potential 
off site element of the BNG.  
 
This document must be retained and used to inform future monitoring and compliance of the 
time to target enhancement methods and ongoing management required to maintain the 
agreed level of habitat distinctiveness and quality.  
 
GMEU therefore recommend conditions to this effect. 
 
In addition to the BNG requirements and in line with the guidance provided by the applicants 
surveying ecologist (David Bentley Ecology), GMEU would also suggest the following 
replacement cover for breeding and reducing predation for birds and hedgehogs are 
provided and suitably positioned. 
 

• 1 swift brick incorporated into the development 

• 2 x Birds boxes incorporated into the landscape plan or building development.   

• Hedgehog friendly fencing  
 
It is therefore considered that with appropriate conditions the proposed development would 
be acceptable and comply with Policy JP-G8 and chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing 
the natural environment.  
 
United Utilities 
With regards to the proposed parking space only,  UU have identified that there is a legal 
easement that crosses close to the additional parking space which is in addition to their 
statutory rights for inspection, maintenance and repair. The easement has restrictive 
covenants that must be adhered to. It is the applicant's responsibility to obtain a copy of the 
easement document, available from United Utilities Legal Services or Land Registry. The 
applicant must comply with the provisions stated within the document. 
 
It is the applicant's responsibility to investigate the existence of any pipelines that might 
cross or impact their proposed site and also to demonstrate the exact relationship between 
United Utilities' assets and the proposed development. The applicant should not rely solely 
on the detail contained within asset maps when considering a proposed layout. 
 
Given the size and nature of the pipeline concerned, UU strongly recommend that if they 

Page 46



have not already done so, the applicant contacts the Water Developer Services team at the 
earliest opportunity for advice on determining the precise location of the pipeline and 
additional protection measures they must consider both during and after construction. 
 
UU have advised an informative to the applicant and this would be included on the decision 
notice subject to approval of the application. 
 
UU have also advise that the development include sustainable drainage systems to help 
manage surface water and to offer new opportunities for wildlife to flourish. 
This would be included as an informative to the applicant.  
 
Air quality 
The Environmental Health Section have identified that one EV chargepoint should be 
provided. 
The parking space would be provided remote to the development site and given the 
installation and maintenance of the equipment in this area and that there would be the 
potential the EV unit could be used by those other than the applicant, it is considered in the 
instance it would not be reasonable to expect this facility to be provided.    
 
Carbon and energy 
The applicant states that the proposed development would incorporate sustainability and 
energy saving mechanisms to achieve the minimum energy consumption as specified in 
building regulations Part L (2022). 
The proposed development would therefore comply with Policy JP-S2.  
 
Digital connectivity 
Ducting and installation to the local wired network will be installed to future proof for gigabit 
installation. 
It is considered the proposed development would comply with Policy JP-C2.  
 
Response to objectors 

• There are no TPO trees either on the development site or the area proposed for parking. 

• The same development for a bungalow and remote parking space have previously been 
approved on the site in 2016. 

• A Construction Traffic Management Plan would be required prior to commencement of 
development. 

• United Utilities have been consulted and have no objection subject to condition.  

• The site is privately owned and not publicly accessible.  Given its enclosed position and  
does not contribute to the visual amenity of the area as an area of green open space. 

• issues relating to impact on residential amenity, ecology, access and parking have been 
covered in the above report. 

  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 

Page 47



 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings - Block plan SK.1 rev C; Revised proposed site 
plan 835-01 rev e; Topographical site plan - levels and proposed parking space 02 
rev A; Proposed floor plan 83502 rev b; Existing site plan 835-04 rev; Existing 
sections 835-05 rev b; Proposed sections  b; Energy Statement; Design and 
Access Statement and the development shall not be carried out except in 
accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

4. Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where 
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  
 

 

5. The dwelling hereby approved shall be built in accordance with the ‘accessible and 
adaptable’ standard in Part M4(2) of the Building Regulations. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site pursuant to Places for 
Everyone Joint Development Plan Policy JP-H3: Type, Size and Design of New 
Housing. 

 

6. Notwithstanding the terms of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015, as subsequently amended, no development 
shall be carried out within the terms of Classes A to G of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of 

Page 48



the Order, without the submission and approval of a relevant planning application. 
Reason. To ensure that future inappropriate alterations or extensions do not occur 
pursuant to policies of the Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

7. No tree or shrub clearance shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in 
any year unless a detailed bird nest & hedgehog survey by a suitably experienced 
ecologist has been carried out immediately prior to works and written confirmation 
provided that no active bird nests or hedgehogs are present, which has been 
agreed in writing by the LPA. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 - 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

8. The Biodiversity Gain Plan shall be prepared in accordance with the Extended 
Preliminary Ecological Assessment and prepared by Dave Bentley and must 
include: 
 

• information about the steps taken or to be taken to minimise the adverse effect 
of the development on the biodiversity of the onsite habitat and any other 
habitat; 

• the pre-development biodiversity value of the onsite habitat; 

• the post-development biodiversity value of the onsite habitat, including an 
amended Biodiversity Net Gain Metric Calculation that ensure that the loss of 
0.14 units of medium distinctiveness scrub units should be replaced with the 
same broad habitat or with a more higher distinctive habitat.; 

• any registered offsite biodiversity gain allocated to the development and the 
biodiversity and the biodiversity value of that gain in relation to the 
development; 

• any biodiversity credits purchased for the development; and 

• any such other matters as the Secretary of State may by regulations specify. 
Reason. To ensure the development delivers a biodiversity net gain on site in 
accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
policy JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity. 
 
 

 

9. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved, the development 
shall provide for  -  

• 1 x swift brick incorporated into the new dwelling; 

• 2 x bird boxes incorporated into the landscaping or new dwelling; 

• hedgehog friendly fencing. 
The installations shall thereafter be maintained.  
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential 
Development,  EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design,  JP-G8 - A Net 
Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity and chapter 15 - Conserving and 
enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.  

 

10. Prior to any above groundworks, details samples of the materials to be used in the 
external elevations, together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and 
size, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
before the development is commenced. Only the approved materials shall be used 
for the construction of the development. 

Page 49



Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/2  - Townscape and Built Design and H2/1 - The Form of New 
Residential Development.  

 

11. The development shall not commence until a Habitat Management and Monitoring 
Plan (the HMMP), prepared in accordance with the approved Biodiversity Gain 
Plan and including: 
 

1. a non-technical summary; 
2. the roles and responsibilities of the people or organisation(s) delivering the 

HMMP; 
3. the planned habitat creation and enhancement works to create or improve 

habitat to achieve the biodiversity net gain in accordance with the approved 
Biodiversity Gain Plan; 

4. the management measures to maintain habitat in accordance with the 
approved Biodiversity Gain Plan for a period of 30 years from the completion 
of development; and 

5. the monitoring methodology and frequency in respect of the created or 
enhanced habitat to be submitted to the local planning authority, 

has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. 
Reason. To ensure the development delivers a biodiversity net gain on site in 
accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
policy JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity. 
 

 

12. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until: 
 

• the habitat creation and enhancement works set out in the approved HMMP 
have been completed; and 

• a completion report, evidencing the completed habitat enhancements, has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

 
The created and/or enhanced habitat specified in the approved HMMP shall be 
managed and maintained in accordance with the approved HMMP. 
Reason. To ensure the development delivers a biodiversity net gain on site in 
accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
policy JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity. 
 

 

13. Monitoring reports shall be submitted to local planning authority in writing in 
accordance with the methodology and frequency specified in the approved HMMP. 
Reason. To ensure the development delivers a biodiversity net gain on site in 
accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
policy JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity. 
 

 

14. The parking bay extension on Scholes Walk indicated on the approved plans shall 
be surfaced and made available for use prior to commencement of construction of 
the dwelling hereby approved and thereafter maintained available for use at all 
times.   
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Development Plan. 

 

Page 50



15. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic 
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 
 
1. Photographic dilapidation survey of the adopted highway abutting the 
site and the unadopted pedestrian access to the site from Scholes Walk in the 
event that subsequent remedial works are required following construction of, and 
statutory undertakers connections to, the dwelling; 
2. Access route for all construction vehicles to the site from the Key 
Route Network; 
3. If proposed, details of site hoarding/gate positions, taking into 
consideration the need to maintain pedestrian access to the adjacent property; 
4. The provision, where necessary, of temporary pedestrian 
facilities/protection measures; 
5. A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic speed signage in 
the vicinity of the site and its access; 
6. Confirmation of hours of operation, delivery & construction vehicle 
sizes that can be accommodated on the adjacent residential streets that serve the 
site and number of vehicle movements; 
7. Measures to control/manage delivery vehicle deliveries and 
manoeuvres; 
8. Provision of storage on site or on land within the applicant's control of 
construction materials; 
9. Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not 
spread onto the adjacent highways as a result of the demolition works and 
groundworks operations or carried on the wheels and chassis of any vehicles 
leaving the site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the 
operations. 
 
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the 
measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the 
duration of the construction period. The areas identified shall not be used for any 
other purposes other than the turning/parking of vehicles and storage of 
construction materials. All highway remedial works identified as a result of the 
dilapidation survey shall be implemented  prior to the development hereby 
approved being brought into use. 
Reason.  Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of 
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent 
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and 
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that 
the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works 
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Development Plan 
Policies EN1/2, JP-C5 and JP-C6.  

 

16. The bin storage facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be made available 
prior to the dwelling hereby approved being first occupied and maintained 
thereafter. 
Reason.  To ensure adequate provision for the storage and disposal of refuse 
within the curtilage of the site, clear of the adopted highway pursuant to Policies 
H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development.  

 
For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161 253-5320

Page 51



 
 
 

Page 52



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 70755

Land between 13 & 14 Scholes Walk, 
Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0AZ

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

35

36

32

24

31

3
0

21

22a

22

17

19

1
0

1
0

14

2
0

4.

3.

1.

2.

Viewpoints

Page 53



70755 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 
Page 54



70755 

Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 Page 55



principal
entrance

PA

14

17

30

20

Se
ct

io
n 

AA

Se
ct

io
n 

AA

Section BB

Section BB

line of windows to bed 2 and bed 3

18228

14000

25294

20619

16708

21
12

4

PA

PA

SA

SA

SA

SA

IA

IA

IA

PT

PT

BP

BP

new parking space on grassed
area owned by council

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

u
m

b
e

rProposed Site Plan

R
e

vi
sio

n
D

w
g

 S
c

a
le

1:
20

0 
a

3

C
lie

n
t

Ti
tle

Pr
o

je
c

t

M A H E
Architecture

83
5-

01

New dwelling at 13-14
Scholes Walk

Mr Moghimi e

P
age 56

AutoCAD SHX Text
All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by contractor prior to commencemt of works. Any variations must be reported to the client. All information hereon in is the copyright of the designer. Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written permission from the designer. 



D
ra

w
in

g
 N

u
m

b
e

rProposed Floor Plan

R
e

vi
sio

n
D

w
g

 S
c

a
le

1:
50

 a
3

C
lie

n
t

Ti
tle

Pr
o

je
c

t

M A H E
Architecture

83
5-

02

New dwelling at 13-14
Scholes Walk

Mr Moghimi

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m1m

1:50

b
P

age 57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by contractor prior to commencemt of works. Any variations must be reported to the client. All information hereon in is the copyright of the designer. Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written permission from the designer. 



D
ra

w
in

g
 N

u
m

b
e

rProposed Elevations

R
e

vi
sio

n
D

w
g

 S
c

a
le

1:
10

0 
a

3

C
lie

n
t

Ti
tle

Pr
o

je
c

t

M A H E
Architecture

83
5-

03

New dwelling at 13-14
Scholes Walk

Mr Moghimi

FRONT

REAR

GABLE

GABLE

02m 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

1:100

b
P

age 58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by contractor prior to commencemt of works. Any variations must be reported to the client. All information hereon in is the copyright of the designer. Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written permission from the designer. 



  
 
Ward: Prestwich - Holyrood Item   4 

 
Applicant: Mr F Moghimi 
 
Location: Land at rear of 7-11 Carisbrook Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6UP 

 
Proposal: Erection of 1 no.bungalow 
 
Application Ref:   70763/Full Target Date:  09/09/2024 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The application site relates to a vacant backland plot which is located in the middle of an 
established residential estate.  The site is overgrown with vegetation and trees and is 
bound by timber fencing, which forms the rear boundaries of the houses surrounding the 
site.  There is an existing access into the site between Nos 9-11 Carisbrook Avenue, which 
runs the length of these 2 properties and opens out into the wider site area.  
 
The majority of the site is relatively level, sloping gradually towards the rear.  The houses 
on Tamworth Avenue to the north are located at a lower level by approx 0.5m.  
 
The application proposes 1 No. 3 bed bungalow. 
 
The proposed dwelling would be positioned more or less centrally within the plot with the 
front elevation facing Nos 7 and 9 Carisbrook.  Amenity space would be to the rear of the 
property with a driveway, turning area and parking for 2 cars at the front. 
The existing access between Nos 7 and 9 would be utilised with a drop kerbed formed to 
the site entrance.   
 
Accommodation would comprise living, dining and kitchen areas, porch, hall and 3 no 
bedrooms. 
 
The site has previously been granted consent for 1 no bungalow approved in 2016.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
59509 - Erection of 1 no bungalow - Approved 18/3/2016 
 
Publicity 
Letters sent on 15/7/24. 
Site notice posted 17/7/24. 
 
Four objections received -  
 

• Bury Unitary Development Plan Part 2: Chapter 6 : Environment - Section EN6 The land 
is a  self-seeded scrubland that has been left to naturalise over a number of years and 
now forms a habitat for many species of animal and plants including a family of foxes 
that live in site. Allowing this development to go ahead would contradict this policy as 
the Council is committed to the conservation of the natural environment.  

 

• Section H2/1 - The proposed development would have a detrimental effect to the 
existing surrounding properties who currently look out onto the land. The amenity of the 

Page 59



natural scrubland would be lost and replaced with a residential dwelling.  

• Section H2/2 - Whilst the plans show off road parking provision, access to the site is 
extremely constrained due to the proximity of the adjacent driveways and footpath and 
vehicles could not access the site safely. I would suggest a transport statement is 
needed to demonstrate vehicle tracking, including fire appliance and adequate access 
exists without being of detriment to the adjacent property. 

 

• All major housing developments are required to deliver at least a  10% net gain in 
Biodiversity. It is not clear from the application how the Biodiversity Net Gain obligations 
will be met.  

 

• Drainage -The proposal is on land that is lower than Carisbrook Avenue, the proposed 
water and sewer connections would therefore run uphill into the main sewer on 
Carisbrook Avenue. There is no proposal to overcome this.  

 

• Demand and overlooking - Whilst the development meets the overlooking threshold, 
because of the nature, scale and massing on the proposed development, relative to the 
surrounding properties it will be overlooked from all sides by all surrounding properties. 
This will have an impact on the demand and occupation of the property. Unoccupied 
properties can lead to an increase in crime and antisocial behaviour, The land as it is, 
currently does not attract any unauthorised access. 

 

• General - The design and access statement ( pages 10, 11, 12 ) include a number of 
photographs that are not of this site. This makes me nervous therefore that full due 
diligence has been followed throughout the application process. 

 

• In conclusion I would suggest the harm of this development outweighs the benefit and 
therefore I believe planning permission should not be granted. 

 

• The loss of green space will impact the area. 
 

• I am worried by the potential for overlooking my property. The loss of privacy would 
impact my family. 

 

• The entrance is very small, I don't see how the large machinery needed will be able to 
get through. I do not want my property damaged. The noise of this work will have a huge 
affect on all the surrounding properties. 

 

• The entrance passage leading to the proposed property is very narrow and emergency 
vehicles such as fire engines / ambulances would not be able to access the property 
and the properties that the proposed property surround. 

 

• The proposed property will affect our privacy as the proposed building is at a higher 
level and will overlook my property. 

 

• The expected increase in vehicle movement associated with the development, will likely 
lead to congestion and pose safety risks to pedestrians, including children and elderly 
residents. The current road infrastructure is not designed to accommodate the 
development traffic volume, and this will negatively affect the quality of life for local 
residents. 

 

• Impact on parking in the area 
 
Two comments -  

Page 60



• No proposed access to the site - imagine this would be a problem for the emergency 
services 

• Many years ago police advised the overgrown site restricts access to the rear of the 
properties.  Once the land is opened up this could cause a burglar's paradise 

• Is the ground area safe for a new property? 

• Question why this land was not built on in the first place 

• There are some concerns / constraints I would like to see in place before I could 
consider myself as supporting this application. 

• The land is so overgrown that it regularly causes damage to the surrounding fencelines, 
and it would be beneficial to have this permanently cleared to prevent this in the future. 

• However, the developer has previously stated that the border is his responsibility, but no 
work has been conducted to maintain it (and residents have had to fund this 
themselves). It is in disrepair at several houses because of this, and if the developer 
believes it is their responsibility it should be replaced / repaired around the entire 
perimeter. 

• Similarly, I believe that previous applications in 2004/2005 were rejected on the basis 
that a two-storey building was proposed. Whilst this is a bungalow, a constraint should 
be included that prohibits a 'dormer' style being built - as this would exacerbate any 
problems around privacy given the close proximity to existing houses. 

 
Those who have made representations have been notified of the Planning Control 
Committee meeting.  
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Management - No objection subject to conditions. 
Drainage -  No response received. 
Environmental Health Contaminated Land and Air Quality - No objection subject to 
conditions 
United Utilities (Water and Waste) - No objection. 
The Coal Authority - No comments and request the Coal Authority's Standing Advice Note 
is sent to the applicant. 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objection subject to conditions 
Waste Management - No response received. 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent agreed with pre-start conditions 
 
Development Plan and Policies 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
H2/6 Garden and Backland Development 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
JP-S4 Flood Risk and the Water Environment 
JP-C5 Streets For All 
JP-C6 Walking and Cycling 
JP-H3 Type, Size and Design of New Housing 
JP-H4 Density of New Housing 
JP-C2 Digital Connectivity 
JP-S2 Carbon and Energy 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 

Page 61



 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for 
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the 
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material 
planning considerations.  
 
The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be 
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For 
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a 
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically 
mentioned. 
 
Principle 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) should be treated as a material planning 
consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the supply 
of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. The Framework 
states that unless they have an adopted plan that is less than five years old that identified a 
five year supply of specific deliverable sites at the time of conclusion of the examination, 
then local planning authorities should identify and update annually a supply of specific 
developable sites to provide either a minimum of five years' worth of housing, or a minimum 
of four years' worth of housing in certain circumstances set out in NPPF paragraph 226.  
 
The joint Places for Everyone Plan was adopted with effect from 21 March 2024 and sets 
the up-to-date housing requirement for Bury against which the deliverable supply of housing 
land must be assessed. PfE Policy JP-H1 sets the following stepped targets for Bury: 
- 246 homes per year from 2022-2025; 
- 452 homes per year from 2025-2030; then 
- 520 homes per year from 2030-2039. 
 
Bury's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply 
position, which is made up of sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that 
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a 
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of 
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the deliverable land supply 
calculations as many sites will take longer than five years to come forward and be fully 
developed (e.g. some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). In addition to 
the housing land supply in the SHLAA, the joint Places for Everyone Plan allocates 
significant strategic sites for housing within Bury and will accelerate housing delivery within 
the Borough to meet housing needs. 
 
Following the adoption of Places for Everyone, the Council is now able to demonstrate a 
deliverable 5 year supply of housing land when assessed against the adopted PfE housing 
requirement. 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework also sets out the Housing Delivery Test, which is 
an assessment of net additional dwellings provided over the previous three years against 
the homes required. Where the test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially 
below (less than 75%) the housing requirement over the previous years, this needs to be 
taken into account in the decision-taking process. The latest results published by the 
Government show that Bury has a housing delivery test result of less than 75%, and 
therefore, this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for 
residential development. 

Page 62



 
Therefore, paragraph 11d) of the National Planning Policy Framework states that where 
there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for 
determining the application are out-of-date, planning permission should be granted unless: 
i. The application of policies in the Framework that protect areas, or assets of particular 
importance, provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole. 
 
In terms of housing delivery the Borough has under-delivered against the local housing 
need, and as a result the 'tilted balance' applies and planning permission should be granted 
unless the above points Para 11(d) i or ii apply.  
 
The site is considered to be in a sustainable location for housing within the urban area and 
sitting outside the Green Belt. The national requirement to significantly boost the supply of 
housing under the NPPF is a material consideration that would favour the residential 
development of this site in principle. 
 
Consent has previously been granted on the site for a residential development for 1 no 
dwelling in 2016. 
 
Layout and siting 
Policy JP-H4 - Requires new housing development to be delivered at a density appropriate 
to the location, reflecting the relative accessibility of the site by walking, cycling and public 
transport and the need to achieve efficient use of land and high quality design. Policy JP-H4 
sets out minimum densities that should be considered. Therefore in accordance with Policy 
JP-H4 regard should be had to a minimum net residential density of 70 dwellings per 
hectare at this site which would equate to 6 no houses on the site. 
 
As set out in JP-H4, lower densities may be acceptable where they can be clearly justified 
by local housing market issues or site-specific issues. The access to the site and need to 
consider the aspect standards and amenity of existing neighbouring dwellings on this small 
site constrain the ability of the site to achieve 70 dwellings per hectare. 
As such, the proposal for 1 no dwelling is considered acceptable on this occasion.  
 
Policies H2/1 and H2/2 provide the assessment criteria for detailed matters relating to 
height, appearance, density and character and finishing materials for new residential 
developments.  Policy JP-H3 - Seeks to provide an appropriate mix of dwelling types and 
sizes reflecting local plan policies and having regard to relevant local evidence.  
 
UDP Policy H2/6 - Garden and Backland Development gives special regard to factors 
relating to -  

• the concentration of such development in the surrounding area 

• the relative density of the proposal to that of the surrounding area 

• the impact on neighbouring properties and the local environment 

• access arrangements 
 
The proposed dwelling would be orientated to face the rear elevations of Nos 7 and 9 
Carisbrook which would be separated from the rear boundaries of these properties by 9.8m 
of driveway where parking for 2 cars and for visitors would be provided. 
At the rear, the garden would extend up to 19m at the furthest point providing sufficient 
amenity area and exceeding separation distances to neighbours.  The existing waney-lap 
fence would be retained around the perimeter of the site.  
 

Page 63



The existing access off Carisbrook Avenue would be utilised with a new foot way crossing 
formed at the entrance and gates set back into the site to facilitate a vehicular access clear 
of the highway.  
 
Given the irregularity of the site and its restricted access, it is considered that the proposal 
for 1 no dwelling would make best use of the land available and be acceptable on this 
occasion.  
 
PfE Policy JP-H3 - Seeks to provide an appropriate mix of dwelling types and sizes.  All 
new dwellings must -  
1. comply with the nationally described space standards, and  
2. be built to the 'accessible and adaptable standard in Part M4(2) of Building Regulations 
unless specific site conditions make this impracticable.  
 
The proposal would comply with the nationally described space standards for a 3 bed 
dwelling and the applicant has confirmed that the dwelling would be built to  accessible and 
adaptable standard in Part M4(2) of Building Regulations.   
 
It is therefore considered the proposed development would be acceptable and would 
comply with Policies H2/1, H2/2, H2/6, JP-H3 and JP-H4. 
 
Design and appearance 
The application proposes a bungalow type dwelling which given its setting and site 
constraints is considered the most suitable solution to developing the site for a residential 
property. 
 
The bungalow would have a footprint of approx 133 sqm with a ridge height of 5m.  It would 
be brick built with interlocking roof tiles which would reflect the majority of the housing stock 
in the area.  
Elevations and fenestration patterns would be uncomplicated, reflecting the modest style 
and scale of the dwelling. Details of the materials would be secured by condition.  
     
Views of the site and the proposed development would only be from the surrounding 
properties and given the dwelling would be single storey, modest in size, massing and 
appearance and would be partly screened from views by the boundary fencing, it is 
considered there would not be a significant impact on the visual amenity of the area.   
 
It is therefore considered the proposed development would comply with Policies H2/1, H2/2, 
H2/6, JP-H3 and JP-H4. 
 
Impact on residential amenity 
SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between residential properties and as such, 
would be relevant in this case, requiring a distance of 6.5m between a blank wall and 
directly facing window. 
 
To the north, according to the submitted site section plans, the houses on Tamworth 
Avenue would be located at a lower level to the ground floor level of the proposed dwelling 
by approx 0.5m.  There would be one window on the elevation which would face these 
houses which would be a narrow, high level window and views would be restricted.  The 
distance of more than 16m from the rear elevation of the directly facing properties would be 
more than sufficient and the intervening fence would also provide a level of privacy between 
the two sites.   
 
Separation distances  to the houses to the east, south and west would exceed 20m and as 
such there would be comfortable levels of separation between the proposed new build and 

Page 64



surrounding development.  
 
It is considered the proposed layout and setting of the dwelling would not compromise the 
privacy or outlook of the surrounding properties and would be in compliance with Policies 
H2/1, H2/2, H2/6 and SPD 6. 
 
Access and parking 
There is an existing 3.8m wide gated access into the site between Nos 9 and 11 Carisbrook 
Avenue which would be cleared to create the driveway access into the site with a dropped 
kerb provided at the entrance.  Gates would be installed which would be set back into the 
site to ensure a vehicle could enter and exit without obstruction to the public footway. 
 
Within the site, a drive would provide turning and parking for at least two cars with ample 
space to manoeuvre within the site to enable exit in a forward gear. 
 
With the access works proposed, it is considered the scale of development to provide one 
dwelling in this location would not significantly intensify traffic to the area or create undue 
highway safety issues. 
 
The Traffic Section have raised no objection subject to conditions for the implementation of 
the works to the access, the setting back of the gates by 5m and the provision of the parking 
prior to occupation.  Approval of a Construction Traffic Management Plan would be 
required. 
 
The proposed development would therefore comply with Policies H2/2, H2/6, JP-C5 and 
JP-C6.  
 
Ecology 
Summary 
A thorough ecological report has been provided. Biodiversity net gain is likely to be an issue 
on this site.  Other ecological issues include nesting birds, small mammals and invasive 
species.  
 
Protected Species 
GMEU agree with the ecological consultant that it is very unlikely that there are any 
protected species associated with this site.  There are no suitable habitats on the site or 
within the zone of influence of the development.  No further information or measures are 
required. 
 
Nesting Birds 
The scrub on the site provides high value habitat for nesting birds.  It is very likely that birds 
nest on the site.  All British birds nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are 
protected by Section 1 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, as amended. A condition to 
restrict the removal of vegetation would be included.  
 
Other Wildlife 
The dense scrub will provided cover and potentially breeding habitat for small mammals and 
could provide cover for other wildlife such as amphibians and reptiles.  GMEU agree 
however with the consultant that reptiles are not confirmed from the Borough and that whilst 
garden ponds may be present nearby suitable for common frog and species such as 
smooth newt, the risks of such species being present in fairly low.  GMEU also take on 
board the consultant's opinion that the site is also difficult to access for larger terrestrial 
wildlife owing to garden fencing and gate.  On balance however the residual risk of harm 
and suffering to mammals is sufficient that GMEU recommend site clearance occurs under 
reasonable avoidance measures method statement and therefore recommend a condition  

Page 65



is applied to any permission that prior to any vegetation clearance or earthworks a 
reasonable avoidance measures method statement for mammals and amphibians will be 
provided to and agreed in writing by the LPA. 
 
Invasive species 
Two species listed under schedule 9 part 2 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as 
amended) were recorded on the site, monbretia and variegated yellow-archangel.  It is an 
offence to introduce or cause to grow wild any plant listed under this schedule.  The 
consultant also lists other non-native and potentially invasive species but these are currently 
not covered by UK legislation.   
 
Whilst the proposed site is a residential dwelling and therefore not wild and therefore any 
monbretia or variegated yellow-argel not an issue on such a site, with no risk of spreading 
naturally from the site to the wild, there is a risk during constrution of material contaminiated 
with these species being transported off-site either accidently or deliberately.  GMEU 
therefore recommend a condition is applied to any permission that prior to any earthworks 
or vegetation clearance a method statement for the control of monbretia and variegated 
yellow-archangel will be provided to and agreed in writing by the LPA. 
 
Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment & Biodiversity Net Gain 
(BNG) 
Section 180 of the NPPF 2023 states that the planning policies and decisions should 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. 10% BNG is mandatory under 
Schedule 7A of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by schedule 14 of the 
Environment Act 2021). 
 
The site is currently primarily dense scrub of a medium value habitat.  This will be replaced 
by a garden and dwelling of low and negligible value habitats. The main wildlife issue is 
nesting birds.   
 
With regards biodiversity net gain, GMEU have no issues with the baseline calculation for 
the site.   
 
With regards the habitat creation scheme however, GMEU would note that the proposed 
trees and shrubbery would count as part of the vegetated garden habitat (which has not 
been included within the habitat creation scheme).   The individual trees and mixed scrub 
do not count towards the post-development value under the BNG guidelines, which 
previously would have been accepted.  The total area of vegetated garden should therefore 
be calculated and entered in to the habitat creation table to provide the final deficit.  
This will however be similar to that calculated.  ie less than 1 biodiversity unit.  
 
Off-site compensation will be required purchased from an off-site habitat bank or through 
statutory credits.  Currently defra is struggling to register sites, therefore they may be 
technical difficulties with the developer purchasing the off site units in the short term.  The 
unit shortfall may also generate viability issues for the developer dependent on the unit cost 
requested by the off-site provider.   The small number of units required are not however a 
reason to refuse the development as ultimately such a small unit loss should be capable of 
being provided off-site and therefore the statutory biodiversity condition could be 
discharged.  
 
In addition to the BNG requirements and to mitigate loss of bird wildlife, a condition for the 
provision of swift bricks and bird boxes in the development will be included.  
 
The proposed development would therefore be acceptable and comply with Policies JP-G8 
and the principles of the NPPF. 

Page 66



 
Coal Authority 
The Coal Authority have reviewed the site location plan and confirm that the site would fall 
within a defined Development Low Risk Area and on this basis have no specific comments 
to make.  
It is requested that the Coal authority's Standing Advice note is drawn to the applicant's 
attention and this would be included as an informative.  
 
Response to objectors 

• BNG is now mandatory for the type of site and development proposed and conditions 
have been included to require the statutory 10% uplift.  

• The scale of development for 1 no dwelling and its location would not warrant a 
transport statement.  The Highway Section have no objections subject to conditions. 

• The location of the site would not prohibit access for the fire service 

• United Utilities have been consulted and have raised no objection. 

• A revised design and access statement has submitted with the incorrect photographs of 
the site removed. 

• The site is privately owned and not publicly accessible.  Given its enclosed position and  
does not contribute to the visual amenity of the area as an area of green open space. 

• A Construction Traffic Management Plan would be required prior to development 
commencing (Condition 6). 

• Permitted development rights have been removed to restrict further development unless 
planning permission is sought.  This is to protect the residential amenity of adjacent 
occupiers.   

• Issues of overlooking, impact on residential amenity, parking and access have been 
covered in the above report.  

  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered - Location plan dwg SK.1; Planning 
drawing 01 rev C layout, elevations, floor plans); Proposed site layout 836-02 rev 
b; Revised proposed sections 836-04 rev a; Design and Access Statement (Digital 
connectivity) rev b; Energy Statement and the development shall not be carried 
out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

Page 67



• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

4. Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where 
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  
 

 

5. Prior to occupation the applicant shall provide one electric vehicle (EV) charging 
point (minimum 7kW*) per unit (dwelling with dedicated parking). Photographic 
evidence of the installation of the agreed electric vehicle charge points shall be 
submitted. 
 
*Mode 3, 7kW (32A) single phase, or 22kW (32A) three phase, and for 50kW 
Mode 4 rapid charging may be required. British Standard BS EN 61851-1:2019 to 
be used. Further information regarding minimum standards can be found at 
https://www.gov.uk/transport/low-emission-and-electric-vehicles.  
 
Reason. In accordance with the NPPF, to encourage the uptake of ultra-low 
emission vehicles and ensure the development is sustainable. To safeguard 
residential amenity, public health and quality of life. 
 

 

6. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic 
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 
  

• Photographic dilapidation survey of the adopted highway abutting the site in 
the event that subsequent remedial works are required following construction 
of, and statutory undertakers connections to, the dwelling; 

• Access route for all demolition/construction vehicles to the site from the Key 
Route Network; 

• If proposed, details of site hoarding/gate positions, taking into consideration 
the need to maintain vehicular access to the adjacent residential properties; 

• The provision, where necessary, of temporary pedestrian facilities/protection 

Page 68



measures on the highway; 

• A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic speed signage in the 
vicinity of the site and its access; 

• Confirmation of hours of operation, demolition, delivery & construction vehicle 
sizes that can be accommodated on the adjacent residential streets that serve 
the site and number of vehicle movements; 

• Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage 
of the site and/or measures to control/manage delivery vehicle manoeuvres; 

• Parking on site or on land within the applicant's control of operatives' and 
demolition/construction vehicles, together with storage on site of 
demolition/construction materials; 

• Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not spread onto 
the adjacent highways as a result of the demolition works and groundworks 
operations or carried on the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the 
site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations. 

 
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the 
measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the 
duration of the construction period. The areas identified shall not be used for any 
other purposes other than the turning/parking of vehicles and storage of 
construction materials. All highway remedial works identified as a result of the 
dilapidation survey shall be implemented prior to the development hereby 
approved being brought into use. 
Reason.  Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of 
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent 
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and 
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that 
the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works 
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Policies EN1/2, JP-C5 
and JP-C6. 

 

7. The access arrangements indicated on approved plan reference 836-02 Revision 
B, incorporating the provision of a new footway crossing/the extension of the 
existing footway crossings on Carisbrook Avenue, demarcation of the limits of the 
adopted highway, new driveway in a porous/permeable material and/or measures 
to prevent the discharge of surface water onto the adopted highway and all 
highway remedial works required to reinstate the adopted highway to its condition 
prior to commencement of the development and following any statutory 
undertakers connections to the site, shall be implemented prior to occupation of 
the dwelling hereby approved. 
Reason.  To ensure good highway design and maintain the integrity of the 
adopted highway, in the interests of road safety pursuant to Policies H2/6, JP-C5 
and JP-C6. 

 

8. The gates indicated on approved plan reference 836-02 Revision B shall be 
inward opening and set back a minimum of 5m from the back of the adopted 
footway and thereafter maintained. 
Reason.  To ensure good highway design in the interests of pedestrian safety 
pursuant to Policies H2/6, JP-C5 and JP-C6. 

 

9. The car parking and turning facilities indicated on approved plan reference 836-02 
Revision B shall be provided before the development is first occupied and shall 
subsequently be maintained free of obstruction at all times. 
Reason.  To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to Policy H2/4. 

Page 69



 

10. Prior to any above groundworks, details samples of the materials to be used in the 
external elevations, together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and 
size, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
before the development is commenced. Only the approved materials shall be used 
for the construction of the development. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/2  - Townscape and Built Design and H2/1 - The Form of New 
Residential Development.  

 

11. Notwithstanding the terms of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015, as subsequently amended, no development 
shall be carried out within the terms of Classes A to G of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of 
the Order, without the submission and approval of a relevant planning application. 
Reason. To ensure that future inappropriate alterations or extensions do not occur 
pursuant to policies of the Unitary Development Plan liste 

 

12. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved, the development 
shall provide for  -  
1 x swift brick incorporated into the new dwelling; 
2 x bird boxes incorporated into the landscaping or new dwelling 
The installations shall thereafter be maintained.  
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential 
Development,  EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design,  JP-G8 - A Net 
Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity and chapter 15 - Conserving and 
enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.  

 

13. No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in 
any year unless a nesting bird survey and method statement for clearance is 
provided by a suitably experienced ecologist has been supplied to and agreed in 
writing by the LPA.  
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6/3 - Features of Ecological Value and National Planning 
Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

14. Prior to any vegetation clearance or earthworks a reasonable avoidance measures 
method statement for mammals and amphibians shall be provided to and agreed 
in writing by the LPA.  The approved reasonable avoidance measures shall be 
implemented as approved. 
Reason.  In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6/3 - Features of Ecological Value and National Planning 
Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

15. Prior to any earthworks or vegetation clearance a method statement for the control 
of monbretia and variegated yellow-archangel will be provided to and agreed in 
writing by the LPA.  the scheme shall then be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual extent of 
Japanese Knotweed and Himalayan Balsam and pursuant to National Planning 
Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

Page 70



 

16. The Biodiversity Gain Plan shall be prepared in accordance with the Ecological 
Assessment prepared by Dave Bentley dated 18/6/24 V2 and must include: 

• information about the steps taken or to be taken to minimise the adverse effect 
of the development on the biodiversity of the onsite habitat and any other 
habitat; 

• the pre-development biodiversity value of the onsite habitat; 

• the post-development biodiversity value of the onsite habitat, including an 
amended Biodiversity Net Gain Metric Calculation that ensure that the loss of 
the calculated units of medium distinctiveness scrub units should be replaced 
with the same broad habitat or with a more higher distinctive habitat.; 

• any registered offsite biodiversity gain allocated to the development and the 
biodiversity and the biodiversity value of that gain in relation to the 
development; 

• any biodiversity credits purchased for the development; and 

• any such other matters as the Secretary of State may by regulations specify. 
Reason. To ensure the development delivers a biodiversity net gain on site in 
accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
policy JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity. 
 

 

17. The development shall not commence until a Habitat Management and Monitoring 
Plan (the HMMP), prepared in accordance with the approved Biodiversity Gain 
Plan and including: 
1. a non-technical summary; 
2. the roles and responsibilities of the people or organisation(s) delivering 
the HMMP; 
3. the planned habitat creation and enhancement works to create or 
improve habitat to achieve the biodiversity net gain in accordance with the 
approved Biodiversity Gain Plan; 
4. the management measures to maintain habitat in accordance with the 
approved Biodiversity Gain Plan for a period of 30 years from the completion of 
development; and 
5. the monitoring methodology and frequency in respect of the created or 
enhanced habitat to be submitted to the local planning authority, 
 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. 
Reason. To ensure the development delivers a biodiversity net gain on site in 
accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
policy JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity. 
 

 

18. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until: 
 

• the habitat creation and enhancement works set out in the approved HMMP 
have been completed; and 

• a completion report, evidencing the completed habitat enhancements, has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

 
The created and/or enhanced habitat specified in the approved HMMP shall be 
managed and maintained in accordance with the approved HMMP. 
Reason. To ensure the development delivers a biodiversity net gain on site in 
accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
policy JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity. 

Page 71



 
 

19. Monitoring reports shall be submitted to local planning authority in writing in 
accordance with the methodology and frequency specified in the approved HMMP. 
Reason. To ensure the development delivers a biodiversity net gain on site in 
accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
policy JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity. 
 

 
For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161 253-5320 
 
 

Page 72



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 70763

Land at rear of 7-11 Carisbrook 
Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

8

3
3

10

4
3

3
7

14

4

13

5

2

26

11

19

21

1

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

C
A

R
IS

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E
N

U
E

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

DERBY R
OAD

2.

1.

Viewpoints

Page 73



70763 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 Page 74



70763 

Aerial 

 

Page 75



site to be cleared, turfed and maintained

permeable paving to be hydropave concrete textured
flags in charcoal colourway by Tobermore

shrubbery as per planting table

proposed tree as per planting table

bin store location:-
1no general; 1no glass; 1no paper;
1no grass etc

Section AA

8.
15

0

7.
89

07.
85

0

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

u
m

b
e

r

83
6-

02
   

  b

Proposed Site Plan

R
e

vi
sio

n
D

w
g

 S
c

a
le

1:
20

0 
a

3

C
lie

n
t

Ti
tle

Pr
o

je
c

t

M A H E
Architecture

New Dwelling:-
Land between 9 & 11
Carrisbrook Rd

Mr Moghimi

04m 4m 8m 12m 16m 20m

1:200

Page 76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by contractor prior to commencemt of works. Any variations must be reported to the client. All information hereon in is the copyright of the designer. Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written permission from the designer. 



P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�����������	


�
��
������������������������

�
�
��	�

�
���
����������� �

�
�������	�

�
�����
��������������

�
�����������	�

�
��
������������������
�
�������

�
����
����������	�

�
�
�����
����

� �

�
����������������	�

�
���������
�

�����������
������
���� ��
���	�

!"#$
%&%'(
#$
)#*"#+
*"'
%,-.#/
012&#+




�
����
��	�

�
!"'
('%1(*
.#$*$3

4'/'+*
0'.'5&*'0
%.&++#+5
0'/#$#1+$
$#+/'
*"'
.&$*
677�

�
��������8�
�������������������



!"'
7122#**''
#$
('/122'+0'0
*1
*"'
+1*'
*"'
('%1(*

&+0
&%%'+0#/'$


�
������
�����	�

�

�
�9:;9:<�=�
>?� �9@>AB�
�:<?=C9:D	�



E1
*"'
%(1%1$&.$
&//1(0
)#*"
*"'
61.#/F

G(&2')1(HI

 J'$
 
 


��<�=?=K��LB��M=��NON��PP>A=:	�
�>K<KA><@��?;@>A<�>9K��<KQ��>�D�
�9K�>Q=:<�>9K�	�



RS'/,*#T'
E#('/*1(
1U
4'$1,(/'$
*1
&0T#$'

('5&(0#+5
(#$H
2&+&5'2'+*


�
��<�=?=K��LB��V=A��>W=��>:=A�9:�
9P��=�9�:A=�	�

�
XYZ

�

�
�[�<@>�B �>W=:�>�B�>?;@>A<�>9K�	�



X1
 





�
�9K�>Q=:=Q�LB��9K>�9:>K���PP>A=:	�



\]̂

�
�

�
_<:Q��
PP=A�=Q	�

�
Z..
.#$*'0


�
�A:��>KB��K�=:=��	�
�

�
XYZ


�


�=KQ<�
��=?�

`

������������������
a


Page 79

Agenda Item 5



���������	�
����

 
 ������
��




�����������������
������ ���!��"��#��$�

%��&�

����������
'�&(���������

)��"�'�&(��#� *���+��#�

�
�

� � �

������+,��-&&������ �-&&������ �-�+��.� �



�


 
 



 � � �

�
/01
 2�����
3��

�
%��#��#���&-+��.,���$-����-�����*.�++�+ ��-+��-.��-&&������-������"�.� ���"�$.�++�+ �
"���#�-+#�&�"��(,�����-������#�-�������-�+��.4��
�
501
 �
��63��
�


�
%�����������&�(��+-��"4

�
�

�
6789
:;
2<=>?@:ABC
	<DE@8�F�:BE

�
�:B9<=9
�E9<7G8�F

�
H���"�'��+-I�J��"�-��H���.-$&�+��'�+� �&�+���
*.�++�+ ��������#I�H�$���&�+���-��K�#-����#��+"�K� �.���-+�
L�M+-N#.�,�*.����
O��,�O!P�Q�R�


�EG�
1/S/
5TU
T5V/

�W<7G�
C0W<@B:XYA@Z0?:[0A>




\
]

Page 80



����������������	�
����
���
���������
�
��	
���
�
���

�
	�

��� ���������������� �����������

���� !"#$�%&'()�

*++,-./�0123�4-56121-57�89:;<:=;=>�

?,/@21-5�-A�2/B+-,C,D�21BE/,�3-C,615F:C@@/77�FC2/7�C,-G56�+/,1B/2/,�-A�23/�A,-52�/52,C5@/�
HBCI1BGB�3/1F32�-A�=J>�B/2,/7K�

LG,D�4-MM/F/�N--6EG,D�4/52,/O�PC,Q/2�R2,//2O�LG,DO�LS9�;LT�
UVS�W��X�YZ�
[�<;<\\�W������	�
��]
X[�


̂��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

*++,-./�0123�4-56121-57�89:;<:=;=>�

_-5̀1MMGB15C2/6�.15DM�EC55/,7�2-�2/B+-,C,D�21BE/,�3-C,615F�

LG,D�4-MM/F/�N--6EG,D�4/52,/O�PC,Q/2�R2,//2O�LG,DO�LS9�;LT�
*ab�W��X�YZ�
[�<;<\>�W������	�
��]
X[�


̂��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

c/AG7/6�;9:;d:=;=>�

e572CMMC21-5�-A�BGM21AG5@21-5CM�@-BBG51@C21-5�3GE�15@MG615F�6/A1E,1MMC2-,�C56�C6./,217/B/52�
617+MCD�

f/6/72,1C5�C,/C�C6g�=�4/52,CM�R2,//2:>�4M/,Q/�R2,//2O�h3/�c-@QO�LG,DO�LS9�;i_�
UVS�W��X�YZ�
[�<;<<j�W������	�
��]
X[�


̂��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

c/AG7/6�;9:;d:=;=>�

e52/,5CMMD�1MMGB15C2/6�C6./,217/B/52�617+MCD�@-B+,1715F�-A�S4a�+-,2,C12�7@,//5�152/F,C2/6�152-�
@-BBG51@C21-5�3GE�

f/6/72,1C5�C,/C�C6g�=�4/52,CM�R2,//2:>�4M/,Q/�R2,//2O�h3/�c-@QO�LG,DO�LS9�;i_�
*ab�W��X�YZ�
[�<;<<<�W������	�
��]
X[�


̂��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

c/AG7/6�=j:;<:=;=>�

bC,1C21-5�-A�@-56121-5�5-J�=�A-MM-015F�C++,-.CM�-A�+MC5515F�+/,B1771-5�j9\d<k�HU-,BC21-5�-A�@C,�
+C,Q�C56�/,/@21-5�-A�E-G56C,D�A/5@/K�̀�c/B-.CM�-A�6/BC,@C21-5�-A�@C,�+C,Q�M15/7�A,-B�
+,-+-7/6�712/�MCD-G2�

SC56�-AA�*,M/D�*./5G/O�,/C,�-A�8�4-+7/�a,1./�l�=�R+155/D�a,1./O�LG,DO�LS9�mn?�
UVS�W��X�YZ�
[�<;d=<�W������	�
��]
X[�


̂��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

*++,-./�0123�4-56121-57�8m:;d:=;=>�

e572CMMC21-5�-A�/I2,C@21-5�AMG/�C56�=�5-�C1,�@-56121-515F�G5127�

8=�L-M2-5�R2,//2O�LG,DO�LS9�;So�
UVS�W��X�YZ�
[�<;d>8�W������	�
��]
X[�


̂��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

���� !"#$ p qrr�#stu�%&'()�

*++,-./�0123�4-56121-57�;9:;d:=;=>�

a/B-M121-5�-A�/I17215F�FC,CF/�C2�716/�C56�/,/@21-5�-A�\�72-,/D�/I2/571-5�C2�716/�0123�,--A�M1F327�
C2�A,-52�C56�,/C,�2-�+,-.16/�j�5-J�C66121-5CM�715FM/�-@@G+C5@D�E/6,--B7�H8\�5-J�15�2-2CMK�2-�
/I17215F�nPv�0123�C77-@1C2/6�+C,Q15F�C56�,/AG7/�72-,CF/�

8�U/,5F,-./�n-G7/O�c-@36CM/�vM6�c-C6O�LG,DO�LS9�<SR�
UVS�W��X�YZ�
[�<;\jd�W������	�
��]
X[�


̂��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

*++,-./�0123�4-56121-57�8<:;<:=;=>�

bC,1C21-5�-A�@-56121-5�5-J�=�HC++,-./6�6,C015F7K�A-MM-015F�C++,-.CM�-A�+MC5515F�+/,B1771-5�
jdj99�̀�*66121-5CM�6,C015F7�A-,�23/�@-572,G@21-5�-A�C�+,/̀@C72�@-5@,/2/�,/2C1515F�0CMM�CM-5F�
0/72/,5�712/�E-G56C,D�C56�,/C,�-A�EG1M615F�HEM-@Q�*K�

43CBE/,3CMM�LG715/77�fC,QO�nC,.C,6�c-C6O�LG,DO�LS9�;UV�
UVS�W��X�YZ�
[�<;j<8�W������	�
��]
X[�


̂��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

wxyz{y|z|}�~&���w������
Page 81



����������	
����
�	����������������

�
��������������������������	�������������	�����������
��	������������������� ��

���!���
�"	���	#�!��$#�!%&�'�%�
()%�*++,-./+01�����2�*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

%������?���������	������������

%������
���������	����	�����	�������������
��
��������������������������	�������������	�������
@ABC�������

(��	��2D�#�2D��E��	���"	���	#�!��$#�!%&�'?F�
%?�E�*++,-./+01���G���*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

����������	
����
�	������&��G������

H����	�	����	������
��������������	������	������	������	
���������
�		���
����

A�$����
�I������%	
#� �
���"	���	#�!��$#�!%&�'�F�
()%�*++,-./+01���G���*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

JKLMNOPQRNSNTUVWPXUQ�YZ[\]�

����������	
����
�	����������������

"�������	���$�������̂	�������

G'�!���	��������#�!��$#�!%&�&H_�
()%�*++,-./+01����&��*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

JKLMǸUQRNSNabKLcbN�YZ[\]�

E��������������_�	�H�d����
�2����������

E�������������������������
��
��������������������
����������������������#�e����������
�
���������)��������� ��	��������
��	����
���������)�������������

���!��	���H��
#�!��$#�!%G���!�
Ef�E��*++,-./+01�������*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

����������	
����
�	������'���������

g����	���$���
���̂	���������
�
�����	��������̂��	��������
���
�����	���	�����������
��e���
�	���$�����
�

A����@����#�������h�$�A����H��
#�!��$#�!%G��@!�
()%�*++,-./+01�������*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

%������?���������	������������

%������
���������	����	�����	�������������
���������������	
���̂��	��������������	
�
��	�
�

�e�	�e�����������e������
�e��������	����e�
����#�e�	
�������
��	���	$�������

���I���	
���?����#�!��$#�!%G�2ij�
%?�E�*++,-./+01���G���*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

%������?���������	�2���G������

%������
���������	����	�����	�������������
�����	��������������
��������
����������
��
�������
�����
�������	����	�������2�������������
	��	�	
������	������

'���!��	���H��
#�!��$#�!%G��?)�
%?�E�*++,-./+01���G���*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

����������	
����
�	�����2&���������

"�������	���$���	����	���$��̂	��������	���
����
���	�
�
��������������������
�����
�

2�����	
�����?����#�!��$#�!%G��k)�
()%�*++,-./+01���GG2�*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

JKLMǸUQRNSNOXRlm�YZ[\]�

nopqrpsqst�uZvwxsxyzx{�
Page 82



����������	
����
�	����������������

��������	�������	��������	���
�������������	�����������������
�������� ����	����
����	�����	���
���
�� ����	����
�����	������

���!�	���"��
��
���#�$���#�$%&��'(�
")%�*++,-./+01�������*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

%������>������?��	��@���������

%������
������?��	����	�����	�������������
������������
��	�������	�	�	����A)�����������B�

��(��

����C���#�$���#�$%&���D�
%>�'�*++,-./+01����&��*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

����������	
����
�	������&���������

��������	�������	��������	���������
��

���D��?��������#�$���#�$%&��DE�
")%�*++,-./+01���&���*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

����������	
����
�	���������&������

F����	�������
����	������#�����	���������
����	������#�����	�����
���	�����#���������	����������
��	������#�������������#�G���H�G���
�����������
����������	��	
������	������	�#�������
��	�����
���������
���
���������	
������	������
������������� �

���?���D����#����?���I��
#�$���#�$%&��!��
")%�*++,-./+01���&J��*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

'��������������E�	�I�K����
�L�!�	������������������

'�������������������������
���������	�������	�������

���$��?����>����#�$���#�$%&��M%�
N'>!�*++,-./+01���&@&�*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

OPQRSTUVWPQ�XYZ[\�

����������	
����
�	������&��&������

F����	������������	����������������	�������	�������	����������	���������������	�������	�������
	������	��������	�����
���������	��	���
����
���	���������
�����������H��

���	����	����>����#�F�		���	��#�$���#�$%&��!]�
")%�*++,-./+01���&���*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

����������	
����
�	������J��&������

%��	�
�$���
����������	�L�I����G��
?��	�������������	
������	������	�
�
��������������#������
����
�����������G��
�
����
���H���
������������������������?��G������H�������	���
�	���	�
�	�?G���
����	���G�		��� �

F
��%��#�@�J�(��?�������I��
#�$���#�$%̂�JM��
%$��*++,-./+01���&���*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

_Q̀aRbcdSTeTfPghQPPi�XYZ[\�

%������>������?��	��@���������

%������
������?��	����	�����	�������������
�
�	��
�
���	G���
����	��G������	���	�
���
���
������!�L��������������G���
�������
��	
���
������?��	�������
��������
����	
��
���� �

������?��	���%���#�'���	���
#�j���
��	��#�j�J�����
%>�'�*++,-./+01���@̂ J�*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

����������	
����
�	������̂ ��&������

F����	�������	��������	���
����
������
��?�� �

��%�����N����#�'���	���
#�j���
��	��#�j�J��>F�
")%�*++,-./+01����@@�*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

klmnompnpq�rYstuvuwxuy�
Page 83



����������	
����
�	����������������

������	�����������	��������������������	������������	���������	
������
�
�� �����	����	�����
���
�������!��	��������������	
������
��������
�"#���		��$�������

%����$��&��
'�(
�	�����
'�)���
��	��'�)���*+(�
,-!�.//0123/45�������.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

����������	
����
�	������B���������

��������	�����&����C�	�������

%��!�������D�����'�E���	���
'�)���
��	��'�)���FC��
,-!�.//0123/45���G%%�.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

����������	
����
�	�����%���G������

��������	�������
����	��������,���	���
���
������
����!��	��������������	
������
������

�F�(����� �����#�'�(
�	�����
'�)���
��	��'�)���*+-�
,-!�.//0123/45���G*B�.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

HIJKLMNOPQRQSJTUVJW�XYZ[\�

����������	
����
�	������*���������

]���	����$����������	��������	���
���!��	��������������	
�����	���
������
��������,���	������������
��	�������

�G���$��	�����#�'�E���	���
'�)���
��	��'�)����!-�
,-!�.//0123/45����GG�.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

����������	
����
�	����������������

!��	��������������	
������
�������D��������	���������
������������	���������������
�������
�	��������������	��	
������	����
����������������������������

%G�������	�������#�'�E���	���
'�)���
��	��'�)���B̂ ,�
,-!�.//0123/45���*�G�.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

����������	
����
�	������*���������

+����	������������	���������
���	���	������	����	������

%�E�� �]���'�_#���̀�
�&��
'�E���	���
'�)����,a�
,-!�.//0123/45���*G��.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

&��#��
�%G���������

�
��������#��������
��������b�������Fc���
��������
����$#��
����b������Cb
cc�	��%����d�$�
�
]�#������)#�	�����̀��#������b])̀ c�b�������#��D������c�	������#
���
������	��	
�������	��	����
���	
�������$#��
�����!��	��������������	
�����d������
�������	��
��������

F%�D����������	���	'�E���	���
'�)���
��	��'�)���%C��
,-!�.//0123/45�������.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

����������	
����
�	������*���������

+����	�������
����	���������	
����
�����
������"#���		��$����������������	������������	�������

F����
�����!���'�E���	���
'�)���
��	��'�)�����e�
,-!�.//0123/45���G%��.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

����������	
����
�	�����%B���������

��������	�������
����
��������	�������

*B�&��
���
�����#�'�E���	���
'�)���
��	��'�)����!(�
,-!�.//0123/45���GFG�.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

HIJKLMNOPQRQSLQfgIWhK�XYZ[\�

ijklmknlno�pYqrsostusv�
Page 84



����������	
����
�	����������������

�����������������������
�����
�����������������
����	�����
������������	�������
��
� 	������������	�������� 	���������	�����	���
���
����
���������	����������� 	�������

���!���	���
�"����#�!���	���
#�$���
��	��#�$���%!&�
'()�*++,-./+01�������*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

!��������������>�?����
���
�>�����
�@����������

!�������������������������
����	����	�������	������������	��������	�A�������		����	����#�
������	����B���C���	�����#�@����C�>>(D��E������C�	������������
��
���FG�����H�B����IC�
J��	����	�������G���C���K���	���������������	��K������
������������?������	�

)��
��	�'�����
�L��K�����
�!�����
�)	
#��������	��)���#�!���	���
#�$���
��	��#�$���G"M�
LN)�*++,-./+01�����O�*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

>�����
������������

��������	���������	�����
�� 	��������>��
�����������K��������H�����	�����
�

@G��)��	
���>��
#�!���	���
#�$���
��	��#�$���%P!�
'()�*++,-./+01���O�B�*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

����������	
����
�	�����@%���������

��������	����������� 	�������

������		�>��
#�!���	���
#�$���
��	��#�$���%�Q�
'()�*++,-./+01���OG%�*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

>�����
��%���������

J��	����	������������������
��	������	�������

��!����		������#�!���	���
#�$���
��	��#�$���%L>�
'()�*++,-./+01���O�O�*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

RSTUVWXXYZ[Z\S]̂�_ àbc�

����������	
����
�	�����@B���������

�������	����	����������� 	�������

O����������d����#�>�
������#�$���
��	��#�$�B�����
'()�*++,-./+01����B%�*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

>�����
��B���������

����	�����������

�	�������
���������N�F�I�	����������	
��� ��	�����
���������FNI#������
����
��	���	�������� ��	�������
��������
�������	����	������������
�������	�

@����������)���#�>�
������#�$���
��	��#�$�B��Pe�
'()�*++,-./+01�������*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

����������	
����
�	����������������

>�������� ��	�����������������	������	
���������	����������� 	�������

�������K��f�>��
#�>�
������#�$���
��	��#�$�B��'>�
'()�*++,-./+01����%G�*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

����������	
����
�	�����G����������

��������	����������� 	��������>��
���	������������	����

@��M�	
����)���#�>�
������#�$���
��	��#�$�B��>(�
'()�*++,-./+01���OO��*++23456378-97,1�

:74563781�

;<7+7=521�

RSTUVWXXYZ[ZghîjZSkTZlWk]mhîj�_ àbc�

nopqrpsqst�ùvwxoxyzx{�
Page 85



����������	
����
�	����������������

����	���������
����������������
�
���������	�����	�

������
�������
����
���������	
�����	�������� !"�
�#��$%%&'()%*+���, ��$%%-./01.23'42&+�

52/01.23+�

672%280-+�

"��������������9�	���:����
�;�<=	�������>����������

"�������������������������
����?����	�����������=	�������

���@����������
����
��������A���
��	����A����BC�
D"E<�$%%&'()%*+���, F�$%%-./01.23'42&+�

52/01.23+�

672%280-+�

����������	
����
�	����������������

����	���������
���=	�������

G��
�	����	
����
����
��������A���
��	����A����9H�
�#��$%%&'()%*+���,�F�$%%-./01.23'42&+�

52/01.23+�

672%280-+�

IJKLMNOOPQRQSPTU�VWXYZ�

�������E������[��	�> ��,������

�������
������[��	����	�����	�������������
��
��?������������[�
������?
������G\�]�	��
�[��
����G�����?��
��	��\�?�
�>,;� ]��G\̂]�

>��_��?�@	���	����
��������A���
��	����A���>9E�
�E�"�$%%&'()%*+�����F�$%%-./01.23'42&+�

52/01.23+�

672%280-+�

����������	
����
�	������F��,������

@��?����	������=	��������	�����	��	����	������=	��������	���
����[��
[��	�	�������������
�������
����?���	����	�����������=	�������̂�����������������
���
	
�	��	����	��������	������
�
�[��
[��	��	��?����
�������������?�̀�

>G��a�	���
����
����
��������A���
��	����A���>�D�
�#��$%%&'()%*+���,GG�$%%-./01.23'42&+�

52/01.23+�

672%280-+�

"��������������9�	���:����
��F���������

"�������	�����	���������������
��?�����	�����̂���
��?�

@
�����
�����?������"���	��������
����
��������A���
��	����A���>�B�
�D�$%%&'()%*+���,F��$%%-./01.23'42&+�

52/01.23+�

672%280-+�

"��������������9�	���:����
�G����������

"�������������������������
��?�����	�����̂��
���?�

@��	�������
����[��@��	�������
����
��������A���
��	����A���G@!�
�D�$%%&'()%*+���F���$%%-./01.23'42&+�

52/01.23+�

672%280-+�

IJbTcdUUdb�VWXYZ�

����������	
����
�	�����>F���������

���	�
�̂���
��?�������	�������	��������	���	�����	�������	����[����
������?e�	��f��?����������e�
�������[��	����������?�������	�[ �̂��e�������?���������	�����������

"���	����[����������������[�̂�		�[����������,���g�
����$%%&'()%*+��� ���$%%-./01.23'42&+�

52/01.23+�

672%280-+�

����������	
����
�	�����>����������

����	�����
����	���	�����	�������	��	������
��������������	��	
������̀�

���9�		������������[�̂�		�[������������FBh�
�#��$%%&'()%*+�������$%%-./01.23'42&+�

52/01.23+�

672%280-+�

ijklmknlno�pWqrstsuvsw�
Page 86



����������	
����
�	����������������

�����	������������	����������������	�������
���������	������������	�����
�

����	� 
!"�
�#���������$�%�!�&�		�!$�'"��$�'(��)* �
�+(�,--./01-23����4��,--567896:;/<:.3�

=:7896:;3�

>?:-:@853�

����������	
����
�	���������A������

B�����������������	��
�&�	�&�����������	
�	
�����	����	�����C����C����
	�����&�	
�	
������	����
���������
�	
��!����
�������D�

�E�������
����	���	$�%�!�&�		�!$�'"��$�'(��)*F�
�+(�,--./01-23���A���,--567896:;/<:.3�

=:7896:;3�

>?:-:@853�

����������	
����
�	������)���������

��������	�������
�� �	�������

����	����
������$�%�!�&�		�!$�'"��$�'(��)(G�
�+(�,--./01-23���A�A�,--567896:;/<:.3�

=:7896:;3�

>?:-:@853�

HIJJKLMJIL�NOPQR�

%�C"��
������������

�
������C�"���C��!��CC����	������
��	����S��������T���
�����	�����C�	�!&����
�
�

�4�#�����	���	$�U���
��$���		���	��$�'"��$�'(A��'*�
�+(�,--./01-23���44��,--567896:;/<:.3�

=:7896:;3�

>?:-:@853�

(��C"��*������!��	��A��A������

(��C"��
������!��	����	�C���	��C�������	�����"	&"��
����

�����
"��
��	���	$���		���	��$�'"��$�'(A�����
(*� �,--./01-23�������,--567896:;/<:.3�

=:7896:;3�

>?:-:@853�

 V��%�W"���
�����A������

 V������������X������Y�"�
���%��"��	����4��C�	
���������
���"�	���Z��������S ������!��	���
V!���	�������!��	T�%��"��	����������S����!��
�
T�C����������
�����
��	����
������!��	��C�
"��	������
���������

(��
��CC��
"��
��	���	�����&�����	���	$���		���	��$�'"��$�'(A��* �
��%�,--./01-23���)E��,--567896:;/<:.3�

=:7896:;3�

>?:-:@853�

[\KJ]̂K]_̀abacLdeIfJ\agah]dd]d�NOPQR�

����������	
����
�	������)���������

��������	�������	��������	�C���	�	��C��!�����
���&&��

���#��
!����%��
$�U
�	�C���
$�i���
��	��$�i�E��'*�
�+(�,--./01-23���4)A�,--567896:;/<:.3�

=:7896:;3�

>?:-:@853�

%�C"��
��A��A������

%�!������C�����	������������	������
�����	�����C�	�����������	������������	��������%��������C�
��
���
���
	����C���	���������C	������������	��C��!������
�C�������	
����C�	��������j���C���	�
C��������
����	����
�������	�����

���'���&����������$�U
�	�C���
$�i���
��	��$�i�E�A'(�
�+(�,--./01-23���A�4�,--567896:;/<:.3�

=:7896:;3�

>?:-:@853�

[\KJ]̂K]_̀abacLdeIfJ\agakK_lKLMJILakmfl�NOPQR�

nopqrpsqst�uOvwxyxz{x|�
Page 87



�������������	�
�����
�����������������

�������������	�������������������		�����������	����������	����������

������������������ �!"���	#�$�������%���#�&�������	�#�'��"������#�'�(��$)�
�%
���*++,-./+01����(2�*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

��������?����@���������������������

%�������������������������#�A?������� ��������B�������C�!���	������� �������B��������?�����	����
D�	���������������������������C�$B�����	��	����������

2�%���	� �E����#�&�������	�#�'��"������#�'�(��F)�
GH��*++,-./+01����I��*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

��������?����@�����������J���������

�������������"������������K����������	���L�����2�K�������	�L���		�?�����������	�����	�������
��������������M�II�2��K�	�������������������"	��������"���������������L�N�%��������������D��
��"��������(�����������������������������"�������B�����	������������������	����?�		�����
�������?������������?�����

��&�������?�O����#�%��"	����#�'��"������#�'�(��
P�
GH��*++,-./+01�����(�*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

��������?����@���������������������

A?������	������� ��B���������������������?����������������"���

J���	"��D��O����#�%��"	����#�'�I��!$�
GH��*++,-./+01����2��*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

��������?����@�����������(���������

!���	������� �������B��������

���%���	� �@����#�&�������	�#�'��"������#�'�(��H��
GH��*++,-./+01����2(�*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

��������?����@���������������������

A?������� ��B������������������������	������� ��B��������������������C�
�?��������	����?����?��
���������	��������C�&������������B�����������"�	����""���������?� �

���&�������E����#�&�������	�#�'��"������#�'�(��O)�
GH��*++,-./+01�����J�*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

��?��	�E���	������������������

��?��	�����	�������"������"�����������������"��������������B��������������������� C�$B�������
���������������D��"������������?����?M�

��
�?	�����������#�%��"	����#�'��"������#�'�(��&%�
�E@��*++,-./+01����I(�*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

QRSTUVSUWXYZY[\]̂ _̀TRYaY[\]̂ _̀TR�bcdef�

%��������2���������

���������"�������������D���������������B�������I�D����������������'�	���	��g""��������
K�'gL������������ND����'g�

(���'��"�������%���#�F�� #�F�J�J!��
GH��*++,-./+01���I���*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

��?��	�E���	������������������

��?��	�����	�������"������"��������������������������K@	����@2L��?�		���������"��	����h�������
����������������"��	����#�?����������������"�����#��?���	�����������������?��i��������������D�����
K@	����@�L�

���!��i��� �@	���#�F�� #�F�J��EF�
�E@��*++,-./+01�������*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

jklmnlomop�qcrstntuvtw�
Page 88



�

����������	
����
�	����������������

�
��������
�����	�������
��������	�����	���

���
�	�����	
���������� �����!��"#�$����������#�����#���%��&'�
!(��)**+,-.*/0����%1�)**23456378,97+0�

:74563780�

;<7*7=520�

����������	
����
�	������1���������

>�"���	��������?��	����
�	��
�
�������@�A����	�������������	�������
���?	���������	
��
�	��
���
��@�'�������	�����������?	������@�!���	�����
�

������
�������#�����#���%���>�
!(��)**+,-.*/0����B��)**23456378,97+0�

:74563780�

;<7*7=520�

CDEC�FGHIJCKLMNOPCGQCRSSJTUIHTGVWCXOUTYOYZ�

[\]̂_]̀̂ à�bcdefgfhifg�
Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�����������	


�
��
������������������������

�
�
��	�

�
���
�����������

�
�������	�

�
��
������
���
���

�
�����������	�

�
��
������������������
�
�������

�
����
����������	�

�
�
�����
����

� �

�
����������������	�

�
���������
�

�����������
������
���� ��
���	�

!"#$
%&%'(
#$
)#*"#+
*"'
%,-.#/
012&#+




�
����
��	�

�
3.&++#+4
5%%'&.$6























789104'0





















78:'*'(2#+'0




















;+<1(/'2'+*
5%%'&.$

789104'0
























78:'*'(2#+'0



















�
��������=�
�������������������



!"'
>122#**''
#$
('/122'+0'0
*1
*"'
+1*'
*"'
('%1(*

&+0
&%%'+0#/'$


�
������
�����	�

�

�
�?@A?@B�C�
DE� �?FDGH�
�@BECI?@J	�



:1
*"'
%(1%1$&.$
&//1(0
)#*"
*"'
31.#/K

L(&2')1(MN

 O'$
 
 


��B�CECP��QH��RC��STS��UUDGC@	�
�DPBPGDBF��EAFDGB�D?P��BPV��D�J�
�?P�DVC@B�D?P�	�



;W'/,*#X'
:#('/*1(
1<
Y'$1,(/'$
*1
&0X#$'

('4&(0#+4
(#$M
2&+&4'2'+*


�
��B�CECP��QH��ZCG��D[C��D@CG�?@�
?U��C�?�@GC�	�

�
\]5

�

�
�̂ �BFD�H �D[C@�D�H�DEAFDGB�D?P�	�



\1
 





�
�?P�DVC@CV�QH��?PD�?@DP���UUDGC@	�



_̀a

�
�

� �


�CPVB�
��CE�

8

������������������
b


Page 91

Agenda Item 6



����������	
���� �

�
������

�
�	��
������
����
��
�

�
����

�
������ !"#�$�%���� � &��%��$���
�

'(��)�*+�,-��.���
/�01��2�,�3�1��0�(�4�

5�16�

*+�,-��.��
7�68�0�'(1�0�

910��7�68�0�� :10�;�0��

�
�

� � �

/,0-��;<�'=66������ '=66������ '=-;,�
� �

�
�

� � �

� � � �

�
>?@� A���!�$B &�
�
5(������1�6=;�(
<�0�4=0���=��(��'=66������=)��(��:
1;;�;2��44�1
��
=�2���121�;���
��,���=;��=)��(��1-�(=0��<�1;��121�;���*;)=0,�6�;���=��,�����0.���1;���(=����(1��
(1.��8��;��-8��C-�;�
<�����06�;���8<��(��:
1;;�;2�D;�4�,�=01��E��
�
���1,(����=��(��0�4=0��10���(��D;�4�,�=0��F�,���=;��1;��1�.�081
�0�4=0��G�

�8��
40���;�����=��(��'=66������=;��(���64
�,1��=;��=)��(����,���=;��=;��(���44�1
���(1��
G�0��-4(�
�E�
�
H?@� �$ �IB��$ ��
�
5(1���(�����6�8��;=���E�
�

�
I��
�J��A�	KL�J����#�M����N��
�
�J�
�	
�&�
��O��N�
F1.���710;=P�Q�1��=)�F�.�
=46�;��71;12�6�;��
:
1;;�;2�/�0.�,��P�F�410�6�;��)=0�R��=-0,���1;��R�2-
1��=;P�
S�T;=G�
�<�:
1,��PU-0<�����U3V�W*X�
��O��@>Y>�HZ[�ZH\>��
%]��O���?]���Ĵ _���?LJ̀ ?�K�

Page 92



������������	��
��	��
	
��
��	��		���������������
������������

������� !�

"#$%&'$�()*+,',�")$-.�/)%&'$�01)2.�3#$4.�356�789�:�;�<=�>!�

?&)@A'�1B�#,'�1B�)�C#+D2+@A�%1�)22+%+1@)D�D+*+@A�)EE1--12)%+1@F�8G1�,%1$'4�,+2'�
'H%'@,+1@�)@2�I+@AD'�,%1$'4�B$1@%�'H%'@,+1@F�'H%'$@)D�)D%'$)%+1@,�+@ED#2+@A�
)D%'$)%+1@,�%1�G+@21G,�J�211$,�)@2�$'-1*)D�1B�K�@1L�G+@21G,�

M�� =;�><!�

���	N�KOJPQJKPKR�

/$�I%'G)$%�I+**'$4�

�	��
�S���	T	�N�(U5�

V	�SWW	�
	
��	��
�S�N�0'B#,'� ���	����X�	N�Y$+%%'@�0'Z$','@%)%+1@,�

���������S��[S\N�76]6KJ"̂ 5� ���	����	��
�S�N�(+,-+,,'2�

������� !�

8&'�?1)E&�_1#,'.�"1$-'$�̀+@,G1$%&�a#$,+@A�_1-'.�b@1G,D'4�01)2.�̀+@,G1$%&.�
31D%1@.�35K�Oc8�

:�;�<=�>!�

('-1D+%+1@�1B�'H+,%+@A�C#+D2+@A�%1�C'�$'ZD)E'2�G+%&�K�@1L�2G'DD+@A,�

M�� =;�><!�

���	N�dOJPQJKPKR�

/$�b�e�/$,�f�I%1ZB1$%&�

�	��
�S���	T	�N�(U5�

V	�SWW	�
	
��	��
�S�N�0'B#,'� ���	����X�	N�Y$+%%'@�0'Z$','@%)%+1@,�

���������S��[S\N�767d7J"̂ 5� ���	����	��
�S�N�(+,-+,,'2�

������� !�

5)@2�)%�b+@A,%1@�?D1,'.�3#$4.�35g�KU9�:�;�<=�>!�

U$'E%+1@�1B�R�@1L�2G'DD+@A,�)@2�E1--#@+%4�B)E+D+%+',J$'E$')%+1@�)$')�G+%&�
),,1E+)%'2�Z)$h+@A�)@2�D)@2,E)Z+@A�

M�� =;�><!�

���	N�KKJPQJKPKR�

/$�b1@$)2�Y+Dh�

�	��
�S���	T	�N�(U5�

V	�SWW	�
	
��	��
�S�N�0'B#,'� ���	����X�	N�Y$+%%'@�0'Z$','@%)%+1@,�

���������S��[S\N�767O7J"̂ 5� ���	����	��
�S�N�(+,-+,,'2�

������� !�

5)@2�)2i)E'@%�%1�d�c)$h�̀*'@#'.�0)-,C1%%1-.�3#$4.�35P�P(̀ �:�;�<=�>!�

U$'E%+1@�1B�d�@1L�2G'DD+@A�+@ED#2+@A�2$+*'G)4�

M�� =;�><!�

���	N�dQJPQJKPKR�

c)$h�̀*'@#'�5%2�

�	��
�S���	T	�N�(U5�

V	�SWW	�
	
��	��
�S�N�0'B#,'� ���	����X�	N�Y$+%%'@�0'Z$','@%)%+1@,�

���������S��[S\N�76ggRJ"̂ 5� ���	����	��
�S�N�̂Z2)%'2�

������� !�

5)@2�,1#%&�1B�B1$-'$�̀+@,G1$%&�a#$,+@A�_1-'.�̀+@,G1$%&.�0)2ED+BB'.�31D%1@.�35K�
Ocj�

:�;�<=�>!�

c$+1$�)ZZ$1*)D�B1$�Z$1Z1,'2�)A$+E#D%#$)D�C#+D2+@A�

M�� =;�><!�

���	N�KKJPQJKPKR�

/$�I%#)$%�̀D2'$,1@�

�	��
�S���	T	�N�(U5�

V	�SWW	�
	
��	��
�S�N�c$+1$�̀ZZ$1*)D�0'k#+$'2�
)@2�0'B#,'2�

���	����X�	N�Y$+%%'@�0'Z$','@%)%+1@,�

���������S��[S\N�QPd7]J̀l� ���	����	��
�S�N�(+,-+,,'2�

Page 93



�

����������

	�
����
�������������������������������������� �!�"#�$��

%���&�'�&���&(�&���)�����*���������*�����&��'��)�����&��+����&,��-���*��.���
,��-�������

/���#!�$"��

012345�	6786�7�9�

�����'�:�����

03;<=<>?5@3A3@45B:C�
D3;>EE3?F3F503;<=<>?45���-��� GHH31@52IH34�J���������(���������&���

GHH@<;12<>?5K>L4587	MN6�OC� GHH31@503;<=<>?45B��P������

����������


�Q�P����&-������9��R�'P��S����%-�'��%CN�7%T� �!�"#�$��

U���������&��&��	�&V�P-����-����&�����&PP-������&���-,�����-���*�����,������&������
��Q������P�������(��'�

/���#!�$"��

012345	�67M6�7�9�

U���&�-��C���

03;<=<>?5@3A3@45B:C�

D3;>EE3?F3F503;<=<>?45���-��� GHH31@52IH34�J���������(���������&���

GHH@<;12<>?5K>L45879��6�OC� GHH31@503;<=<>?45B��P������

����������


�Q�P����&-������9��R�'P��S����%-�'��%CN�7%T� �!�"#�$��

W�Q������P�����&�������&�����(��'�����*���������&�P-����-����&�����&PP-������&��
�-,�-����

/���#!�$"��

012345	�67M6�7�9�

U���&�-��C���

03;<=<>?5@3A3@45B:C�
D3;>EE3?F3F503;<=<>?45���-��� GHH31@52IH34�J���������(���������&���

GHH@<;12<>?5K>L45879��6WBX� GHH31@503;<=<>?45B��P������

����������


�Q�P����&-������	�O��&��
�������%-�'��%CN�7YZ� �!�"#�$��

U���������&��&��	�&V�P-����-����&�����&PP-������&���-,�����-���*�����,������&������
��Q������P�������(��'�

/���#!�$"��

012345	�67M6�7�9�

U���&�-��C���

03;<=<>?5@3A3@45B:C�

D3;>EE3?F3F503;<=<>?45���-��� GHH31@52IH34�J���������(���������&���

GHH@<;12<>?5K>L45879�86�OC� GHH31@503;<=<>?45B��P������

����������


�Q�P����&-������	�O��&��
�������%-�'��%CN�7YZ� �!�"#�$��

W�Q������P�����&�������&�����(��'�����*���������&�P-����-����&�����&PP-������&��
�-,�-����

/���#!�$"��

012345	�67M6�7�9�

U���&�-��C���

03;<=<>?5@3A3@45B:C�
D3;>EE3?F3F503;<=<>?45���-��� GHH31@52IH34�J���������(���������&���

GHH@<;12<>?5K>L45879996WBX� GHH31@503;<=<>?45B��P������

Page 94



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�
�

������������� !��
"����������#�$��
��%%�&����'(')��
*+�,�-  .��/��01 !�2�/3��-4536�

�!�6!����7 .���� �!7�8�*+�79��:��.�7�.+� ;�:7�7���

������ !�8�7�<��=>79�,?�+�=@=A�

�
�������4�;<��33B5A=C@BDB=EBEEECFAG�
1�H?��1����I�.JK�-�79�.�4 �8K�/?.+�/LM�G5,��
NO P�������������#�$����$��������
��QR�
S�����P
�����$�T
����U�V������	�W���%XX(�Y���
�#��$�$Z��	����������S������
�	������������	����#����
���

NO P�������������#�$��[U�"�������"�����U��	����������$�����
��
S�\��U�]���
�
������
\
�
�	��T
�������

NO P������������
��̂�S����_X̀ X'��
NO P���$����
�#������
�
��$�����
��	�����U�$�����[�$���������
������������������
��S
��
�������
��
S�%#��a�����
���
���#
������[��
�
����
���
��U���$���������
���
	�����������
��������
���
�S���������
����$�����	��
S�����
S������
S�[���$��	��
��$$���
��������$�������
���
##
$���
���

������ !�

%�OP�������������$��#����$��

3.���J�!�.+�-�77�.��

'�Ob����	������
�����
S�����������c�����d���
����V������	�V
���U�e��#��
�
�Y����
e��#��
�
Z�����������$���$�����fghijklmnogpqromqsrmtulnjrvmwgxmyzrx{gir|m
b����
�#����V����b
��#����
��'%�]�����'(')�YbVbZ��P���bVb����������
���������
�������
S�����\��U�}�����U�b����
�#����V����%XXQ�Y}bVZc������$��	�
}bV�V
���U�~d%�%�����$��������fghijkl�vm����
���S
����S������P���#������������
�������$����
��
������U��
��
##����
�������#�������
���
S�����������$�
e��#��
�
���$�����bVb���������������������#���[��c���$����������
������
����

S���U��
##�����#�$���

-��!�6��?���

�̀O�����	���	��$��
�����
S��������$�����[�S
���#�c�����#����������������

NO��������������
�
��$�$����
�#�����
��$�[��������
�������$����
�#�������
����������\���c������$��	������SS������
��
�������c������	���	��$��
�����
e��#��
�
���$����������$����
�#����������
���������

NO�����SS����
S�������
�
������
������������������$������������
S������
���
��
����Uc���$�������$����������

NO��������������
�
��$�$����
�#�����
��$���
��$���������[��������	�#�����
S
��$�	������
���������U���

NO��������������
�
��$�$����
�#�����
��$�[���������
����[
�����$�

NO���������������#�[U�����
��
S�������
����������c���$���U�
��������#c�
�
��$�[��������U�
�����	��$�[U�
������
���$�����
����
�����
��#
�����
�����
���U��������������#���������������$��
������SU�������
�
�����

Page 95



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

"#$%&'%(

)*+,-./0123

��4��!������5�!������6������������������	�����������7�������������!
��!�8���	�
6�9���6�:8���5�!�����6�!�!���!	�������
���	������	�
!�8�
��!����!7�������6��
�
����9�����������
���;�!�
�	��
!�	�	�:	�<�����8��

����������������������
�!
��!�87�	
9��
5��������!���
�	�6�!�6�:8����������������	���!	������
�
�!���
�	���!9�		�
�	������=
�������
�	�6�!	������	
9���
!�	��!��������
!�	�6���

>�4?
!�������
�6�����
5�6
�:�7�����	��
������!
���
5����@�	����
!�6��������������	�A�
��������
�6���!9����������!���8��
!�	���6�!��������������������	�����!��
���5����@�������
�	�6�!�6������!
�
	����	�	�:9����6��

��4��������������������
�����	�	�:9����6��
�!�����!�	��9����!	���6������6�6���
��
 	�
!�8�	�6���B���	�
���������	��:�����
�����9�����������
������	���	�
!�5�	�6��������	���������6�	�:	�<�����8�6�	9�		�6������������C����6�	9�		�6�
	���9�D����5�!���!����������
�����	�9�6���
������6������	�9��	��:�����	�����
6�	9�		�6�	���9�7�:��������
���!�������	��
������!���
�	�8�6�	9�		�6�	���9���
���	���	��!����6����E����9:�!������C�������!
��6�	���9�D���

��4����	������
���	�:������	�	�������������5

��!����
5�����6�9���6�
��!����!���6�
����6F������	������	�
!�8��
!�	�
���	��
��
������6�:8������!
�
	�6���
 
	�
!�8��B���	�
�7�������6����������9�����������
�����������������	���	�����
!������
��
5�������
 	�
!�8��B���	�
���	�:�������

A�4�	�����6�	9�		�6���6����!
��6�	���9�	������6����	��:���7����8��!���
��
����!��8��
9��!�:����
�����	���9��:�5
!��9���@����8������7�@��9��
��:
��6�:8�
�!���
�	�6���	�
�	���6������
�����	�9�	����	
�:�����������
����
�����

GHIJHI.3K1*LL./L.K*JI32IMIN/LOI1JP3K1+N02K1-3JHI3IQQI+J30L/13/LI11IRR3

S�4����?!�9��
!���6����5��	����������5��6�9��������9�
5�T!����U�����
���8��	��
�
�!�������!:���	�!����:8������������6���!9������8�
���V���6������		�������
���!����!�	���	�
5�T!����U���	��!������!�
�����		���6���!9��������@���
�	�
��
�
�	���������������!
�!�����6����
�9�����	7�:8�6�5�����
�7���!95����
�����T!����
U������6�	�
��6��
��:�����!
��6��B����������!8�	���������!��9	�����	V���6������
�����
�	�!����
��
5�����:���6���	������������T!����U�����	������!
�!�����
6����
�9�����

���4���!���!�7��
����!7�����9���6���9:�!�
5��B�����
�	��
����	7��	�	���
������
��!��!�����>��
5�����?!�9��
!�����!��!�����>���D�!�5�!	��
������B���	�
��
!�
����!���
��
5���:���6�����!
��6�6���������6
�	��
��!�	�������6�	�!
�
!��
�����
�66���
�	�
��!���6��:
�������	�W��
5�����
!�������:���6�������

���4����?!�9��
!��6
�	��
��6�5���������9�8��
�	���������6�	�!
�
!��
�����
�66���
�������		�		9����
5�������!������!
�
	����
��6�:��6�	�!
�
!��
������
�
����
!�������:���6�����	����!�5
!����9����!�
5����������F�6��9����:�������
��!����
	�W��
5�����:���6����C5
!��B�9���������!9	�
5�5

��!���7�5�

!	�������6

!�
�
��9�D��	�����!�8�����9�
!�����5���
!���

�
��X�5����A���
��X�5�����
�����
�
��
��A�����
��X�5���A����
��YZ[\]̂_̀ [ab̂c\d[efg[h\ib̂fjfg_k\lmfkdfgjn\_h\oZ[\lmfkdfgj\_h\fo\[pfho[d\bg\q\rmks\qtuvw\b̂\fe\fo\a_h\xbghômxo[d\
�5��!������6���7��	������	�:�����
!�������8��

Page 96



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

���"�����
���#�$� �%�&�'���	������(�����
'�����)!����*�����+����
���#�,-�
��	��	�

�������������
�	�!����
��
'�����&����
�.�����������)!����*�����	������!
�!�����
&����
�.��������		�����	�'
!���!�������!�
	�	/������������&������(�����
��'
!�
01232456758459:2;9:<7;=7582:429>76?51129>:@7AB;C265674D2:7?;E1679;47B5:E147297
&�	�!
�
!��
������&&���
�	�
��!���&��F
�������	�G��
'�����
!�������&����������

���"H�����.����!#�����������
��.�����IJKJLMNOJPQRSMPQTMLRUMLVWXRYZV[\PWJR]MQJR
R̂_R]J̀ RaZVL[VPbcRdReccMWV\QJ[RIJKJLMNOJPQRVPRQfJRYTJJPRaJLQRgRh\PZ\TXRijjk�
lH��mn�	��	�
���������������!�����!.	/�����o
������.�#����
������(���	�
���
�
F������
������!&�
'������
��.��
'�����
!�������&���������p��'�!���!�	����	������
������!
�
	��������F���
�	�&�!�&�
����	�
���.�!��	���&������������!��	������
�
�����!&�.�#��
��F�����!
�!����������!�����	������
�	�l������'�����	�����	���
��!������!�#�	��	�������!���
!��'����!���!��
���!��.����#��		��	n��

���"����
��������������������	��
..����&�
����������
'�����+��/���!��!������q�

'�����r!�.��
!���	�����!�������(�	������
�����	�	�
��&��
��F���
�	�&�!�&�
�� 
' 
&����	�.��#�F����	�����#���!���&
���&�
!�.�&���!�
!��
�������F������
��
'�����
r!�.��
!��������������	�
��&�F���������
����./����
!&�����
�����!�&��!���
'�
�
�	�	����#����������r!�.��
!��l������
	�!������
�����	��������������
�����
�
�����	��������r!�.��
!�/������!����!�����������������.�#�F�������n��

�q�"������p��
�	�&�!�+����
���#�,-�
����&�H��m��
�F��F!
�&�#��
�	�	��������������
r!�.��
!�/�H��m�	���	��
��&��	��
��
���!�'���
!	�F�#
�&���
	��
'�	�G�������
s;E9t21<:7t;9t5B9:7uv;E474D57�F	�����
'���	��F������&�����&�	����
'�������
 
	�
!�#��(���	�
��!�������!�.�!��#��
������''������
���������!����!���&�
�����!�����
'������(�	�����&����������&�����	�!!
��&�����!��/���&����	��
.����!	��!���&&!�		�&����.#���(��.�����		�����

���"wD57uAA511u94<:7tu1tE1u42;9:72962tu4574Du474D57uAA5u17:tD5357?;E167B5:E147297u7
�
��.�����!��	��
'������x�������
�	�&�!�&������	������
!�������&���������
���	��'���!�	��!���
��&�	����&�F#�����o
����������	/������������	���.���
��&�
F�������������H��m���!�	�
�&��

���"y������!���!&��
�����
'������F
��/�p��
�	�&�!�����������!
�
	����
��&��
��!�	����
�����&�	�!
�
!��
������&&���
���
�����
!�������F���&���������!.	�
'�	�G�/���&����
���!�'
!��'���	�������������(�����
�������!��!�����q���n�
'�����r!�.��
!���
o
�	�z�����#/������!
�
	�&�&����
�.�����
��&��
�/�F#�&�'�����
�/���������
�&��!	���.�����
������
�����		�
'�����)!����*����
!�������!�
	�	�
'������&����
���&������������r�!���!.
!�/����!���	��
�!�z��!�.�����
��		�		��'����!���!��
���!�
�
�	�&�!���
�	�������.
�����
���!#�	���������!��.	�����	��
�{�	��'#�����

�m�"p����!�'
!���
����&������������!
�
	�&�&����
�.�����
��&��
��F�������!
�!�����
&����
�.�����p�����
!&	������+����
���#�,-�
����&������
���#�$� �%/���&�����
�!
��	�
�	�
'�����r!�.��
!���

�%�"����o
�������
�	�&�!�&������!
�
	����
��
�'����������+����
���#�,-�
�/������
!�����	��
������
���!	�
����&�!� �	��
'�F���&���	������������)!����*�����p���	�
����!�����������!
�
	���F�'
!��.��!�����	��
��(���	�
�	/���&����!�'
!��p�&
��
��
�
�	�&�!����	��
���#���&����&������
�F��!���������
������!
�
	���F�'
!��.����

Sf\T\WQJTR\P[R\NNJ\T\PWJR

���"�����������	�����	��������������������r

�����	�l��	�
H
�����������	n�
-��&	�����o��!����!��!���l-o�n/����!����!�	�&��	����!�&���
�����
!�����
���&	�������������!�&���
���/������&�'!�����'���/������	�����!�&�'�!.	���&�
�
�	�	�
'����
����	�
�����!������!���

Page 97



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

���"�����
���#�$� ���	���	��
���	�!�������%����
�&����!�	����	�����%�	���������
���!����!���%��%�����#�
'���	��
�����#������!&	�
'�%�	���(�	�����(�	�������%�
&���!���	�������
���#�$� )��	���	��
���	�!�����������%����
�&�����������*+�	�
!�'����	���%�!�	�
�%	��
�����	�������,�������	���%�	��	��������	�
'�������#�
���%	��������!����!�	���	�
'���	��
����
�(������%��������	���%���!��������
,�������	������+
�������%��	�	���������%����������������)!����!�-�����	��!�
*��%	�����+��!����!���%�.��	������#�/��
!��	���	��
���	�!���������#�
%����
�&�����������*+���	���������������������'
!&(�%��	��#���%���!������!�
'�
�0�	�����1���%���	��

���"������������!
��!�#��	���%������%���
�	�
!�#�'�!&�
�	����������!�%���
����
�����!����������������%��
���0����������
����	�
�����!������!(�����
�������
�����%�	�	
&��!������1!����
!��	���
!�	��
�����!��!��������
���2���	�������������
'!
&��������!
��������-����!�/
�%(�'!
&��������!1#���1����'

�����
1!�%����#�
����
!�(�'!
&�����%��	�!�	�����&���������!���
������
!���3��1�������	
&��
%�	�����4(���%��������������%�!����%	������+
�	�,�����#(�������������!
��!�#�
&���	����
	�������
��!�1���
���
��������!����!�
'�����*+����

���"5����
���#�6�
��	���	��
����������������	���%�!%�
'�%�	����������
&���&���	�
����
!�������1���%���(�	���
!��%�1#�����789:;<=>?@A9BB=CDC:EFGH@I=F::<:J@
�
��&������ �����!���
�	���%�K0���	�
�	��
�/�	�%��������!
��!���	������
3.���4(�������	���	��
���	�!���!
�
	��	�!�'���������%�	������%��!
�
!��
��
'�
����
!�������%����������

���"�����
���	�
��!����	����(����������%���%��(������!
�
	�%���
�	�
!�#��0���	�
��
	����'������#��0���%	������0�	�������
 	�
!�#�����(�'��	���
�����&�����������
���
��	�1
!%������!�����
�	�����
������
	��%���������	����!�'
!���
��&��������%��
.������%�	�����
��%��
��!�	���������
!�������'
!&(�	�������%�&�		�
'���	��
	�(�
��%�������
 	�
!�#��0���	�
���	�1����������!	��	���%
&�������%%���
���
�����
1���%���(�������!���������'!
&������&&�%������!��(�
!��������&
!��%�	�����
����	���

�L�"2�����	�!���!%(�&#�'��%���	��!���
�	�	������������
	��
'������!���
�	�2�	����
!�
'
!�����%�	&�		�%�	���&�(���1�����	���!��
'���	��
�	�%�!���
��
'�����%�	&�		�%�
	���&�����!���!%��
���	�'�!	��&�����		���������2�	����
!�'
��%������MJ���������
��%��'!
������
'�����1���%���(���%�����	��1�����!
�
	�%��
�����'!
�������(����	�
�%%���
�����������%�
'�����1���%�����
��%������!�	�1	�!������N�

���"��������������������	��������	��1�����	����
&&
��%�'�����&������	&�'
!�
�0���	�
�	�1���%!��	�&#��������
���
����������&����
'������!���
�	�
��!����!����
����������	����	����'
!�%���%�	��6
����!(��������%�����1�'
!��&����%�����	������
����
��!����!���	���	������	�
!�#����� �
�'
!&(��������&
�
 ������!

'��
+
�	�,�����#(����&��������%���	�1
!%������!�����
�	�����
���	��
	��1#���!����
'�
��	�
��!����	����(�������(���%�����%�%�������%�%�	���(���
�������������%O������
�
!�	�
�������'�������������
��!����!���	�%�&���%�%����
���!��&	�����	�
89E?<PC@EQC@FBBC==F:E>?@;8:EG8=@<?@9:R8GE9:FEC@S9E@<?@:8E@F@DFEECG@EQFE@����!	�����
���������&�!��	�
'������!
�
	���1�'
!��&���

���"�	�1����(�������
 	�
!�#��0���	�
��'���	��
�!�	���������!��%
&�	�%�	�
��������!��

'�����&�����������
��
'��0�	�����%�����������������������	����	�	����������
����	�
'��������
&����1���	�
���
!���!����
	���
��&��!�����1���'!
&���1����
�
����
�	��6
����!(���%�%�	�����!������	�
�����������(�2�%�%��
��'��%����	��
�1��
������	��%�!����&#���	��(���!������!�#�'!
&��������!
������
���-����!�/
�%���%�
�������!1#���1����'

�����
1!�%����#�����
!����

Page 98



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�����������������������������"�

�#�$%����&������'����������������	����������
�!�(�)&����	�(����!�*&�!�(
�������)�
!�*���)��������+!
�������'���)����	��	�	���
!��)�*&���(���
)�	����(����
	�*(����)�������������������
������	�(����!��
��)����!�+
!��*���
��!
���)�*&���
	����*����
�)���
���+�%���!���
����
��������������

�,�$-
����!'����	��
��)�	�����!�	�������������!������
�����(����
+�����
+�����.�
��	�
������������
!�� ��	��!�&��
!��!�
+������/�	�����*���)����0������������!���
�	�
	������	�
!�&�
��!����!1���)����	�������
 	�
!�&��/���	�
���
��)�+�����
�!�	�����
����
!�������)�	������)������!�����
+�����)�������'�������+�����!������	�&���
)!����������	�)���
&�)��
���(
�+���������2
�����)�
���!�	&(���������+����!�	�
�!���!
�
	�)������)����+�!���!�.�
��	'����)�!	���)����	���

���$%����!�+
!���
����)������������!
�
	����
��)����������*�&���!(��������!����!�
��)������!�����
+���	��
	����)�������)�!��!����%���
�+����	�����������
�����	�3� 
�����)�3� 4�5�6����
���&�-�
����)��������)������������7���'���
	��

*2������	�%������	���
����*
�����

89:9;<=>?@AAB?;9C9;D>

���$�����
���&�3� E��	���	��
���	�!�����������)����
�(�����	��.�����)������
�����!
�����
((�������
��	�!����	���)�!�.��!�	���������)����
�(�����
������
+����+�*!���
��!�(�	�	��
������
�	�����!���	��
�	�*	�����������)�����*�+
!��(��
�
�)�(
�	�!�����
(����������������	��
���&���

���$�����!
�
	���!�����	��
�����/�	������!
��!�&�������(�&���!��)&�*���+���+!
(�
*!
�)*��)��
���������&��%����&������'������
���&����
�	�����/�����
���+��������*��
)�(
�	�!���)������	�����
���������&��	��
���!������*���
!�+���������&����*����%��
	������!��(	�����	'�%�	����
�!��	
����&����	�(����!��
��)��
��*���
��!
���)�*&�
��	����*����
�)���
���

���$%����!�+
!���
����)�������	�*2�����
���	����*����
�)���
�'������!
�
	�)�
)����
�(�����
��)��!
��)���������*����!!����(���	�+
!�)��������
���������&��%��
���
!)	�����������
���&�3� E���

FB;>GBH@>I<HJ@A>

���$�����
���&�3� 7���/����	���������)����
�(�����
�*������K�!
���!*
�������
�/�������
��+!
(������)
���
��
+����������	����������K�!
���!*
��	�
��)�*��
�������)�+
!�!�������)���!*
���(�		�
�	5�+!
(����#�+
!������(�		�
�	����
�
�	�!����
�5���)�+!
(����"'�)����
�(����	�
��)���	
�������������)�(���(�	��
��!*
���(�		�
�	�+!
(���!�������)��(�		�
�	��������!�&�	����(����	�
��)�	���

����
�����	������*���������)'�������
!)����������������!�&����!�!��&���

�"�$���!���	��
����!�&�	����(����*�+
!��(�'��
!���&�	�*	�����������)������
�)������
�
�������!
�
	����
��)��
(��&���������	��
���&��-
����!'��	������
���&����
�	�
����/�����
���+��������*��)�(
�	�!���)����������K�!
���!*
���	��
���!������*���

!�+���������&����*��'�%�	����
�!��	
����&����	�(����!��
��)��
��*���
��!
���)�*&�
��	����*����
�)���
����

���$%����!�+
!���
����)�������	�*2�����
����
�)���
�'������!
�
	�)�)����
�(����
�
��)����
!)�����������
���&�3� 7�'���
	��
*2������	�%������	���
����*
����

LMNOPQRSMMOPTQ

���$�����!
�
	����
��)�	���
!�������++��������	��
+����)����������������	����	������
�����!
�
	��������)�����!���U*����!�.�����&V��
(���-
����!'����*����
)�(
�	�!���)�����������/�	������!
��!�&��	�*��
����&���!������!�	���)�!)'��
!�

Page 99



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

���������	�����		�!"��
�#������"���!������!����$�
%�����
������!&��
!����������
�!
�
	����	�����
��"���"��
������������	�
'(������������'���%��	�
%��$$���
����
	������
�����
������!��
��$�'�����!������'���%����

�)�*�������������������������$	��
��#��
"��
������'
�!�%
!������!
�
	��&����!���	��
�
#������	#��
�	���!��	������'���%����
������
������
�
#"��+���!�����		&�����
�!
�
	����
��$�!�	���������#�
!�!"���
�
#���'���%��	�
%�����#���$�	����&���$�
���!�%
!�����!������#���$����������

,-./0123-.4

�5�*����
����6������%
��$�����������!
�
	����
��$��
��'�������!
�!�����
$����
�#���������������7!����8���&�����
��$����������'�"���!#��������!����!�
��$������!�����
%���	��
	����$�������$�!��!���������
�����	����������������
�!
�
	����
�%����	��!��������
!$��������������9!�#��
!�&�������	���	��
���	�!��
�����$����
�#���	��!��	"#����������
��
�������!����!���$���	�
!"&������$��������
	�!!
��$����'���������!
�#������$����$	�����	������&��������
���!���������
!�
$�	�
�!���������!
�!��������
����
��
!���������

���*�����!
�
	����
�%����	����������$����
�#�����������$�����#���!����
�
�	�$�!���
�	�$
��
����$����������������������	�
��$�'��$���$�$�
���!���������
���
!$������������������!�%
!�&�������������	�$�	#�		�$���

:;<==>?;;

6+@�AB�CD�

Page 100



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�
�

������������� !��
"����������#�$��
��%�&�����'(')��
*+�,���-��./�0��12 !�3���456�7-���78�75469�

�!�9!����: .���� �!:�;�*+�:<��8��.�:�.+� =�8:�:���

������ !�;�:�>�?@:<�,A�+�BCBD�

�
�������5�=>��66E4DB?CEFEBGEGGGBBBD�
4<��- ��<�2 A��H�I .J�.���!�K .:<�LA.��!M�2 J�H�N! K���+�5 �;H�
��!�K .:<H�0A.+�0OB�@64��
PQ R�������������#�$����$��������
��ST�
U�����R
�����$�V
����W�X������	�&���YZZ(�[���
�#��$�$\��	����������U������
�	������������	����#����
���

PQ R�������������#�$��]W�̂��_�̂���̀�a�_�b�"�
�U
�����	����������$�����
��
U�c��W�
�̂��
�
������c
�
�	��V
�������

PQ R������������
��d�U����eZeYe��
PQ R���$����
�#������
�
��$����$�#
����
��
U��f�����	�]���$��	���$�������
��
U���
�
$������$�$������	���

������ !�

Y�QR�������������$��#����$��

�������:� !��= .�� �:��

'�Q&�����������
��U
���
��������]����#�$��]W�̂��_�̂���̀�a�_�b�"�
�U
�����	������
c��W�̂���
�
������c
�
�	��V
�������R�������������
�������]g�����
������������
h�����
���

6.���J�!�.+�7�::�.��

i�Q"����������������������]#����$j�����V
�����������$
���$�X������U
��k���W
��Y�
��������
U�����������
�W�h����
�#����X����U
������c
�
�	���R���#������������
�����	���������
��
������W��
��
##����
�������$
���$��������$�l��������
���
���
����
���������
##������������$����
�$��	�W����

)�Q&�������$������
��
U�����m���
����X������	�X
���W�n��#��
�
�[����n��#��
�
\�
������]�����$����h���#]���'('i���$������#���������
���$�����
������������������
V
##����������������$�U�
#�����#��������������$�����
������������$������
]������
������
����
�����

%�QR�������������������
����$��������o�����c�����c���$�
��������U
�#���
��
��������$j�����$����
�#�����
��$��
��]��������
�������$����
�#�����������
o�����c����]�����������
��$����
�$����������	�����Y%)�	\�
U�����n��#��
�
��
R�����
����
������	���$�]W�����#��������������$�l�������
�g����U��]�������
���
�
�
#���
���$�UU�������
������
���

e�Q&�"����������"����W�����]������]#����$���������������������������V
������
�
����
��������
�������
U������������	����������
����$������U
����
����]g�����
�
�
��������
��
��������#������������
U�����$�����
��#�
��	���
������&���
�	������
��������������
���$�$��
��U
�#������
U������������	����������
�j����������]#����$�

�
Y�X������U
��k���W
���a
����h����
�#����X����h
��#����U
��c
��
�j�c��Wj�̂���������j�p�$��#j�d
��$���j�"��U
�$j�
R�#���$�j�R��UU
�$���$�q�	���'(''��
�'(iZj�&$
���$�'Y�̂�����'(')��

Page 101



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
��������������������������������

 !"# $%"&'"%()" ##)** +%!,"-$&.+/!"&'" ##) *" ������
��	���
0������������
��
��1���������2
�������
�	����1��������������������	��3
����������������1�	
�
���
��
������4���	�������0
����4��
55���	��
�3��5�1�������2
��������	�
�
55����1�
������	����4���1�	
�6�1
��
���
�	�1����������4���0�����		�
�����5�
�
���������7�	������
��1�
�����34�54������������	����������	����4����
����
����
���54��		�		5����
0�������������

89:;<=>>?@><

A�B����5�����		��	����������00����
0�������
�
	���
�����

CB����������������1������������
0���������D������1������	��00����
���
��
1�	������1�����������		��	E���1��

CB������������
�1���
�	�
0�����
�������	�
0�����F�������1�������	��F
�	��
34����	
��
0��
		�
0�������4�
��
���

���

G@9>H;><

IJKLKMNOLPKQRPSTTOKLKQMOPP

U�B�����������	�����
5���	�	������
0�����0
�5������	�
����V��	����F
5���
5���WD�
�
����1�7�	��
00�X�
�	��4�Y
�1�
������
��	����	�
0����	�
������
��������������
��53���
0�
�����	��������	�
��������1����
5���WD������	�1����
��1������������4�
�����������4��	������
0����	�
����F
	������0
�����������5����
0�	5����
W�������
�������	�����
5���	�����	�1D�����	������	�	
�1��	�	����������
�	���1�����53���

0����	��0
�5����
	������3���1���	��
������1��
���	�1��������	�D������1��������
��	��F
�	���Z�����3���1���	�������������
5���W������1�D�����F����D�����
[�����
����1���
�����1���������
�����	
������	��
0������������	���D��
��4���
3�����3���������1�������������5�		�
����������	���5�D������������3���1������	�
������������5������2
����F
�	����

\�B]()"̂&.+_̀*,!"/$ '%"*̀!%"&'"+&+�1�	������1�����������		��	���1�����	��������������
ab&$c)$"d!&* %̀&+"e&!#̀% *,"f.̀*/̀+-!" $)"̀+_*./)/"̀+"%()"*&_ *"*̀!%̀+-g"d"( h)"
��������������0
�5���	����������
	������3���1���	��
�3���
��1�	������1����������
�		��	D������1��������2
����F
�	���

���B����2
����F
�	����	�0
�5���4�����	
����
�����1D�������
�����	��������	��
�	�1�
����15���	��������3�
��E�����5������1�0�5�����
	���������1	E�3���	E�������1�4�
��1���5
�����4������	�35����1����������	����5����
������	����������	������	����

������
���	����
	����������\Ai���1�	�3	�j������
�	5����
W�3��������1�����1D����
3���5�������	�����
5������\Ui���

���B����	����0�������
0����	��3���1���	���1���1����4�1�����	�0�
5���������������������
������	����1��		
�����
�	���������
����4����
������������D�F���4�k
�1��
l����0��������
5�	�0�
5�����0
�5����	����1�0�����
��
0�������1����
	������
�
5���W���1����1����	�������
����
��
0����������1�	
�����������	����������	���
�
�����������������
��
0��������0����	�������1�����V���
����F������l��������l
5��

0�����
�����3���1���	������5
�����������������������	����1�1��������������
����	�
�������
����3��������������	��������������l����0���������	
��
5�	�0�
5�����
f.̀*/̀+-!,"-$&.#"h *.)m"f)̀+-" "$)c+ +%"&'"'&$c)$"(&!#̀% *"!%$._%.$)!m"ǹ%("
0�����
������1��		
������������	��2
�	�j�����4D�������1���0
�5����
	������	����
0
�5	�����	�������0
������1�	������1�����������		��	���1������	���������

�
��������������������
��Y�0��iUii���

Page 102



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
��������������������������������

	�������������������	��
���� ���	��
�����	����!�������
!�����"�	������"����������
�		��	����������

���#����$
����%
�	���	���������������	������	�
��&� ���"���'��
�	������"�
!���"�
������������ ����'���	������

!������������
������"�������	'���!����������������
��"��(���	�	�
�����������!���	�����
���$
(����"��
�(
���	��������!
�(���
�
	������ ���"���	'�	�����	�)�
�	��&�%
�	�'�����$
����%
�	���	�
!�����	������"�
"�	���'����"
���"���"���	������
������	������'�
!�(
"�	��	�������"�	�(�������
!
�(������	� (����"����������	����(����"�	��� �	������������ ���"�����	� �����
�
�������������	�
������&'���	���������&���"��
((�����&��%
�����'�����$
������
	����	���������	��&���
!�!
�(����
	������ ���"�����	��������"��	�����
��&�
���
��"��	�

"��
�������*�	��"��������+
�
������"������!
���
!��
����	����!���������

���#,����� ���"���	�
��������"����
(���*�(����� ��
!�����������	������������'�
��!��������
!�������!
�(���!�����
����	����	�������������
	�������
(���*��
-���������		'�����$
����%
�	���	�
!�	����!��������	������
!�������"�����
�����"�
"�	������!
����	�	����������"�!�����
��������������'��
�	�	������������	�
��������
����
	���	�����	
����
�����"������$
����%
�	����	
�	����	���	�
������"�
�		
�����������������������
�����"�	������"�����������		��	�
��������"���
�
(���*'���"��
���� ���	��
�������	����!������������!
�(����
	�������
(���*���	�
���"����&���
���"���"�������"�
������(�'������"����	
(�� ���"���	� �����
"�(
��	��"���"�
����	������"��
����������	������""���
�	'���(
���	���"�
��������
�	'��
����	�"�&�����
�������������!
�('�������������"�!
�(����	���	�
���� ���������!
��'�����������������"������������
!�������"����
(���*'��	�
������&���!
�(�"� &����������������
�	���'�����������������������&���"��
��	����
����������
!�����	���������!
�(����
	������ ���"���	��

���#�����������	���(����
�
	�	�������
��	����"�(
����
��
!�����$
����%
�	���
$
�	�.�����&'�����	����!�������
!����	� ���"�����
��"� ���
	�������	��
�����&��
/������(
��'�����"�(
����
��
!�����$
����%
�	���������	�������
!�
�����
"�	������"�����������		��	�
������	����������������	������	�
!����
�������
!
�(������������"��
	�������
(���*��

�0�#������
�
	����
��"��������������*�	�����	������ ���"�����������
�"������"�
"�������	������"�	����
!�������
�
	�"�"�������	��	������"�"��
���!�����	
(��
!�
����"�	��������������	���	�(����
��"� &��������
�	�1�	����
�'���
�"�	(�		�"�
����������!
������"�(
����
��
!������*�	����� ���"������"�������
��
!���
�
"������"�"�������	��
������	�(��	������

�2�#,!����(	����	'�������
�
	�"� ���"���	��
��"���������	���
�	�
��&��
�	�	������
�
��"� ���&������	� �� �����	�"���������
������	'��
��"�		�(������
������������
���� ��!
��"���(
	����&�����������	������	��
		� ����
������
���	
(��	����!���
"�����	�	�����	� �����
�����"��

!����(�������	�
���
����	���"����(��&	'����	��
	����!���"�����	���
���!�����
���!����������"�����&�
!�������������*����� ���"���'�
��
����
�����!
�(����
	������ ���"���	����������������	��������"���	������

�3�#4
��
���'�������
�
	�"�"�������	��
��"� �������'�����!
��� �"�

(�"�"�������'�
�"����!��"��	�%
�	�����
��"��	�������&��������	� 	��������&����������"�(
���
"
(���������������	(������"����������
��	�"����'�������	��%
�	�������
"����
�(�����
��"���	
��
(����������)�
�	��&�%
�	�'���������	�
������&���	�
����&� ���"����
�������
	������	���������
�������� ���"���	�������
������	�"��
�
!�����
���	����
	�����'��������	�����������������&�
!� ���"���	��������(���	�
�
"�&����������
"����
��
!���
�������"������"�"�������	��	���
�
	�"'��
��"�

�
���������5�!�����
�����
�
��
��670����

Page 103



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
��������������������������������

��
 �������!��������� ��� ��"����������������#�
$�����
�������	���������	����%�
$
�"%� �	������ �
������������������
$�������
�
	� � �������	��
�� �!�����

  	���������������������� ������������
$�����$
�"����
	�����%����#��
�� ��
��
	����
"$
���!�#�������������� ���	�������
$���������������		����� ��
�� � 
��������
�
���	�������	������������� �	����$���������

�&�'������������
$������!
����
������%�(��
�	� ��������������
�
	� � ����
�"����
�
�� ����"�����	����$�������
$�����)
����*
�	���� �����
�����$
�"����
	������
!��� ���	���������� ����
"���+%��	��
�� �	������ �����������		��	������
��
�
	����
�� ������$
�����	��������
�����
		�
$�	����$�������
$�����)
����*
�	��
�� ��� ������#��$$��������	����$�������
$�����
������
�� �	������ ���������	��
,������"
��%�������
�
	� � �������	��
�� � 
���������
���$�����������	�
������
����������
$�����	����!�����������
�� �!�����
"$
���!�#�
���
$��������� ����"�
���������������� ������������
$�����������������
�
	� � ����
�"�����
�� �
�����$
����
�$����������-�����
���#�./�������%��"
��	��
����������	%�	���	��
�
��
����%����	������� ������������������������� �������������� ��"����#�
$�
����012134567893:;<8=>?:21>@=><A�B
��
���%�����
�� ��
�$����������������"	�
$�
����,��"��
����
��
�	������� ���������������	�
���������
�"�����

CDEDFGHIJFKDLDJFM�

�N�'����*������	��
���� ��
�����	
����
$���
�
	� �*
�	������ ����� �	������
!�������������
�$���	�!��
������	�������
��	��� �� ��
�"���#���O���� �!�������
��!���!������ 
�	�����	������	���
������P���QR������
�������	� 
��"����������	�
�
���������
�	��� ��+���	�
�	��
���	� ���������
������	%�����	�������
��	��� �� 	�
��"� ��
���
�����������#��� �
���!�������������
�	���	�!������� �������	�����
�������!�����

���'���$��	��$�

�������%�*
�	�����
�� ����
��
������������

$������	%���
�
$�������
�
�� �!���
�!����

"	��� �����
������
���!� �

"������
���������

$�������
�
�� ���
�� ������
��#���� 
���
�����!� �

"%����	��

"��
�� �!��"
 �	�����
	�S���� �(�	����
���������������"����������
���
�����������
$������������������������
�

$��������
�� ���
�� ������� �	������!�������������� 
���� ����������
�������
���� ���� 
�	��
���!���!����

"	��������*������
�� �!��!��
������
	��� �� ����������������	����	�	���������	��
�� �!��
����
"��!#��
� ���
��
��
�"�� "�����
���������������	���	��
�� ��
��!������
��������
��"�
	����
�
� ���
����O���������������	��
�!���"�� � %�����
�� �!�����	
��!����
���O�����
 ������ �	����$�����
�	�
$�������� 
���
�!��	�!"���� ��������
�� �	����$#�����
�������
$�������� 
���!
����������������$�

��������
$�����!� �

"%����S������ �

������� �����	��,������"
��%�������� 
���
�� �!��	������#�
$$�	���$�
"�����
*������� �	
�(��"�	���	$�� ������
����

�����$�
"����	���� 
���
�� �!��
"���"�	� ���

���'������	��*
�	�����	��
�������	��
$���
�
	� �*
�	������ �����
��������
��
�
	� � ���������
�� �!����������� �������������������	��*
�	�%�����
 �	������!�������������
��	�	�$$�������#��� ���
���	�������������
�� ��
��!��
�� ��#�
���!���������	�	���%�������������
� ���
�	�
$�����
�������	�
$�������	��
*
�	���
�� ��
��!�����"� � ������
���!�������
���

���

���'�����$
��%�������
�
	����
�� ��
�����"�������������
� ���
�	�
$�����
�������	�
$�
����*�����
��������	��*
�	��!#����	
��
$��
		�
$�������#�
��
���

���-���

�
��T��#�-�����#������
�"��������%�� 
��� �������NNU�V���������P����"����� 
��� �!#�T��#�B���
�
������T
�
����
)
�������N�����	���NNU��
R�P�����"�����#�����������
��"����Q�V���������
�	��� �.+���	�
�	��
�W�	� ���������
������	%�� 
��� ��U�B�����
������� ��� ��� ����X�����#�������

Page 104



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
������������������������������ �

�
���!�"�
����#����	�$����
�%�����
�%�������
	�������
����&���
���
�����'
�%�
��$�#�����!�
'�����	���
��$�������������������
����
����%�����	������$��������
�
	���
����$���
(�%��!�
'������&
��������
������	������
����������
�
	����
��$�
�
�'��������������)�������������$��
�����	�������
��$�	�����*����	��
��$��
��
���	�����%��	�+������	����$���$��
��
�'�����������
���!�"�
���
��$����	���,
���
�����&
��������
������	���������	�$�
������
�����	�&������	�������
��%�����	�
������
��$�-�	��'!������
�$�������%�		�
��
������&�	�	�
'������''����
���������
�
�$���
�	���

./012345//12633

���7����	�������������
����
��	��������������	�&����%
��%������$

����
	�
�����
����&�����
���&��
��$�%���
��	���������
�����'�
����������
�	�����
��������
&�����
����&
���$�%���
��	���������	����	
��&�!����%&���$���������������&���
�
����������
������'!����	����
&��%	��������
������
%%��$	�����&�����
���
&��
��$�%����

'��
��	���������
�&��������$
����
�����'
��$���
����$����&������
+���
�	�
���
�	�����������	�����
��$�&���(���%��!�$�''�������
�����������$�
��$����������&�����
��*�����%����������
�������'�����$�	�$��
'��������������
	�
��$�&��������$
�����$���&�����
��������'
��$���
���8�����	�*������
'�����
�����������
��$���#���������	�%��������
'������%�����9������
��	�������	
�
���
%%��$�$��

���7��������������	����	���������	���
��	��
��$��%�����
���������&����!���$�����
'��	�&����!�
'����
����	�
���"
�����*��
����$�������	�&����	�&%����$��
�
	���
������	���������
�����
����	��
��	�''�������!��
%���������
�
����
%������
���%	�+�������$����'��$����

:;5<<=<>3?5;5<@1�

� �7����A
������
��������!���$�����$���������$�$��
���������'����!����	����!�
'�
�
�	�������$��	���#����$�&!�����B��%��
����"
�����*����������	�'
��C���!
���
D
���������
�%�����������	���	����$����	����������
�	����	���	*���������
���
����������$����'��$��
�	�������$�	����!��������������&�����������&�������A
������
�
�$�%
�	��������$�������&���'����!����	����!�
'��
�	�������$���������������$E�

'�����B��%��
����	������'
����
��������$��F
�������		*�������
�
	�$�
$����
�%�����
��$���
��$����
��$$���
����$�������	�������
��$��
����&����
�
���$	�&

	���������	����!�
'��
�	������$���
����
'��
%�	�������&����������
,
�
������������
��$�&����
�
%���&���'��	�����������
������
�	������
�����	��
��$��	�'������
�������	�'��$����
������
������
�
%!���

�G�7F
��
�����	������&�������	�$��&
�����������		�
�����������������%����'
������
����$�������	���$�+��
����������������	��������
���
�����������$�	�&%�����
A
�	������
��H�����%����������������
��$�&��	�����$����
�������
�$���
�����
	����
��
'��%���%��&�������		��
�$��
��$�&����%
��$���$��������$	���$����
����	��
��$�&���
�	������$���������%��&���	��'����%�������������	�����
��$�
��	
�&�����$	����$��+��
����������	��������
%�	�����	!	��%��	���
�
	�$�'
�������
$�����������
�$����
��$$��		���!��
�����	�
'�����I�������H�����	����B������$�
J�	����)��������+���	
��
����������������&���$�	���%���
��$�&������&���
'�
$�����������
������%�����	���������!��''������!���$�	�	�����&����!��B������%
��*�
������
�
	����
��$����
������������������$����
�%����
'������
�	�!�$����
��$�
���$��

�K�7"
�����*����	��&���'��	��
���������������������
'����%��
�������������
�$���
�	�

'�����
�������	�
'�����"�����
��������	��"
�	��$
��
��
����
%���������%�+�

Page 105



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
������������������������������ �

�����!
��"��
�����������������"������������
!������������"������
��
"�	������"�����������		��	��

#$%&'()*$%+

�,�-������
�
	����
�!����	����������"����
�.�����������"�����.��������
�
�	�"�����
�	�"
��
����"����������������������	�
��"�/��"���"�"�
�������������
���
�"��������������0
�	�1�����23�!
���������	
�	�	���
����/
��3������������
	�
��"�/��"�	.�		�"��

4565789:;55
<=>�?0�@A�

Page 106



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�

����������������
 ����������!�"��
��#�$�����%&%'��

()�*����+,-.�/0�12���3��4567�8����89�8657:�

,��:��4����-�,44�����;�()��<��9��-��,-)��=�9�,����

���������;,��>�?@�<�*A+)�BCBD�

�
������,44+��,��������-�+,��������044�,+�6�=>�077E5DB?CEFEBGEGGGBBBD�
5<����,�<�2�A��H�I�-J�-�0���K�-�<�LA-���M�2�J�H�N��K�+�)�6�,;H�
0���K�-�<H�/A-)�/OB�@75��
PQ R������������
�����!�"����"�������R
�����"�S
����T�U������	�$���VWW&X������
���YZX�
[%%���"� ���"����\X���"�����]
����̂
����!����$���VWY%X������
��%#&_#̀��

PQ R������������
�����!�"��aT�b��c�b���d�e�c�f� �
�g
����g
����g��������"�
g��
�����	������
h��T�b���
�
������h
�
�	��S
�������

PQ R���������������	������������g�����
g��������	����!����
��g
��"�!
����
��
g��i�����	�
a���"��	���"�������
��
g���
�"������"�"������	���

���������

V�QR������������
��g
���������"�
g��
���������g���"��

6�,�����

%�QU�����������������	����������
�!���T�!����������
����i��������j
�����X�����
U������	�U��������̂��"�����_UÛ �̀�"������������
����!�T�a������"�"��	��������
����T���
�����a�����"�������
��a�T���"������aT������"���������T�����T��	�
g
���
�����
�����������������T�
�������"��i����������������������
������

[�Q$������
�����������
�"�!
���������a���"��	���"���������
�"������	������
"��!����"V��k�������������X�����k������
�������
��������"�"�����������
���
g�
�����������a���"��	��
��"��
��a��!���	���"��	������a���g
��"������������
�
��"�
����!�������
��
g���gg�������"���	��l�����T��
�!���	�����	�����������
���������

'�Qm
��
���	������"��!�����X����������������g
�����"�
������"���	��
g���������
"������	��g
��������a!����
��
g���������"�����!���R��T��
�	����
��""�����
�����g����
!!�����!�"��aT����������
���k������
����"��


����
����
��������
"�������
g�������!��g
��������"������	��������T�����
��"�aT������
������
�����"�
�
������
���������
g������������a���"��	%���

#�Qj
�����X��������"���	���"����
���g
���������
�
���X�����S
�����������������������
�g�������
�����"������	�������
g��i�����
����l�����T�����
��"��������
��!���	����
�	�����������
�����
���
g���������	���������R���������������������
�����������
nopnqrsnotusvrsusvwuxyzoqn{|}u~y}nsnyourtrno}susvwu{y}}uy�usvwuw�n}snotu�zn{pnotu
�������������"���"��
�!���	���
����"�����T������!���������
��"�a���
���a����
R���X����T��������
��"��
����"��������������
g����������
���k������
���

\�Q�{svyztvusvwuxyzoqn{|}u�����!������		��������������������a�������!������
��
�
���a������	
���
���
��������������
�
��"�"����
�!�����k���"�����
�����a���"�

�������gg����
g�����"�!
����
����"���
�
��"�����"������	��
�������
��
"���	����"�������	�������X�����������������"������������
g������������"�����
�gg����
�����������	��
�"���
���
g�����
���������
g�R���j�������"�R��������

�
V�$��������g��$UU�R'%V&���%%�[%WZ#&&��
%�U������	�$��������
����g��\Z\\V��

Page 107



�������������	�
���
�����������������

�

�
����������������������		�	���	������ �������������������������������

!������
������	����"����#$����� ����	�	��%���&��	��&����&�&������'�	�����	�
����������

(�)*�����	��+��#�����, �'��� ��&����	����������������'��������	����	������ $�#� �
����������#���	�	�&����	���&��� ������������%��� �-�� �����%���	��&�"�&��'�	��
���%��'�&���%���������������#������� '�����������	�#���	����#������������.	������
���������� �����������&� �������	�����������������#������������.����� �#� ��#�������
����������������%����$��#��	$�	���%���&�� � ������'�	�����%���	��&�����	�������
�� '������&�%$������������

/�).��'������#��&�������������	��������	���%�����&��	 ����	�%�$��.���&������	�����
	���� ���	��&�&������'�	����������� ����������&����� �$������%��	��� '����&0�
����	�� ��� &��������&������'�	�����	0�	����	��������$��	&����� �'��� ����
��	��&� ����	���	&������������	������ �#� �������	����	��  �&��		������ $�� �
�����&��1��	����	���%'����	�����������������

2�)
�� �#� �0��	 ����	�%���%������� � ������	���	��		������ $�� ������&��1��	���
����	�������  �&��	&��	���� &��#����������	�����  �	��&��

3
43536789:33

.;*�<�
=>�
�

Page 108



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�

������������� !�
"����������#�$��
��%%�&����'(')��
*+�,�-  .��/��01 !�2�/3��-4536�

�!�6!����7 .���� �!7�8�*+�79��:��.�7�.+� ;�:7�7���

������ !�8�7�<�==�,>�+�=?=@�

�
�������4�;<��33A5@=B?ACA=DADDD??=E�
F�!8��8G���!7�7 �H�!I�7 !�J� ��K�L�7 !K�/>.+�/FM�=L,�
NO P�������������#�$����$��������
��QR�
S�����P
�����$�T
����U�V������	�W���%XX(�Y���
�#��$�$Z��	����������S������
�	������������	����#����
���

NO P�������������#�$��[U�\��]
���$�̂ ��
��	����������$�����
��
S�_��U�\���
�
������
_
�
�	��T
�������

NO P������������
��̀�S����aXaba��
NO P���$����
�#������
�
��$�����
��	�����U�$�����[�$����������
��
S�S
���$������	����$�
�
##����U�S������������������
�����$����
��	���$����$������	��

������ !�

%�OP�������������$��#����$��

3.���c�!�.+�-�77�.��

'�Od��e���#[���'('fg�����h���
����V������	�V
���U�i��#��
�
�Y����i��#��
�
Z�
����������$��P���#�������������������$�����
��
������U��
��
##����
����U�
�#�������
���
S�����������$�i��#��
�
���������������������#���[�����

f�Oi������#
��g�
��'%�\�����'(')g��S���������������������[#����$g�����T
������
�$
���$�����e����
�#����V����e
��#����jV������S
��k���U
��l�YeVeZ��P���
mnopqrstuvuowxruurnpuv�������������
�
�����	�����������
�������
S�����eVe���$�
��������������������$����
��
������U��
��
##����
�������#�����������������
���������#���[�����

-��!�6��>���

)�OP���#����������������

NO�����SS����
S�������
�
������
��
������������
����
�g���	���U���S��U��#����
�����������Ug���$�����������������$������������
S���������y���$�

NO��������������
�
��$�$����
�#�����
��$���
��$���������[��������	�
�
�$���
���S
��S������
��������g��������	��$��
��������������$��$��S
��
��������������g���$��������[�����$��$����[���$������	�y�

NO��������������
�
��$�$����
�#�����
��$���
��$���������[��������	�#�����
S
��������
��	����$��
������
��
S���S������$����U����	y�

NO��������������
�
��$�$����
�#�����
��$���
��$���������[��������	�#�����
S
��$�	������
���������Uy���$�

NO��������������
�
��$�$����
�#�����
��$�[������z��
����[
���
O �

Page 109



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
 �������������������������������

!"#$%&$'

()*+,-)./*,)0123-31+,

4�5����6
������	����	�����������������	�����	����� ���
7��8����9�� ���	�����

 �������9�� 
��:�:��	���:����
�� ��
�� �;���
������
�<�����
������� �	�:�������
:����
�8�������=���	�
��6�
	�
>����8�� �����?����	��		�		�:��	�;�����
7�
�

:�@����ABCDECAFGCHIJEKDLMNCOPGGECQRSKGCTJUDACSEUCQAPSAGVBCWXYZCSEUCNGP[GNC
�	���7
 8��� �� ����
��	������?���	��
����:������������� ;���� ���
7�\� 9���	�]�
�������	��:����7��:��	����� ���
7�@������������:�7������̂�� �	������
�	�:� ����
:��� 8�����
��	�������:��
��������������:�������	��;9������
88����9�7
 �
��7
 8��� �� ����
�]�
������ ������	]�:
������������:�
��� ����������	��

_�5��� ���	��
�	�;	�����������:�����;�7
 ��8���
�:�8
�	� ��������������������	����
�	�	� ���	��
�
����	����� �@�� �8���	��̂��� :��		�
7������� ������ ����	�
� �		�:�����
�����9�7��������	]������
		�
7�	����
����	������ �	����7 
8�����
� 
�
	����
��:��
��;�� ������:�;9�����@���������� 
��	�
������� 8	�
7�@������9�
��	���� �������� �	�����
7���9�
��� ���7
 8��� �� ����
�
�8����9�	������������
���� �����:�	������7 
8������������	����:
�	��
��<�	��79���	��
		���������
���̀��
7�
����	��;��	��:�	�
 �7������

a�5����	�;8����:�����	�:��������� 
�
	�:� �� ����
����� ��]�����
���7� ��� �
���
����
���
���:��������9��@�����:����9�� ��������:
��8����� ��� �:�;9�
b
�� �����c����b
�� �����:
��8���d������ 	��
�;����@�
����
��7
 �����@�����:�
���9�� ��]��������� 
�
	�:���9
����
������:���� �
�	��@���8�����e
���� ]�����
��9
�����:�����	��@���8����	���:��������� ��	����
����:�
������� 
�
	�:�
���:	�����������	��̀�	�������:

 �� 
�
	�:�	
7�����:	��������6
�	�@�����9]�
��� ���	��
�7����������7
 8���
�� ��� :����������9
���
7������ ����f� ��� 8
 �]�
��� ���	��
�� 
�
	�:�8������	8�;�7
 ��8���
�	��� ��������:�����:���9
��]��
 �
��	�8�����8������:�8�������������

g�5��� ���	��
�	�;	�����������:�����;�7
 ��8���� ���������
������̀�	�����	����9�
7�
�@�����:����9�	�������:������� ������ 
�
	����
��:��:: �		���9�	�
 �7�������
@������������
 �@������������� 8	��?����	���� �7
 ���
��;����:�8
�	� ���:������
����� 
�
	����
��:� �	�������;���� �� 
��	�
������� 8	�
7�@������9�
 �@�����9������
	����;����
����
�h��
 ����������
��:� �	����������� ������� �� ����
����� 
��	�
�]�
��� �;9�����;���7��	�
7��������
��:����� �9�
�������������
		�
7������8����9�

����	����
��7
 8��� �� ����
����	�������

��5?���� �7
 ���
����:������������ 
�
	����
��:������������������;����77������
��

����	������ 
��	�
���?���
�7����	�����������
�����	�i��j_���:�i���a]���:�
�
�����	�k>�
����:�e�
��
7�����\� 9�l���� 9������
�8������������a�cl��d��
�������
����� ]����	���
�����	�	�����
���	� �������� 
� �����	����]��9��]�
@�����9���:�:�	� �;���
��
7�����		�;���� ����	����h��
�� 
�������:���������
�̀�	������ ;���� ����	����	���:���������
 ��
7������@�����9���:�����		�;���
 �� ����
��	����	h���:��
���	� ����������� �	�:�������:����
�8����
:�8
�	� ���	�����������;���	���:� :�
7���9
��]������:���������7
 �
����	�����
� 
��	�
���?����	
��
�7����	�������� �� ��������
7�����f �8��
 �]�������	���	�
�
�� 
������̀�	�����
����	������

m3nop.q,-.r*sq�

���5k����:���������
��:��������	�
���: �����9��
����
88
:�������:�8��� �����
	����	]�������� ���	����	�7
 ���
������:���
�7
 �����
��� ��� �����
�	������
: �����9	��
��:�;������ 
̀�8��9��
�����<�����
�	�
7�=���	�
��6�
	�
b���
��

Page 110



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
 �������������������������������

!�
	����"�#���	�
��!�
	�
$������%�!�
	�&���� ��#���	�
��!�
	����	
�'��"	�
�
�� "	�����	
�������
�	�����"����
��"�	�� ����"
�'���(

���%�� 
		���&�������
��
�	�����"����
��"������	������(

���%�� 
		���	������� 
		����	� �������
����
�
��"�'���� %���
	���
���������		�	� �����)
	�����"���$������%�!�
	���

���*��� ���	��
�	�'	�����������"�����'�(
 ��+���
�"�+
�	� �����
���������	��
��"�
	�(��%����� ���"��� �		��������
����������"�+��� ��������	����� 
,�+��%��
�
+��������-�����
�	��.�������'	�����
(���%����"������
�"�+
�	� ���������
�"�/�������	�'����%�	���%	���"�(
 �� "���	�'����%������
��	��
��"�'��� 
��"�"&�.�
����
��'���� ��������������� 
�
	����
��"��
�����������'�%��+��"������( ���
(�
��
(�� �((��&��
 � �	�������������������'��� �	��
(��
�(�����'��������� �
�	�
������%��	� 	&������"����
��� ��������	&��%���	�	���"���"�	� ���	&��� ������ �%�
����" �����	����������� 
�
	�"��/�����"����%�� ����

���*��������������" ��	�+%��������
���
�
��� ���� '%�� 
�� ���	������"� ��������		�
( 
+�" �����%	��� 
		�����(

���%��0
���� &�+��%�
(������,�+���	�"
��
��
��������"�+��� ������  ����+���	&���"���
	�������"
�� ���
�����	����
� 
,�+��%��
�+��������-�����
�	���

���*���� �	���&������������	�����	��� ���%�'
��"�"�'%���	�+�����
	����"� ����(�����
(�
���
������������ ��
�����'����
(�����(

���%���"������"-�������� ��� ��	� �����
1
��
��2
�"�3���
"�	��!�� ����������"����������%
���(
 ������ 
�
	�"����%�� ���
�����������4
�� �����"
��+������"�����	�����������,�	�������"�	� ��������		��
�
���� �� ����
����� ����
��"�'�� ������"&��������	���
	���
������ 
�
	�"�
" �����%��
�	� �����
������

���*����� 
�
	�"����"	������������"
�	��
����"��������%�����(��������
�����
� 
�
	�"� �� ����
����� ��&�	����(
 ����+������(����� ���������
���+
	��
(�����
	�"��'
��"� %��
���
�������������������	����	�	������������%
�������������������
4
�� �����"
��+�������� �%�	����	���(�������	��
�'��� 
��"�"��
�����'
��"� %&�
0
���� &����	�	�
�	�����	��"���������
����"��	�567897:;<8=;>?;>@;�
������ ������
����
��"� �������������,�	����&��
 ��	���%�� 
�
	�"�(�����	����(��"������ +	�
(�
�������
 �(
 +&���"��
�����(��������	�"������"������������/�
����
���

�A�*.����%������&�����(����
(�����+���� ��	����������� 
�
	����
��"� �	�����������
� ����
��
(�����/�����"����%�� ��������%��
�'��
(���� ��	�"���� ����
���
�����" ���
�
+�� �"��
������,�	�����	������
���.�����	��
���,�&�����	������%����������" ���
�
��"�'����� �	������ ����������
�����	����
 ��,������( 
+���&��
��������%����
�����
�����
(���� 
��������������	��.����	��
��'����"�+
�	� ���"������+��	� �	��
�
� ������
 �+��������	���� �	�	�� ���
�� �/�� �"��

�B�*�������"	������������"�����	��� +��'���'�
�����������
������" �����%��.������
�'	�����
(���	����(�����
����"����
 "� ��
�� ������	� (�������� �"�	��� ���
��
�
����������%&�����!
�������
�	�"� 	������(� ��� �+��	� �	�+�%�'������		� %��
0
���� &�	����+���� 	��
��"�'���
�� 
���"�'%���	����'����
�"���
����

�C�*D�� ���&������ 
�
	���(���	��
�"�+
�	� �������������
��"��
�� �	�������
���������'��� �	�	��
�������%�	�(��%������ +	�
(��
���������
�(����	�'�������
 
�"��	� 	���"���"�	� ���	&������"��������" ����$� ��� +
 �&������ 
�
	���(���	�
�
�"�+
�	� ���������	���� �	�	��
��"�'��+���+�	�"�
 ��((�������%�+�������"��

�E�*.���� �(
 ���
����"������������ 
�
	���(���	��
�"�+
�	� �������������
��"��
��
 �	����������������'����� +��
�������%�	�(��%��.���
�(����	������F����
�����	�
0�
�&�0��
����"�0�B
����������
����� &����	���
�����	�	�����
���	� ����
	���	(���
 %���%
���(
 ����� �	�"�������"����
�+���&������ ��� "��
���"�	� ����

Page 111



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
 �������������������������������

��!�������"�	�#��"$��� ��� ������ 
��	�
�$�����		�#
 ��������	���!���!�	� ���	$�
��!�
����	����	������!����%&'()*+,-./0(12/1*+1.��

34567849:;7<=>>?@7

���A������ �B���� ��	��� 
		�����	��������������	�B����������
������C	�����
#����
��� 
� �����	� ��"���!

 �	����	����#�������	������
�	$��������� �����
����
�$�
�������!�!�����
#����	�B�����	�����
�������� �� ��������
�	�
#������ 
�
	�!�
!�������	��
��!�C��	���!���������!���
#�������	�B���$������	� #�������� �
! ���������!�����
�� ��	��D���!�������
������ ���
#���	�B������

���A����
��������������������	�����	�!������E����!�E�������	�FEEG�
�����	�B���� $�EE�

CH�����
������ 
�
	����I#�����J
��������!�C����B��!�!��
�� ������ B�		�
�$�I�
�
��������EE�	
�������� ���
BB����B�����
�!���
���
��
�� 
�����	�B���� $�
��
������������ �B
����
#��� B����!�!����
�B���� ����	�#
 ���"��D���	�
�	�
 �
C���!���	��
����� �� �
#������ 
�
	�!�!�������	$����
 !� ��
���	� ������	�#��"�
#�
�������� �	����"���!������������ �	�	�
#���C������������

���A���� �	���	�
#���!������!�	� ��"��
��!� �	���������	�C	����������������
�����
� 
�
	��$�#
 ��D�B��������� B	�
#�����	����$�	��������!�#

�� ����
#�C�����#
 B�
��!�����
�� ������"
����J
�	�K�����"$�I�����
��C���� ��������������� 
�
	���
�
��!�C��#��!�B������"�����	�B���	������C�#
 ��B�$���!���� �#
 ��I��B��
��
�
�������
����������	�B���� ��
����
�!���
���L� ��� B
 �$�I��B��
���
�������
�
�B�
	�����
�!���
���
� �	� ������ B����!�!����
�B���� ����	���������C	�����
#���
���� ���!��
���������H�	��#�����
����

���AI���� �#
 ���
����!������������ 
�
	���#���	��
�!�B
�	� �������������
��!��
��
���������C�"��� B�B�������� �	����"��I���
�#����	������E����
�����	�M�
����!�
NO�
�$�������	�����
���	� ����������� �	�!�������!����
�B����!�B
�	� ���	�
�������C���	���!� !	�
#���"
��$������!�������� �����
�	����
#�!����
�B�����
�����
	�  
��!����� ����I����	
��
�#����	����������
CH������	�
#�����L �B��
 ���
�
�������������!�	����!������	��

PQ4;4R9:;746S74>>:4;46R:7

���A����	�  
��!���� �	�!�������� ����	��
B� �	�!�
#���
�	�
 �"�� 
�� ���	$�
� �!
B������"�!������!�����������!� 

#	$�	
B���������C��!�# 
���� 
H����
�	�
��!� 

#����
���	��C
������ �����!

 	���!������ ����� ���	����� ��� ��	�B��
!������!�#
 B	���
���L������"�J�
	�����������������	"BB�� ���������� �����
!����
������	��
#�# 
�����C��	$��������� B
��	�����������	�  
��!����!������!�
#
 B	��������� ����L� ��� ��� B
�"��	��������!��� 
���������	��
#��
�	�	�����
B��� ���	������!����C ����
 �$�C ����!��������$���!����!
��� 
�
 ��
�	��

���A����� 
�
	�!�!�������	��
��!�C����T�	�
 �"	$��������!��C
D�!
 B� 	�	����������
����# 
��� 

#�������
#���	�� �!�������!� 

#$��
�� 
��!�����
BB
!���
���������
���� 

#�	���������������� �!�����������
��!�C���
BB��	� ������������ C"�
� 
�� ���	$������ 
�
	�!� 

#��������	�	�������������
��!�C��B����	����� ������
����	����
�� �������
#� 

#�#
 B	��������������!� �� �����

�T�A���	��#���
 	��
��!��
BC�����
� �	����������
������"���!�!�	� 
�
 ��
�����
����� ���������
B�� �	
���
�� 
�� ���	������������	�  
��!����� ����
J
�	�K�����"$������ 
�
	�!�!�������	��
��!������ ����
�� �
�	���!�
!�	�
 !�����
�������!� ���� ���� ���!������ �����
#������ ��$�!�	����������	��

#�	�B��� �B��� ���	���

Page 112



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
 �����������������������������!�

�"�#��������������	����	�	�������$�	������ 
�� ���	��������	�  
��%����� ����
��%�
&���&����
��
�	� ����%
 '� 	���%� ��� '����%�%����
�'���� ����	��(
���� )�
��� ���	��
�	�&	�����������%�����&�*
 ��'���
�%�'
�	� ���������	����� 
�� ���	�
�
��%�'�������� �+�� �'���	�
*�����,��-�������
��������,��-��� '��	�
���� ���
�	
�%%���
�	��
����� 

*�
*���%��������
�	�)�	���� ����	�%
��
������.�
��� ���
 �	��
��%��$���%�&�.
�%�����������
*�����$�	����� 

*�	�
����
���
� ���������������
�������* 
��	���������.���

�/�#0���� �*
 ���
����%������������ 
�
	�%�%����
�'�����
��%��� '�������� ���� �
��%������ �����
*������ ����0���
�*����	������1����
�����	�(�
����%�23�
���
�������
����� )����	���
�����	�	�����
���	� ����������� �	�%�������%����
�'����
'���	����
	�������
�� �&���
���
�������� ���� �
*�����	�  
��%�������� 
�'���)�
�����%������ 
������	�%�	������%� 

*��.��4���%�%
�	��
���%�� 	��.��� '�����
��� ���� ���%��
��	�����
*�����&
 
�����

567896:;<=:>6?@?AB<C:7;?BABDB69:

�E�#����� 
�
	�%�����	�%
��
����%���������� ���*
 �����	�
 ����
*�&��	�*
 � �*�	��
��%� ��.���������������������	����	�	������&���	�
 �����
��%�&�����
''
%���%�
����������� �� ��'����.�� ���
*������ 
�
	�%�%�������	��,��������� �����
�	����
&�����������*

�� ����
*������ 
�
	�%�&�����*
 '���%�����	�F��
*�������
�)�0��'�
	���	*��%������&���	�
 �����
��%�&�����
''
%���%�������������� �������
*������
%�������)���%���� �*
 �����	�'���� ��
��%�&���
�� 
���%�&.���	����&����
�%���
����

���#G.�
���
&	� ����
�	���%�������������� &.�� 
�� ���	�	�
 ��&��	������������ �
* 
�����
 �� ��'����.�	���������������������'����
*�&��	���
�������*

���.�

��	�%��
*��
������
��%�.	��
��%����	�����
&	� ����
��
������*

���.)����	��
��%�
&���
�%�**� �����
������ ���������	������
���������	�  
��%����� ����

���#0���� �*
 ���
����%������)�	�&H�����
���	����&����
�%���
�)������ 
�
	�%�
%����
�'�����
��%�� 
��%���������&����  ����'���	�*
 �����	�
 ������%�
�
������
��
*� �*�	����%� ��.�������0���
��%����
 %������1����
�����	�(�
�)�
(��
����%�(�"
����	
*� ��	����	���
�����	� �������
�	���	*���
 .��  ����'���	�
*
 �����	� �������
*����� �	�%�������%����
�'������

IBJB<C:KL<=BDBL<9:

���#�����
���.�M��(��	���	��
���	� �����������%�������	��
'��.������N6?O<B?;A:
OL89B<C:9D;<=;>=9:P:<;DBL<;AA@:=69?>BQ6=:9R;?6:9D;<=;>=�S�(TU���%�� ��&������
�
VWXXYZZ[\]Ŷ���%��%����&���	���%� %������ ���S�U�
*�_���%����̀�������
�	������
����������	����	����������� 
�
	�%�%�������	��
��%��
'��.�����������(T)���%�
��� ���	��
�	�&	�����������%�����&�*
 ��'���
���%������
��� ��	���0����.������)�
���	��'���� 	��
��%�&���
�� 
���%�&.�	����&����
�%���
�	��

���#0���� �*
 ���
����%�������	�&H�����
�	����&����
�%���
�	)������ 
�
	�%�
%����
�'�����
��%�� 
��%���������&�����������
�%���
�	�*
 �*��� ��
������ 	)�
������� ������ � ��� %��
� ��������	���%� %	��0�����
 %	�����������
���.�M��(���

aBCBD;A:?L<<6?DBJBD@:

���#�����
���.�M��b��	���	��
���	� �����������%����
�'�����	��+�����%������
����� 
�����
''�������
��	� ����	���%� �+�� �	���������%����
�'�����
������
*����*�& ���
�� �'�	�	��
������
�	�������
���.��$����	���������� �����
������
�	�
�����&��
�� ���
������%��''�%�����.�����		�&����
�����
 ��� 
��%� 	������

�
�������
�����%�b
��� .����������S,��� ����� '����%������
�'���U�S2�����%U�- %� ����!�S�	��'��%�%U��

Page 113



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
 �����������������������������!�


������ 	�"
������
������ 
�� ���	����� ���	��
�	�#	�����������$�����#�%
 ��
"���
�$�"
�	� �������������� 
�
	����
��$��
"��&���������	��
���&���

���'(
���� )��	������
���&����
�	�����*�����
���%��������#��$�"
�	� ���$������	����
�
���������&��	��
��� ������#���
 �%���������&����#��)���$������������	�����	��������
����	��#��	��$� �	�$�������� ���������� #����
����
�)�+�	����
� ��	
����&�����
� 
�
	����
��$��
���
"��&���������	��
���&����� �%
 �)����	�"���� ��
��$�#��
�
�� 
���$�#&���	����#����
�$���
���

�,�'+���� �%
 ���
����$�������	�#-�����
���	����#����
�$���
�)������ 
�
	�$�
$����
�"�����
��$�� 
��$���������#����  ����"���	�%
 �$��������
���������&��+��
���
 $	�����������
���&�.��/���

01234156378596:3

�!�'�����
���&�.��;���*����	���������$����
�"�����
�#������<� 
��� #
�������
�*�������
��% 
"������$
���
��
%����������	����������<� 
��� #
��	�
��$�#��
�������$�%
 � �������$��� #
���"�		�
�	=�% 
"����>�%
 ������"�		�
�	����
�
�	� ����
�=���$�% 
"����,)�$����
�"����	�
��$���	
�������������$�"���"�	��
�� #
���"�		�
�	�% 
"��� �������$��"�		�
�	�������� �&�	����"����	�
��$�	���

����
�����	������#���������$)�������
 $���������������� �&���� � ��&����� ���	�
�
���� �&�	����"����#�%
 ��"�)��
 ���&�	�#	�����������$������
�$�������
������
� 
�
	����
��$��
"��&���������	��
���&��

�?�'(
���� )������
���&����
�	�����*�����
���%��������#��$�"
�	� ���$����������<� 
�
�� #
���	��
��� ������#���
 �%���������&����#����+���� �%
 ��	����
� ��	
����&�����
� 
�
	����
��$��
���
"��&���������	��
���&)���$����	�"���� ��
��$���� �%
 ��#��
�
�� 
���$�#&���	����#����
�$���
���

�>�'+���� �%
 ���
����$�������	�#-�����
����
�$���
�)������ 
�
	�$�$����
�"����
�
��$����
 $�����������
���&�.��;�)���
	��
#-������	�+������	���
����#
����

@ABCDEFGAACDHE

���'����%�������������� 
�
	����
��$�� 
��$���������#���	��� ���
��$�	�����	��
�
��� #&�� 
�� ���	��	������� ���"���� )���� ��������
������������� �%
 �
 ������	��
����� 
�
	�����

���'����/
������������	����������� 
�
	����
��$� �	������������
		�
%����
��
��
�
��������������#����)���$�+�%��$��
� ��	
���
��
�	�$� �
��� ��	�������
����������	����	�	����������� 
�
	�$�� ��
	� �#�����������
��$�$����� ���
#�
$��� 	��&�����������(
���� )����	���	��
��#���� 
#�	��&�$�"
�	� ���$)���$�
����� 
�
	�$����$	�����������
�%����	������������$����������&
���%
 �����
�I�����$����&�� �������	�"���� ���� �%
 ����� ���	��
�����������%��
� �
%�����
� 
�
	����

���'�� �����
%�
��� �"���� 	�
%��
��� �������#���� ��	�$�#&����� �	��$��� ���	��
(
���� )��	�+��"�$�	"�		���������������
������"�����		��	)���$��
�	�$� ���
��

%����	��"���� 	�������
������ �"&�$���	�
�)�����	��
������		� &�%
 �"���
�
�$$ �		����"�$� ����&���

���'��������������	����	�	������JKLMNOPQRSJTMQUMJKLMVQWXYSZ[\MYQXYLRX\MYQWZ]MKÔLM
#������� �%��$���$�
�� �
"��$� ��������$��� "�����
�����	���_
 �������
�$�����

%�$
�#�)��������$�����
%���������������������
��#&����
�����������������
 ��&�
$
�	��
���%%����"&��
�	�$� ���
��
%��������������"� ��	�
%������ 
�
	�����

Page 114



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
 �����������������������������!�

"#$%%&%'()$#$%*+($%,(-.%*#/0&.%(

���1���������2��
3�4��� 2�����
�5�����6
��������	����7����
�4�2
�	� ������3����
8�� �	����8�
3�4����� �7����
�	����	���	��9
��
����������4
���
��
3������������
:� �������5�����6
������	����	����������	��
���7����
�4�2
�	� ������3����8�� �
	����8�
3�4����� �7����
�	����	���	����������;�7�33� ��<
�������		5�78��� ����
3�
��������	��=
�	���������� 8���	�5�����6
������������	�������� �� �������4���>�
3�
����9 �2��
 ���	�������4����������������4
�	��
��4�	��������	��
	���
���

���1��� ��� ���
�� ��	�
 ��		��	�
3��� ������ ��2�
 ������������ 
��4�������� �
 ��	
���
� �3�	������� 
�
	�4�4����
�2�����?�����	���� ��2	�����	5�����
9 �2��
 ��	��	�
������������������� 2�		�
��	�
��4�7��� ����4�����		���8�
�4�� 	���2����	�
3�4
����	
��
��4�	����3������8���4�4�2
�	� �7�8�
������������
7���3��	�������		�		�4������	�������
�����	�
3�����9 �2��
 ���������	���
��
����

�@�1�����
�����	����������������� 
�
	����
�3����	�� ���� ���8��
�	�	��������������

7A������	�
3�����9 �2��
 ���
��������������4�	����4���4�7�����3��������	5��
�
� 
������B�	�����
����	����	5��
�� 
��4��	�3����4�	����7�������		�3
 ������	� 	�
3�
� 
�
	�4�4����
�2���5���4��
�2���2�	������	�
���3
 ��
�3����	�7�������
��4�	� ���	���4��������	���	�	���5�?����
 ��
��	����3��������������
����	��
�4����3��4��
���8��
�3����	��

�C�1����� 
�
	����
��4�� 
��4��3
� �4�������	���4���� �3
 ������
��4��
�� �7�����
�
DEFGHIJJKLGMNGEMIHOPQGRPSGHIJJMTDGDEFGQMUFTPVFPDWHGMXYFZDOUFGDMGHOQPONOZRPDKLG
7

	������	����8�
3��
2�	���	���	2����	���5�����
��4�7��7�����
��� ��������8�
[�����8��=
���� 5����	��7���3��	��
��4�7����2���4�78�����	�����
3�����
4����
�2����� 
�
	�4��?���� �3
 �����������2���4���������
����	��2���� 	��

�!�19� ��� ���
�
2���7���3��	��
��4�� �	��4� ���������
�	� ����
��� 
��		5�7���
���	���
��4�7����2�
 � 8������� 
�
	����
��4�4����� ��44���
�����
�	��
�4�
�B���4��� �����
�������
�
285�7������	��
��4�7��
3�����2���4�	������\����
7���3��	��
��4���� ������2���4���������

�]�1?������3
��4����������� 
�
	����
��4����������7�8��� 2������ 
��	�
��
3�
����
	�������4��
��4���	
��� 2�������� ���� ���4������ �����
3������ ����?����	
�
3���	��
�4�2
�	� �������������
��4��
�����������7�8��� 2�������8�	�3��8���4�
����2�������� �	����8���

���1� ����������
3������7
����
����� 5�����	����� �����������4�� 	���2����	�
3�����
� 
�
	����
��4�	����3������8���4�4�2
�	� �7�8�
������������7���3��	�
3�����
� 
�
	��5�������		�		�4������	�������
�����	��������9 �2��
 ���������	���
��
����

@��1����� 
�
	����
�3����	����������4����
�2�����������4�����2��� ����
�
�	�4� ���
�	�4
��
����4����������������������	�
��4�7��4���4�4�
��� ���������
���
 4����������������� �3
 �5�������������	�4�	2�		�4��

_̂̀aabc__

?<\�d6�ef�

Page 115



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�

�

������������� !�
"����������#�$��
��%�&�'�%(%)�

*+�,�- !���.�/0 !�1����23�4,235�

�!�5!����6 7���� �!6�8�*+�69��:��7�6�7+� ;�:6�6���

������ !�8�6�<�=>�-?�+�@A@B�

�
�������,�;<��33C2B@=ACDC@ECEEEEFG>�
H�!8��8I���!6�6 �=�3�7J��K�!?�L�,�M�* 66 ML�.?7+�.HA�A����
NO P�������������#�$����$��������
��QR�
S�����P
�����$�T
����'�U������	�V���WXX(�
�	����������S������
�	������������	����#����
���

NO P�������������#�$��Y'�&��V�$����Z��
�����	����������$�����
��
S�[��'�T
�������
NO P������������
��\XRR)]�$���$�WW�̂��'�%(%_]�������S���$�Y'��
�����$���$�_�̀
��#Y���
%(%_��

NO P���$����
�#������
�
��$��������$������$�_���
��'��
�����
�

�
29���8����� !�������?�8��!���� 78�!���a�69����6� !�GF�/@1� ;�69��3��!!�!b�
�!8�c M�?�� 7+�3?7�9������6�@AAB�����M�!8�8��!8��?��7��8���69�6�
���?�8� !�=d69�-?!��@A@Be�

������ !�

W�OP����������������
��$���$��������	����#����
�����	�����$�S
������$������$�_�
��
��'��
����������$��$f�������
�W�U��
�V�����]�g�#�Y
��
#]�[��'�[h(�(iV����
���
�$�����������������#��
S��������������
�]�\XRR)]�$���$�WW�̂��'�%(%_]���$�
������������Y#����$��������]���Yf�����
������
�$���
�����������������$�����$������

�������6� !�; 7�c �6��

%�OV�����������
��S
���
��������#�$��Y'�&��V�$����Z��
�����	������[��'�T
�������
P�������������
�����������Yf����
S������������$�����
���

37���M�!�7+�4�66�7�

_�OP���U������S
��j���'
���̂
����i����
�#����U����kUSjl������$
���$����&�����
%(%)��m������������
#���
������]�
�������
���
S��
������]�
S�����[��'�n�����'�
i����
�#����U����kWXXQl�kniUlopqrstupvwxpysz{|{utp}u~u}}u�p�sp{�p�rup�s��|{z�tp
$�����
���
����]���#��'�U
���'��%�W]��%�%]�j̀ W�%���$��P%�)]�������
��Y����
�������$�Y�������T
�������$����������U
���'��%�W�����
������
���$�Y'�USj�U
���'�
Û��_��P���������
S�����#������������������
�	���
�������#�������

4��!�5��?���

)�OP���#���������������������������������SS����
S�������
�
��$�$������	�
���

Wl�����������������$������������
S������������������

%l����������	��
�$���
���
S��������	�Y
�������̀
�Q\�[��'�̀���g
�$]������
��	��$��
���


���$�������'���

_l���������	���'�
S������$f�������$
���$���	���'�
S�[��'�̀���g
�$����$��

Page 116



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
��� 
��������!��	����
"�������������������������������

�#�����$"���$�
��
$��"�$$�����%�������&�	�$��&��

'

()*+,-+''

./01023415067508840106245

��9�����������	�����
:�"�	�	����%�$
":�"�&��������������"�������
$�;
�����" �
�������<;
��#=���	�:�!%������%�%�������=�	������%�
�������
"��"�
$���" �
���������%�>�"&�;���?
�%��;
�����%���	��������%����"������"������&�@����
"�:
%����%���������	������%�%��
���"���������
"������������%�"

$��
�����@��=�
����$���	�"���
����%���"��%�"���%��"�&����%%����$���	�������	�:�!%������%����"�
�	�
"�������%��
��"%������
"��"�
$���" ����������%�>�"&�;���?
�%���%�����"�
��"&��
���:�
"�"&�$���	����%�%����������	�%�	������&�%�$$�"�����
�
���"�%�������	�
$��������" ���������

��9�����"
�
	�%�%���������
��%�@��	���%��
�����	�%��
$�;
��=�	�:���"�&�$����������
�
"��"=�@���	���	������&�$
"��"%�
$�����$"
���@���%���������
$�����	�:�!%������%�
���"��A�
@	�"��%�
��:&�	������	����������������"���%�
$���" ��������<
������
�
"��"	�
$�>�"&�;���?
�%���%�B�����"@
��
:�C���#���	�:�!%������%����"��	�

"�������%������������=��"
��%������@���%���������
"�$"
�������	������
"��"��	�
"���"��%��A�%�%��
�=��
����"=�$��%����	��	��@��	��%���&
����
��"���������"������"�&�
%�	���������	��	��
$������=���%�����	������
$������"
�
	�%�%���������
��%��
��
���	����&���"������"���":��
������"
���
$�%�������	�
�������
"���	�%��
$���" �
��������

��9>����	��
$���	��
"��"��
����
�=������������	�����	��"
:������������"���������
$"
:������
"��!��	��
��>�"&�;���?
�%=������%����$"
:�������@����?�����
$���&�

��"�����:
�
"��&�@"�%����D"
:������
"��!��	�=�������"���	�������@���
$�;
����
>�"&�;���?
�%��	���	�@���@����%�;
�����%�;
�����" ��������������"
�
	�%�
%���������
��%�@����
!	�
"�&�����������<�������@�%"

:��������"

$	����#���%=�
����
����
$$	���$"
:���	�@
��%�"��	=�����
��%���"���&�$������������@�������;
���
��%�����$

���&���
���>�"&�;���?
�%��A���
��%����"�$
"��
@	��"�����������
$�
EFGHIJKLMNOPQRLOSTLTUQLV�	����
$������"
�
	�%�%���������������	����������"�����
������%�"

$=�	�:�����
"���%��������%�"��%�"�$���	�=��
��%��
:���:��������
�%W
������	�:�!%������%����"��A���
��%�$�"���"��������	�:���"�"�%������������%�
:�		�����
���	������@
�"	������	��A��
��������:
	���X�	�����%�������	�
����" �
���������%�>�"&�;���?
�%��"��	�:�!%������%���%��"�:�"��&�"�%!@"�� ��������
�����%�"

$=������"
�
	�%�%���������
��%�$
":���"��
$���	:�����"
���
"�
�
:�
	���
�������;
�����%�����" ������������"�$
"�=�����
�����"
:�����=����
�
��%��
�������"����"�	������=�
"�	��" �&��
�$���������=������X�	�����	�"���	�������

Y�9Z
�	�[�����&=����"���
��%�@���
��
�$����������	���%��
�����	�\�
�=�\�
����%�
];�
��
$�����>�"&�̂����"&������
�:���������<�__�#�<̂��#�
$��$]��
���&�̀�!\��
@����	�������"
�
	�%�%���������	��
�	�	���������������"�������	�
$��

%�%�	���=�
��	�����������@���	���%�"%�
$���&
�����%�:� �	����
	�������
��"�@���
���
�����
$
":=�[�����&���%�%�	����������		�
$�����	�""
��%�����"����D�"���"=����"���
��%�
@���
��
�$���������������"�������	�
$��

%�%�	�������B����
�����
$�����;���
����
����������
���&�D"�:��
" �<����D"�:��
" #�
"��������"��"�������
$�����
;���
������	����a��%��<����#����	
�$�"��	�����%��	�	����������!%�	����%�����
%����
�:����	�
��%�"�	�
�%��
	������&��
�����	�""
��%�����
���X��@�&
�%�����
	����@
��%�"&=������%����������&
��=�$
":=�	����=������"�������%�:���"���	�
$�
�X�	�����@�����%����
�:�����

Page 117



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
��� 
��������!��	����
"�������������������������������

#$%$&'()*&+$,$*&-(

.�/0
����1�"2�0���3
�4�50
���6��	���	�7�!4������4�8�����
��9������1�"2�0���
3
�4��
�����	
���!��	��
9������������	�����:�
8	�"��4�
��72�	������	��������
8����	��
9�����4�99�"���������"
��4������;������"
��4�9�

"�
9�0
����8"
�4�2�
�����	����������9�"	��9�

"�
9�0
�����" ����������4����"���	���	����9������
"����������������
��������
77
��8
��4�"2�5�������
��4�8��"������46�����"���	�
��4

"�
��������8���
9�0
����9�����������������	���;�8�������
"�������
��
9�����
���4
�	��"���
��"4�����9"
�����4�"��"�
9�����8�����
���

���/�����"
�
	�4�4���������
��4�8��	���4�9
"��"4�
9�0
����5��
	�"��
�1�"2�0���
3
�46���4����"���	���4�99�"��������
����
��8�������������"���	��8
����
��9�"����
�
��4�8��
99	���9"
7�����	��"�4�8
��4�"2<�����=
�������
����4����������
	���"���
��4�	�������
��4�8��
��2����7;��
7��"�4��
�������������>?@ABCDECA
:""�	��������
9����	�4�99�"����;�9"
7�72�
8	�"����
�	�
��	���;�:��7�	���	9��4������
�����"
�
	�4�4�	������9"
7�����8
��4�"2;���4���	�	������������
��"������;�7���	�
����������"
�
	�4�4���������
��4��
�������"����
79
"��8�2���
	���
�0
�����
0
";�4�	�����8�����	���4��"
��4��7�9
"��"4�
9�0
����5��
	�"��
�1�"2�0���
3
�46;��
��4����"�	������������4���	��	��
9�����
	�"��������"��������
���

 �
9"
7�0
�����
��4�"�7�����
�����9"
�����4�"��"�
9�����8�����
�;���4�����	����"��

9�����9�"	��9�

"���4�"

9�
9������"
�
	�4�4���������
��4�8����	�8���9"
7�����
9"
������4
�	�
9�0
���;�����
��4�8��������
8��F����������

���/���9�"	��9�

";������"
�
	�4�4���������
��4�����������4
���
���
�8�4"

7	������
�
��4�9���������
77
��8
��4�"2������0
�����G
����";�����	������
9�����
�"
�
	�4�4��������9
"��"4�
9�����9"
���8���4��������;���4���	�
99	���9"
7�����
8
��4�"2�7���	���������	�����4
�	��
��4�
��"�

 �
��2�����9"
���4"�����2�
9�
0
�����:�4
��
�����"�9
"��9��4���������"���
��4�8��
��"�

 ����	������������"��
�
��4�8����7���"�����
		�
9��"����2�9
"����	�������8
�"	��

���/H
"����	��"��	
�	;�:��
����4��
������	��
�4�7�����		�����������"���
��4�8���
�
��"7��
�������������
�4���
�	�
9����������8
�"	����0
�����=
�	�F�����2;����"��
�
��4�8���
��
�9����������I����
�����	�G�
����4�J0�
�����	
�9�"��	����2�"�F��"��
�
�	�4�"���
��
9�����"�����
�	����
9������"
�
	����
�����	�""
��4�����"�����4�
�����
	���
����4��"
K�7��2�
9������8
�"�����"
��"���	��0
"��
��4����"��8����
�
�9������������"��"��������
9�����H"�7��
" �������	�� 	��
���	�"��
4����
�7���	��"����������	�������������	���4�"4�
9��7����2�9
"��K�	�������4�
9���"���	�"	���

L$'MNOP(Q&,R'S$,P(

���/����8�� �
9�����9

���2���
���1�"2�0���3
�4�9
"7	������
"���"��8
��4�"2�
9�
�����������	������4�8����������	���4�����	������	��9��	���4�99�"�������������	;�
���������"��	�	�9"
7��"
��4��7��
��7�8�����������9"
�����4�"��";���4����
�K�	�����"��������������������"
�
	�4�	���������	�
�	��������"��
9����	�"���������
�����5�
����4�8"
�4�2�����"���2������������	���6��
��4����4��
�8��"�7
��4��
�
TUUVEEVWT>XA>YXAZ[VZV@XWAW\X]]̂_̀ CAaYXAbVc_Û]?@AUV_UX[_Â@A>YT>Â_@cdd̂ÛX_>A
��9
"7���
����	�8�����"
��4�4��
�4�7
�	�"������������	��
��4�8���������4�
����
����99�����������	�"����"��������"��2�
9�����9

���2���4��4
���4�������2���

���/����4�����	�	�87����4����������������������������
��	�
��5���	����
�6�����
"�8���4����
9�����"�����������������8"�� ;���������"�4���
����	�"���9

����;���4���
"��"
9���4��78�� 7����8����4�5����
�����9

���26������������������	�9�"���"�
�"
��4�4��������"����4������������"�9"
7���=�����J������"�������K�����	�����4������
	�
����������	����
���:���	��
������"�9"
7������
�	������
��"�	�
�	��9"
7�����

Page 118



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
��� 
��������!��	����
"�������������������������������

#$%&'()*+,-./0,$1,2&3(&..4(&3,567,86.,+%9:(88.0,��;
"<���
���	����"�;
"���
�
�	�=�"�=���	�;;���������

���>����	�?<����=�@����
��A
����
��="������B=����
��������!��C!�D�	�
�	��������
��<���=�	����
��
;������E�	�����"���������������
��=�?��"�<
��=F����������
�"
�
	�=�=��������
;;	�����<���<�<��<�;"
<�����?�� �
;�����;

���G���=�
�"
��=��<�;"
<������=
���=�������G�����"���	�	�;;�������	����������������
�������	����;
"�����"�������������	��
�?��"��
����=���=�"�?�������=��������=�
"��"
;���=��@�?H�����
����
�=���
���
��"
����������=�����	��	�	�?<����=F�I��<��
��
���"�;
"����"	��=�=�����������"
�
	��	��
��=����	����G���"<��
����������"��G�

;�����;

���GF�
"�������G�?�G
�=����G��
" 	��
�����;

���G���	��;��
��=����
��G�������"�J��"���������"
����
;�����������G	�����
"��G���

���>K
�	�J�����GF����"���
��=�?���
��
�;����������L����
���G�M�
��������"�J��"�	�
����"�	�=�������=����
�<�����
�=�<
�	�"�����������?���	���=�"=	�
;���G
���
�����=��������		�;
"���=�	�"���	���=�=�	����;
"�	�;��G��L����
���G�M��
��"�����	�
�
���"���" ������=�	�"�������"�J��"�<���	���=��	��
�����"�;
"��"���������
����	�
<�����		����

NOPQROPSTUVQ

���>�����"
�
	�=�	���������B=����W
��������!���!�D�	�
�	�	�;;�������="�����G�
��" ����;
"���
����"	F�����		�=�;"
<������
"��"�
;���" ����������=�X�"G�W���
Y
�=�B�	��������
"�����������		��
�W
�����" �������D�����"���	��
�=�	�����
?�������������"���	�����������������	�����������
<<
=��������"�J��"�=�
&%:9.4,$1,'/4,Z/4[(&3,+Z/'.+\,9%8,86.,#$%&'()*+,'$���"���	���������"���	�
��	�;;�������	������
�����������	�������;
"��"=����"��I�
?	�"��=�
��<G�	������	���
����������E�	�����"��������������B	�
����	�"������=D���<��	�������=���
;�����
="�����G���=��
�	�J�����G���"	��
��=����=��
�"���"	�����
F�
"�;"
<�����	�����
����;

���G���������
"��"�
;���" ����������=�X�"G�W���Y
�=��	�"��������G���=��
��=������
����
��
;������E�	�����="
���=� �"?�<���	�����
��=�?���
		�?����
�
<��
���"������"��
���=�;"
<���" ��������B���"���"	�����"DF��������	���J�����
"�	�=�������"
�=�����"���
��=F����"�;
"�F�?���
����=��
�"���"	���
�
"�;"
<�����
?�	G�X�"G�W���Y
�=���=��
�	�J�����G��
��
�;��������������;"���;�
��
;��"�;;�����

�C�>],&$8.,86/8,86.,'$&+%)8/8($&,4.+Z$&+.,14$:,86.,#$%&'()*+,-./0,$1,2&3(&..4(&3,
=
�	��
��"��	��������" �����""����<���	�;
"������"
�
	�=�=���������	���"��	
��
;
"�"�;�	��F�"����"������
		�
;���" ������=��=�J���������		�;
"�W
�����" �
���������	�W
���=
�	��
����	��;�;����������������������	���F����	��		����	�
��	�=��
����	�
���
;�<G��
�	�=�"���
���

�̂ �>_
"�����"��	
�	������F�
������;�����<�����		���I��
����=�������������"���" ����
��G
����	�	�;;��������
���	�"������;"���;�
��
;��"�;;�����=�"
�=�	�;��G�����"��
�
��=����"�;
"��?���
��
�;����������L����
�����	�M�
����=�M��
���������
�����"�
"�J��"������"�	�=�������=����
�<�����
�=�<
�	�"�����������?�����"���" ����
�"
��	�
����=�����		��

`abcdefgaacdhe

���>�;i��
���G�j�!@��"������	��
�����	�iW�F�iW�
�F�iW�
��
;�����L���������"�������
�
���"�G��
�	�"����
���������<�
;��;i��
���G�j�!@���	��
�=�����"�����"?
������"���
k"����"�l�����	��"��
�����"���������CF�	���
"��=���"
������"�����
;�
<��	�"�	������=��������E�������
�����������=����
�<��������F�����		��������?��
=�<
�	�"���=����������	��
���"��������G�
"�;���������G����?��F�?������m�"
���"?
�F�
�������?����
�"�������=�
��"���
������"?
���<�		�
�	�������
���G�
������	������

Page 119



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
��� 
��������!��	����
"�������������������������������

����#����
�$�����"
�
	��	�	�
��#�	���
����
�����	�����%���������#�������
&��"�'�(����$���)������%	�����
*�����������+
�������
��"��	������	��		��������
���	�������������	��,�"��
���	������������$���	�	�
��"�#��������"%
���$�		�
�	�
��	����"��	�#-�����"��������	���#�.����
�����	��
�������		����
�"���#�
#����
�$�����������
��"�%���#��
����"�'��
�	�"����
�-��"
��	�
��
*�"�����%���
���"�'�	
�"��	���#����"�'��**������'�����	��.����
�����	���"���
����	��#-�
"�
"�*�""�#��
/01203450678291:;<0=5:5>?35@0A5B7C30?<0D512>0C5:5E?2303703450
���������
�-��
"���	����&��"�'�(����$����"�F��	��#�#�"����#���"$�����
��
*�
����������������������
���

���G�*&��
���'�H�!I��"�F��"�	������
�	�����
�%��#�����"�#������#��	��'����"
�"�����
�
���	��
����
�������+
�����������"�*�""�#��
������
���'�	�� ������$���$�$�
*����
#�������	���"������"������
����
�	�%����������$���#�J��$�
*���#�*���#�����"�-�
��#����������
��	��	�
����������������
��"
��#������	�����"���*
"��������������
��
	���	���#��
�����'����
"#���������	��
���'������	�����"���K���	F$L�*
"�����
�������	������	��"
��#�#��������������������������
��*
"$���#�����	������#��	��'�
�
��#�%��%��
������$���$�$�	
����-�*
"�����"��	
�	��������%
������"�	�����
*�
�������"����"���#������"����-�������'
�����#�	�����
*������"
�
	�#�
#����
�$�����	����"
�"������
���	��
����
���

���G����+
�������������	
�������#����
�*����������%
����*&��
���'�H�!M��K�"��	���#�
�

#���#L���#��
���'�H�!MJ�K��N���&������$����
*�O�
#���"	��'���#�
M�
#���"	��'L���#�C5P5C03709:5?C?29507P03450<135/0972<1@5C5@0Q?D82@?230R1340
<4C8D<0?2@03C55<S;00T?E503450T3C5530T952501U?>5<0BC7E1@5@01203450678291:;<0
���#����-�������	�
��	�"�%	�%�'
�#�����%
��#�"'���#���K�������
��#�%��
"������#L�,��������"'���$���#���*
"$���
��"���"#����������$%�"�
*��"��	�
��	���-�

"�����%�	������%�
#���"	��'������������	������#�%��������"�#�%'�������$��
*�$'�
	������	�����#��
��"��	��"���#����*��#�
������(����(�"��'-�
"�"�*�""�#��
��������
������������������
��*
"$��V���������#�����%�*
"��$�-�����	��
�����"�*
"��
�
		�%����
�#���"$����������"����"���	����
�*�����������*&��
���'�H�!M����L����	
�
*�"��	����"�F��"�	�������"����
	���
�%��"������#�%'���
������"��	��N
"��	����
�
		�%����
�#���"$����������"����"���
��#�%����'���"$��
�%�
#���"	��'���#�
���"�*
"�����
�*�����������*&��
���'�H�!MJ������$��#��
"'�"�F��"�$����
*�
�"
��#��������W�$���$�$�����������
�%�
#���"	��'��	��
���������%����
����	�
��	���

���GX
"�����"��	
�	��������%
��-��
���
*����	��
���"�$����"	�"��	�#�%'�����
+
�����-����#�$���
�*
"$���#�**�"�����
����	�
���
�����
����%
����

YZ[\]̂]Z[_̀

���G��	���
*�	����	��#��
�#���
�	���	�	�%$����#�%'�����+
��������������������������
��	�	������#��
$$����#�
���,�������	�#����	���	�����%�	�	�*
"���
	��,������
�$�
	�#-��������"���"#��
������#�����
�������	��
*��
�#���
�	��������
X"�$��
" ���#�����������"�������M��#������

���G,���##���
���
�����	���#�"#��$���$������
���
�#���
�-�,�������$�
	�#���
�
�#���
�������	����*��	��������"
��#�#"�����	������������"�	�	�
*���"�����'���	�
�����"
�
	�#�$���"���	��"��	����*��#�
�����	�����"
��#�#"�����	-�,�#
��
��*��#�
�������		�"'��
�"�F��"��	�$���	���#�*�"���"�*����#�����	�
*�����$���"���	��
�%��
�	�#�
���a��"����	�"*���	��
�����	�%$����#��
���#����"
��#�%'������
����
�������������
"��'���
���	�"���

#�#�	������#����������"�����
*�����	���-�,�
����-��
����"-��$�
	�#����
�#���
��"�F��"���������"
��	�
�-���#����"��*��"-�
"������
��
*�����%���	�
"��	�
���
���������"
��#�	�����������

Page 120



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
��� 
��������!��	����
"�������������������������������

���#$����������"�	�	�
%�&���&�	����"�	 	�%"
&��
��������'��
���&�����(����()�$������
�&�
	�(��
�(���
�	�"�*��"��������		�		&����
%�����"�	 ��
	�(�+'���'�
�
���&�����
���
������+����	�+&����(��
���(����"
��(�����"������+'������
����
�������������
"��'�+�%
"�������
&&����&����
%���'��
" 	,���(��%�
�
���&�����
���	��(����%��(�������
��
" 	�	�
��(�+�����������	�+&�		�
����(�
���"
��������"������
%���(������(�"�&�(����
��	���&���$����������"�	��
%�
&���&�	����%�

(�"�	 )�$�������&�
	�(����
�(���
�����������(����
�&����&�	��
�����(���"
��	�
��
%����
��������-��	�
���
��%
"�	�"%��������"�("��������

���#.
"�����"��	
�	����������"�	�����
%��������"(�&�����		��)�$�(
��
��%��(����
����		�"'��
��&�
	�����
�(���
��"�*��"����/012344567/81901:590;948<=1>651?@<1
�"
�
	�(�"������&����"���������	�"����"��
������A�"'�B���C
�(�+
��(�"'������
(�����	�
%����	���"���
��"
���(�+'������
�(���
��	����%'�����������"
��(�
("�����	��$����������"�	�	�
%�������'�	�%��')������������"
D�&��'��
�A�"'�B���
C
�()�$�������
����"��&�
	�(����
�(���
��"�*��"��������	�+&�		�
����(�
���"
����
%���E
�	�"����
��F�����&����������������
��(���	
������(����
��
�
�"������(�����(���
��	�"��'�
%�����%

���'���(���""������'	��+�����������
	�����������������"�&�(�����
" ��	�"�*��"�(��

�G�#����E
�����������	����	��(����
�(���
���������
��(�"�&
���E��		�	����
�H�
%�
��"����
%�-���(������
%������
�����(�E
���"'����������IH���"�����"&����(�
�����
�&���J�IK�����(J�L"(�"������I�	��&��(�(J������������(�	�����
����"��&���)��&�"
��&����
"�
���"�����"���
�	�
%���(��������
�	�)��((���
�	�
��(�
���"�����"���
�	��
�����"

%)��
"���	���(�+���(���	�����(�������
�����
��M
'&����
%���(��������
�	�������E
������������"
��(�(��
�M�	��%�����
��%
"�
	�����	��D���	����"�&
����
%�����
������"&����(�(����
�&����"����	���(�
�
�	�*�����')��������"���"(��
���"��"�������
%�����."�&��
" )�����	����	��(�
�
�(���
����	��
��+�����&�
	�(����

�N�#�
���	�"���
&��������������%K��
���'�O�!P������E
�����������	����	��(���
�
�(���
��"�*��"��������(���������
�+��(�	����(���(�+�����������
"(����������
64?960/81:/5?1QRSTU123;;<VV9W8<1/0X1�(����+���(Y<8890ZV=16>1[\98X90Z1
C�������
�	��$���"��������	�������
�(���
���	�����		�"')�+����
�"�%���������
"�*��"�&����
%��%K��
���'�O�!P��$�������&��(�(�����]6\0;98=V1V\ZZ<V?<X1
�
"(���������E
�������������	
�	����	��(����
�(���
��"�*��"���������"
��	�
��
%�
��K����"���̂����������"����
�����P
����")��	���"��-�
%�����A���(����C�������
�	�
�	��
������%%�������	��
�(���
���	��
������		�"'���

_̀ abcdef̀a�

���#.
"�����"��	
�	��������+
��)�$��
����(������������������	�
��(�+�����
��(���

g

hgijklmg

$B-�KE�LC�
# �

Page 121



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
��� 
��������!��	����
"�������������������������������

#$%&'()&*+,*$+-'./.+-#*

�01 ����2����
�3������"�45���"3����2�	�����4������
������"��������5��"	�
6"
3�����2����
6����	�2���	�
���

�01 ����2����
�3������"�45���"3����2�	�����4����""��2�
���������
"2�����
���������6
��
��������"
��2�����	���"�������
������7��������"
�
	�2�
8��������9��"�������
������7��������"
�
	�2��������2�:
����
������9�
�"�������
������7��������"
�
	�2�;������
�	9��"�������
������7�������
;<�	�������2��"
�
	�2�=�
� �����9��"�������
������7��������"
�
	�2�
8�"����8�����>�:���?@�;����7�A�:�8�"����8������"�������
������7����
���;<�	�������2��"
�
	�2�8�"����8�����B=��� ���2������09��"�������
��
����7�������;<�	�������2��"
�
	�2�8�"����8�����BC
�
�"�209��"�������
��
��D�7�������;<�	�������2��"
�
	�2�8����
��:
����
�9��"�������
����E�
7�������;<�	�������2��"
�
	�2�8����8����
��C!C9���2F��"�������
������
7�������;<�	������
�
�"��������8�"��5��

�01 ����4���	�
"��6��������	�	�
���
���������"
��2�	���������B�"�������
������
7�����0�	�����4���3���3����2���2�3�2��������4���6
"��	���"�
"��
�����6�"	��

�������
��
6�����2����
�3������"�45����"
��2���2����"��6��"�
3��������2��

�01 ����2����������"�45����"
��2�	�����4��2�	����2���2�4�����������
"2�����
�������������		�4�����2��2����4���	���2�"2������"��G�B�0�B����		�4�����2�
�2����4���2�������	0�
6�����=���2����7�������
�	F�����		��������4��
2�3
�	�"���2��
�����	���	6����
��
6�����:
�����������������
"��5������
	����6���	�����
�2���
�	�3� �����	��3�"����������

�01 ?
�2����
�3����	������
33���������		���2�������!��

��1 ���
���3�����2����2��"���3���"5�7�	 ��		�		3����"��
"���
��		�		�
����������
�
���������
���3�����
����2

"��"
��2���	
���26������	�
"�	 	��������	����	�����4��	�43����2��
F���2����"
��2�����"������45F�
����:
�����������������
"��59��

���1 ���"��������
�
���������
���3�����
����2

"��"
��2���	
���26����
��	�"�	 	������4�����2����6��2F�2������2�	��������	������
����2�
	����4���"�	 ��		�		3����	�����4��	�43����2��
F���2����"
��2����
�"������45�����:
�����������������
"��59��

����1 ���"��"�3�2����
�
�"
�����
��3��	�"�	��	
�"��"�H��"�2F���2������2�
7�3�2����
��8�"����5�	�����4��	�43����2��
F���2����"
��2����
�"������45F�����:
�����������������
"��5�����	���
" 	�	�����4��
��2�"�� ���������
"2������������5����"
��2�2�����	��

�01 I
��
����������"
��	�
�	�
6�C
�2���
���0�
6����	������������"3�		�
�F�
���"��"�3�2����
���	�"�H��"�2F��������"
��2�7�3�2����
��8�"����5�3�	��
4����""��2�
����
�����	���	6����
��
6�����:
�����������������
"��5��������
��"��2���3�	����	9���2���8����J�"�6�����
��7��
"��2�����������������
�	�
�� �����2��
����	�
�	���������	�����
6�����"�3�2����
���
" 	F������2����
	�4	��������������2����F�	�����4��	�43����2��
���2����"
��2�����"������45�
����:
�����������������
"��5��"�
"��
�����2����
�3����4�����4"
��������
�
�	���

�01 ����2����
�3������"�45����"
��2�	�����4����""��2�
���������
"2����������
��	�"6��������"�2"�������	���3��������	�����4��4�	�2�
���������"�"��5�

6�2"�������
���
�	��������?���
��������������"�������K��2�������2�4��
2�	����2�������
"2��������������?
�!8�����
"5�����������8���2�"2	�6
"�

Page 122



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
��� 
��������!��	����
"�����������������������������#�

$�	�����%����"�������$&	��'	�()�"�������*�����	�'�	�������+���"
��	�
��

,��
��������$��$�
���
�	�,
"�	�",��������"�+"������������+"�������
	���'��	�����%���'���'����+��"�
"��
�,�"	��
�������
����+����"��,��"�
'��������+��

#*- .
�+����
�'����	������
''�������������/0
�	�"����
���"�,,���
)�����'��������/�(0�)�*1���	�%����	�%'����+��
���+���"��+�����"������
���������2
�����������������
"��&���+�	����������+������,
��
������

��- ��
�
�"������+�����+���
��	�"��&�
,�����,

���&	���+���""������&	�
�%�����������	����������������������	�%	�3�����"�'�+�����
" 	��"��
"�3��"�+�,
��
������
�	�"����
��
,�����+����
�'������+��	���"�	����

,���&�	�����
"&���+�"�� �"	��
������
�	��
���������+�������4�

���- ����		��
����,
"��
�	�"����
���"�,,���,"
'������+
���+�������&4�

����- $�����
�"+���	�(�,��"
�
	�+*�����"�
,������+
���+�������&���+�����
��	�%����&�	���&4�

���- ��" ����
��	����(
"�
�����+���+�"��������������/	��
��"
�*�
,�

��"�����	/���+��
�	�"����
���������	��
�����"������	�
"����
��	����

,��
�	�"����
��'���"���	1������+������&�"�3��	�������	����
,�����
+����
�'�����
����
''
+�������	4�

��- )��	�"�	��
���	�"�����������'�+���+�
���"��

	��'���"���	��"���
��
	�"��+�
��
������+5�������+
���+�������&	��	���"�	����
,�����
�"
��+�
" 	�
��"���
�	�
"���""��+�
�����������	���+����		�	�
,�
��&��������	�������������	������+�'��	�"�	��
�'���'�	��+�	��
���	��������	�+�%&�����
��"���
�	��

���������"
��+������	�����%���+��"�+��
���"
���
��������
�	�"����
����"�
+�
��+�����'��	�"�	�	�����%��"������+���+�,��������	��	�+�,
"����������+�+�
��"�
	��,
"�����+�"���
��
,������
�	�"����
����"�
+�������"��	��+����,��+�
	������
��%���	�+�,
"���&�
���"���"�
	�	�
���"������������" ����
,�
�������	���+�	�
"����
,�+�'
����
�
�
�	�"����
��'���"���	������������&�
"�'�+�����
" 	��+����,��+��	���"�	����
,�����+�����+���
��	�"��&�	�����%��
�'���'����+��
������"������	���	,����
��
,�����2
�����������������
"��&�
�"�
"��
�����+����
�'������"�%&����"
��+�%�����
������+��

�

�

Page 123



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�
�

������������� !��
"����������#�$��
��%&�'��(�)*)+��
,-�.�/�0123���4��50 !�6�789�7:89;�

�!�;!����< =���� �!<�>�,-�<3��?��=�<�=-� @�?<�<���

������ !�>�<�A�BB!>�C1�-�BDBE�

�
�������:�@A��99F8EBGDFHFBEFIIEDJGK�
.�!>�� 1<3� @�@ =L�=���!�M =<3�N1=��!2�0 L�O���!�M =<3O�:�>���@@�O�
4 �< !�4.B�J9P��
QR S�������������#�$����$��������
��TU�
V�����S
�����$�W
����(�X������	�Y���%ZZ*�[���
�#��$�$\��	����������V������
�	���������
������]����$���$���Y�������̂[%\���$�"���$����
)_�X����&�W�����Y�
V�����S
�����$�W
����(�X������	�[̀�������X��#����$�a����
�#���\�
[b�	���$\�c�$���)*%d�[����#��$�$\��

QR S�������������#�$��e(�f��"������Y�$���
���	����������$�����
��
V�g��(�f���
�
������
g
�
�	��W
�������

QR S������������
��h�V����T*%&̂ ��
QR S���$����
�#������
�
��$�����	�����������e���$��	��

������ !�

%�RS�������������$��#����$��

9=���L�!�=-�7�<<�=���!>�4��i2= 1!>�

)�Rj��������
��������$$�������$�����$��������
��
V�������
�
��$�$����
�#����
klmnopqrosmtuvwxyzo{rvwzwmuoumpwvro|zowponmlroztvvwuvpx}o{rzv��e���������
�
��$�
�
����
����$�$����
�#�����

�̂RY#��$�$��������������e#����$�$����	������
�����
V��������������
�_�������
���
����
��$�������
�
��$��	�����������e���$��	�����
~�#����(�))#�V�
#�����
������������$���������
����(_�S���g��	��
�_�������	�������
�	��Z*�$�	�������$�
��$����	�������$���V�
#�%%#��
�Z#��j������$����#���$������������
�������e������

+�RS���S
�����$�W
����(�X������	�[̀�������X��#����$�a����
�#���\�b�	���$�
[Y#��$#���\�c�$���)*)+�[)*)+�Y#��$#���\���#�����
�V
����
��)%�f�(�
)*)+���
�����_������#��$#������
�W�����Y�$
��
������(��������������������$�
$
��
���VV����#(��
���$�����
��
V��������������W
���]�����(_�j�������
��������$�
V��������
##�����V�
#���������������

d�RS�����
����
���
V�����S
�����$�W
����(�X������	�[̀�������X��#����$�
a����
�#���\�[b�	���$\�c�$���)*%d�[����#��$�$\�[̀Xac\_���$���Y�������̂[%\�
��$�"���$����)_�X����&_�W�����Y_���������
�$����
�#��������������
�e��������$�

���
���	��������������$��
#�����$��������	����������������
V�d����������
��#
��_�
��$�V
��$����
�#�����������������
��e�(���������(�V
����������
����
V�
�	����������������������������S���������
�$������������������
�
��$�$����
�#����
�������
��e�(���������(�V
����������
����
V��	����������
������������������������

V�����	����������������	������������d�����������c���������$�����e�V
���#�_�j�
�����
�����
���
�$���	���������������

&�R������������$����#���$������$����
�#����V������������������
���
V�������
��
����
��_���$���(���#�����
�������#��_���e�����	�����)�
V�����	�����Y�)�

Page 124



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

!�"��!�	�������������
���
�#��$�%���
������
�����������������
!��&�'
!���
%���!$�����
���	��
�������!������!�
!����!
����
'���������
!��&������#��!�"��!�%�
�	��
�����	�����(�%�	������%��)��!���������!�����
'�����#���%�����*&�
%���!$�����
��
'����	����������	�#����$�%��
������	�$��#�	�	��

+�,-��*�!�����(�����(��'��!��������������	�	�#$����%(�����.
�������%
���%�����
�����	�'
!�/��!&
���0
���������
�$����������
��$����1�����'/2��	���!��
'�����!�
�����
�$�����������
�����	�0� 3����%�0� 34�
'������'/������	���!	�%�%�
�
�����	�/54
����%�-6��
'�����7�!&�8����!&������
�$���������1�44+2�18��2��
�����!��������
'�%����
�$�����	��	��#��	��%�#&�����3��-���%������!
��	�
�	�
'�
9���%�����(���!��:(�.��		���
'�����3��-�%
��
��!�"��!��!���!%��
�#����%��
�����
%����
�$���������
!�����5���
��������������
���&�;!�$��
!��1����;!�$��
!�2���
<��������%�!���!%��
�����;!�$��
!�(����	���
�����	���%������
�����	�!�'�!����%�
����������%�����#�'
!��$�����	
�'�!��	����&��!��$���!�����
�	�%�!���
�	�!��������
�
�$����!	�
'�	�����(�%�	������%��)��!���������!��������

=>?@ABCCDEA

��,����$�����		����	�������!������!
�
	����
��%�	���	'&�����%������%��!�
!�
���!
����$����!	������%���������''����
'���	�	�����(�%�	������%��)��!����
�����!�����
��������������
�%���
�	�
'����!#&�
�������	(������!���!%��
�

���

�(���%��
�	����%�%�	��!#������

FE>CG@CA

4�,������������!
�
	����
��%�#���
����%������!��
'������!������!���'���%(��
�������	��

'��������		�!
�%��
�����'
!$�!����	�
!���5�!	����H
$�(���%�	
����
'���
!�	�%�������#���%������
����	�����7�����
�������'
!$�!���!	�����
$����	�
#�����
���!��%��
�!�	�%��������	������!���!����!!����&���!���!�	�%�������
�!
��!���	��������	���(��������
�'�!���!�%�������	����!
��%���%���
�$
!��
��!!����&���%�!��
�	�%�!���
����!
�������������������������!
��		���
�����
	
����
'������!
�
	��(����	
$��%�	�����(�������!
��
'��
�����	������	�!!
��%����
�!����	���!���&�
������%���!������!�����

���,��������	���%����������������!
�
	�%�#���%�����
��%�#���+��$��
�����%�4$�
��%�(��������!�%����������
'�:��$���%�����	��������
'��$��<���
��%�#��
�
�	�!����%�'!
$��
��!���������	���%��!����	�����	����	(���%��
��%�#��
'���
	���������)�%�	���������
��!�����
�������!
�
	�%�
����	�%�������	������
�!
�
	����
��%�#����	�#���'!
$��
���!���������	���%�'!
$�����#����!�����
'���&�
�
�������	�(�����
��%�#����'�����
������!������!���#���%���(���%��
��%��
��#��
���
��!�
�	�
!������!����!�	���������������!�!���	��������<���
��%�#�������%�
�����	������#���%!
��
'��)�	�����#���%���	���%��	�	�����
��%��
�������!��	�
�	
����%�
!��
�	����
�	���

���,H
����!(������!
�
	����
��%�#��	���%����!
)�$����&���$�'!
$��������!�	��
�������
��
'�����7�����
�������	�������!
�
	�%�#���%�����
��%�#����!�������
�
����!
�%(�����
��%�#��	���%�%�!����&��
�����	
����
'�����7�����
�������
�!
IJKLMNK�4$���%��	�%���������
���
��%�'��������!�	�%��������!
��!�&���%�
�)���%�'
!�����$�O
!��&�
'�������%���
'�����!�	�%�������%�������(��������	���	��'�
���!
)�$����&���$������%�����

���,<�����
���%�������������!
�
	����
��%�#��	���	������&��
��!����������
7�����
�(���%����������$�����	�����
'�����7�����
���
��%��
��'��������#�!���
H
����!(������!
�
	����
��%�#���
����%�����!
)�$��&��
�����!��!���!%���
'�����

Page 125



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

!�	�"�������"�������#���������	����"
�	������	��������
��$�����������!
�
	�"�
��!������!���%���"������

���&'���!������%
�!�����!
��!���	��
��"�%��	������"�$�!���!����(�$!
)�����
�!
�
	�"���!������!���%���"���#���"�*�"
��
���
�	�"�!������������������
�"���
�	�

$�����!�
������!	��
��"�%����!)�"�%(������!
�
	��������!���!"	��
�
���

���
+
����!#�������
	���!
,�)��(��
�����-�����
�����	�"�%(�����	������
$�����
�!
�
	�"�%���"�����
��"���!)�������������
�"���
�	����������
������!	�
$�����
-�����
��%���$���$!
)��*����!������!#�����!���.
()����
$�����!��!���!"����
��"�
%��"�)���	��"�%(���	��!�	������	�����)�
	����%���"�����/���������	��������"�
	�����
$������!
�
	��#�����
��"��)�
	����	����$������%����
$�%�����"����
�)����
������
��"�!�	����������
��!%��!������"�
%�!�	�����)�����
�������	�!	�
$�����
0123456789:61;9<=>:9?4@>:42=:7A>2:B<>7>=:CD6E:;A>:?D6?>D;F89:7<2=679:C4@<23:
�����!
�
	�����

���&����	�������������
�������%
��"�!(��
��"�	�!��������%���"�����
�	
)��"��!��#�
����%���"�����
��"�	�����%����	�%���$!
)�����!�	�"��������!
��!�(��*�����
���"���
�����$���������"��!��	���!��
!�������(������������
�������%
��"�!(#��������
��"�
�����)
!���$$�������(�	�!����"������!
�
	����+
����!#�*�)�	��"���!)��������
�������
������	������
��%�$
!��)���G�!���!����"	��������
��"��������)���
�
�	��%��	�#���"�*��)��
����!	��"�"����������
��"��!
��"����$���(��$$�������	�!���#�
��!������!�(�������������!�)
���	��

���&����%���"�����
��"�%���	�"�$
!�����	�
!����
$�����	�
���$
""�!���"���!������!���
�H���)������	�����$���"��	���!��"(������!������!����	�#�����	������(������
�����%
�!����"�������	��
��"���!��"(�%��	�%.�����
�	
)��������
$��
�	��$!
)�
�!���
!	���"���!������!���)������!(��G�!���!)
!�#����!�!����!��	�	�����	����	#�
$�!)�������������	���"��		
�����"��
�	����"�"�	��!%������!���
))
������������
������������	���"�����"������"�!��������	�))�!����!���
��"�%���
����!��	��
��
�������!
,�)����(�����.
�!��(	���!��"(���"�!������%
�����(	�$!
)�����$���"	�
�
�����$�!)(�!"����!�������������!���(�%���	��
��"�%��)
��"�$!
)�����%�!�#�
�������
��"����
�������!���
!���"����� ����!����!���"��
��"���������!
,�)����(�
I��)�����	���!�������J����%
�!����!�	�"���	��
��"����)	����	���"�!�����
��������!�.
�!��(	#��������
��"����"��
�	
)��������
$��
�	����"�"�	��!%������
�

���!������%
�!	��K
�	�H�����(#�*��
�	�"�!�����������!
�
	����
��"��
��
���������%�(���!)�������������
�"���
�	�
$������%
�!����
������!	������!���!"�
�
��
�	����"�"�	��!%������

�I�&�	�	���#�����	��*��
����"������������$$����
$�;A>:?D6?694589�	�����#�"�	������"�
�,��!���������!������!
�
	����
��"��
��%�����������%����	�!���!"	��
�	����"�
"�	��!%����#�����
��"������������������%����$$����
��������������
�"���
�	�
$�
���!%(�
������!	������!���!"��
�
���

����	���!�	���#�����
��"�%���
��!�!(#��	�
$�!��	����(��!��)���!�����
�	�"�!���
�	#��
���!��!��������
$�����G!�)��
!��
��"�'L�
��
$�����M���������	�����
���	�!�#��)
��	��
���!�)����!	#������
"����
�)����"
�	��
����!)������)����(�
$����!%(�!�	�"���	���

�N�&����	������K
�����������!�$�!����"��
�����	�O� /����"�O� /P�
$��$Q���"��
�����	�
'L�
����"�'LN
��
$�����M�����"�R�����)����!(�����������
��)������S�J���
-���"���	��������/!����-���#����	��!�������
�/!����-������"����"	�����
"�	������
�	��*�"
��
���
�	�"�!���������(��!��"�!����(�!���������
�����	�����#�
"�	������"������!�����
$������!
�
	������!�����
���
�������������
�"���
�	�
$�
�����%
�!����
������!	#���"��	�	����*�������
��!���!"�"����)��	�)���!����
�
�	�"�!���
�	����)(�"���	�
���

Page 126



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

"#$%&'()##%&*'

���+,��
������������	�����	����-!����.������/�/�	������/���/�!�����0����	���1�������
2��/	������!��3���/��	��
����/��������������	����������4

!	��5
����!3����	��
�!���
��6����!	�7
!��
�	�/�!���
����/�!�1���/�����3���!��83�9��		���
7�����
-��:��

�;�+<!
6��������/�����=�7
!��6�3�����7
!6�!����	�
!���>�!	����5
6���	�
�
�	�/�!�/��
�=�����
� /�	������/���!�������		���?>�5�@������
!�������
=���/���	�/����7!
6�������!�A����������������!A���/���!��=������
��!�������
	6����
B��	
����
���
	�������,��������������������
�	������/�!����A�
!���/�!����A�
�77�����
� /�	������/���!�������		��	3���=������/�C�/��6���������=��!�D��!�/�
�������!���!/��
�����	�����
7���A���!6�
!��
		���/�����	����7�������
7�����
��!�������		����

���+�����
��������	��
��!��	�/��
���!�	�!���!/���������6�����
7������!
�
	���
������
>�5�������EFGHIEJKHLMFNFNOJPHKFGMOHJQRFSTFNOEJMKHJUHSSJEVKHHNHTJQWJGKHHEXJ
��������������!
����!����!�	�!����
��
!/�!��<�!���!6
!�3������!
�
	����
��/�
=�������/����!�����
���
�����.�����
�3��������	���6
!��6
/�!���//���
���
�����
	�����<
!����	��!��	
�	3�,���	
�7��/����������	�����3�/�	������/��B��!����
�����!�����
7������!
�
	�/�/����
�6�����
��/��
��=����!67����
�����>�5����

���+,�!��
���	����������!���!��0����
�����	�������6�A�	���
!�������!
�
	����
5
����!3��	�6����
��/���!���!3������!��������
7�/����
�6�����	��	��=��	��/�=A�
����-��:���/������!
��	�
�	�
7�1���/�����3���!��83�9��		���
7�����-��:�/
��
��
!�D��!��!���!/��
�=����/��
�����/����
�6����������,��������/�!���!/��
��
�����	�

��A����	
�7�!��	����A��!��6���!�����
�	�/�!���
�	�!���������
�6����!	�
7�	�����3�
/�	������/��B��!���������!��������

���+,�����
���/�����������!���	�	
6��	���
!��7
!������!
�
	�����/����������	����/�/�
7
!������!������!����	����������������I	�7�!6����=�	���		���	��!
��3���/�����
��������������	��
���
��������=�	���		������	�	�����=���6����!��<�!���!6
!�3�
�����!
�
	����
��/���	
�������
����!/������	���������7��
7�7�!6�6������!A���/�
�D���6�����,�!��
���	�������/���	�
�	�	�
��/�=���
�	�	�������/����������
���6=���
�	��,���	
����!������������77
!�	����������������������	�6�/���
�
�//!�		��
���!�	3�	�����	�!�/����������7

��!����
7������!
�
	��3�!�
!����������
�����/�6
��������7�!���!�7!
6�����.������
�����	������������	��6����!	3�,��6�
!�D��!�/��
��		�		������!
�
	���
����	�
���6�!��	��������!���!/��
���	�	�����3�
/�	������/��B��!���������!������5������/
���	
�������	���	�3�,������7
��/������
�����!
�
	����
��/�=�����������=���7
!�����!��	
�	�	���
����

YZ[\]̂*_Z['

���+<
!�����!��	
�	��������=
��3������������	�
��/�=��/�	6�		�/���

àbacdefghaa

,>1�i9�:j�

Page 127



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�

������������� !��
"����������#�$��
��%%�&����'(')��
*+�,�-  .��/��01 !�2�/3��-4536�

�!�6!����7 .���� �!7�8�*+�79��:��.�7�.+� ;�:7�7���

������ !�8�7�<�=>�7�,?�+�@A@B�

�
�������4�;<��33C5B@>AC�C@BC==BA=D=�
>�3�77�:7.��7E�4�8���;;�E�/?.+�-@F�=5G��
HI J�������������#�$����$��������
��KL�
M�����J
�����$�N
����O�P������	�Q���%RR(�S���
�#��$�$T��	����������M������
�	������������	����#����
���

HI J�������������#�$��UO�V��W�O�X������	����������$�����
��
M�Y��O�V���
�
������Y
�
�	��
N
�������

HI J������������
��W�M����K(%LR��
HI J�����
�
��$�$����
�#��������
��	�����O�$�����U�$����U���
�O�
���

M�
M��Z�����
�������
���
�	����$�
U������	��[�$�U�������$������������������������
�����$��
����������%%((##�
��	����

������ !�

%�IJ�������������$��#����$��

3.���\�!�.+�-�77�.��

'�IJ������������
��M
�#���$�����������$����
�#���������
#�����$]���$�̂������U���
�
����������$����	�#O�������������̂������$����#���$������������
�������U����]����
$�$�����N
�������_��������
�����̀�����#�$��UO�����N
������̂���$���


����
abccdeefgdhijkdlfmjndfojejnpf�
������	�U
����	���
����O�'q�N�
��M���$�r������

q�Is��'%�V�����'(')]��M���������������������U#����$]�����N
�������$
���$�����
r����
�#����P����r
��#����tP������M
��X���O
��u�SrPrT��̂���������������
M�
��������v���������$��
����������������
M�����#��������������������v�$���$�UO�
�����#�����]�̂�
MM���$����
��
������O�M
������#�������������
��
##����
�������
#�������w
�M��������
##����������#�$���

-��!�6��?���

)�IJ���#��������������������MM������
�����������	��
�$���
���
M����	�U
����	�

��������]�������������������	��$��
�������O]��
������$�$�����U����x���$��M���O�
���#�������]�������������������#���������
���$�����
��]������$��	�����
����
�����#�������]������
�����	����������#��

4��� !��

y�IJ�������������������������������$�������������J������������
����O�Sw
�%T���$�����
��#��$������$����	�U
������w
�q�����$
�#���U��	��
����r����
�����
$����
�#������������
M���������]�����������������
�����$�
��	��$����
M�
��
����������
�	�N�
��M���$�r�����S
$$���#U���T�M�����
���$������M���
���$�
��
������������
��
M�w
�%��

z�IJ���U���
�O�����������$�M�
#�����
�$

���������	���U�$�

#�������������$
�#���
��$�
������������M�����

M�
M�����Z�����	����	�����
��O�������Z�����
��S����
�Z�����
�T��Q���
�	�������Z�����
��$
����
��
����O�����M������$���
M����������

Page 128



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
��������������������������������

�������
� ������
!���	��
���	����"������#���� �	������������"
�$	���������
"��%
���
��$� ��������$
#�	�������������#
����������������	������������&���	�
��%��
����

'�(�����
���	�	����� �	�����	���� �#�������#���#�� �����%���
�)����%��	����
�&���$��)���#��������
"�������
���#	����������
"���
������	���
���*�
		"���#�
�������+��������	������#����
	��
"���������#��	��������������#��
	���
� ���#�
��	
����
�������#
�	��������������������
�	�	�������%�#�

$	�������������	�
������	
�������%������
�������������#���
"������#!
�����������%
������,
�����

��(����$
	��#����������	�����������%����
���#	�,
����*�
		"���#������ ���������	�
��$
#�	����������#����������%
��#��)�!�	���$�"�
$�����%���
�)���������$)�
��	���-���	��%����
�	�������������
���������"�
$��������������
������%�#�

$	�
	�������,
��� ��������
�"��$�#����������	�"�
$�����%���
�)������
���
$"
���%�)���
	����

.�(*
�	�/�����) �����#������
"�
����

�����"�
$�����%���
�)��
������%
������
��
������	��	�	����"����������	��	��
���#�/�����)�$�������#�%)������	��
"����

%	�����)����0�#�������%���	���#��
"����$������� ����������������������%���
��#����
�����������)�"
�������%
������
�������	��

���(��������������	����	�	�������		��	�
"�
����

���������������������	������������
��
����)��������	��&���	�
������#���	������
�	������
��
"�����%)���
������	�
��
���*�
		"���#������ ���#����������$����
	����
������	������"��	��
������# �

��)����
	����#������"�������	����������������������%
��#��)��1������$
�� �����
2334552678952:;<87=278>:4?<8@A87=482BC@:6:6D864:D=E@FGH<8G42G8D2GB468?4G48
����)	�������%���"�
$�����%�#�

$����#
������������������#
�$���
"�����
���������
����)���	�	��� ���������������$�������	��������������	�����)	�%����
���
����

�����������
�	�����
�����%)���
������	��

���(I
����� ����	��
	���
��"���	��
���������
����
"�����"�������������	�����	�%	�/�����
�	��
"�����"�����

"�
"������&���	�
���	���%���
�)��������	�"��#�$������)�������#�
����������
�	��������������%
��������
������	��J
��
��� �����������
����������
"�
�����"�
$������#
�������������"��	��"�

��
"���
������	��	�$����#�)�$
���
��	������#��
$����#��
�����	�"�
$���%���
�) ������$
���	
�����
$����	
���
���
%���
�)�
"�	�����	�	������	������%�"
���$���

���(������������������$	����������
%	�����	�������
��#�
%	������������
��������	�
%����������������#
�$������#
�	�
"��������������
����)���#���
	��#������)�

��
	��� ��
$����#��
��������������
�������-�����	������# �-������ �%������	�#
�	�
�
��!�	��")������#���	�����$���������	�	�"�
$������	��
"������

"�
"����������
�&���	�
���	���%���
�) ��
����	����%����#�$
�	�����#���������	��	�����
��)���)�
�
�����������)�"�������#�	���#������	�
"�������)���

���(����"����
"�����$�������	�����������	��
"������

"��%
�������������&���	�
���	���
%���
�)�	����"������)�������	�����������)�������
�	��������������%
������
��
������	 �	�������������	�
���"
��
����

������	��
�	�#���%�)�������	�#��
�����
�&��������������������)�
"������%
������
�������	��	����������%�)�#�$���	��#��

���(�����
���	�	�����	�0� �����%���
�)��	�����%���
"����
$$
#����������������$%���

"���
�����K=48233455267H<8<FE;:<<:@6<8	�����������
�����������	���	�����#�
������
%���
�)��I
����� �#������$)���	���-�	������������%���
�)������#�#��
����
	����)��
���	���#�	
$�����)���$���#�	
���������������
��#�����
�	�
���$������
#�	���)	��*
�	�/�����) �������
�
	�#�#����
�$�����
��#��������	���
��
�	����#�
#�	���%�����"�
$����������	�
������%���
�) ��	�������	�#�	���%�����"�
$��&�������
����������

Page 129



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
��������������������������������

� �!��������������	����	���������������"�"��	��
#�����$���
�%��	�������&������"�
�����#���	�����#
���'�	�����
�������	���"��	����������
���������
�"���
�	��
�
�
���
��	����(�����	)�����
�����
���
�
	�"��
�"���
���	�$�#
���(���*�������
$������
#�	�������
�"���
���
��"��
��$���(�
		�$����
�"�����)�����
��"�$��
�����	
��$�%�
���
�	��
�"
�	
���

�+�!,������#
����
����"�������������
�
	�"�"����
�(�����
��"����������$�%����(�
������������
�"���
�	�
#������$
������
�������	)����������������������"��
�
������%)���"��
�	����"�"�	���$������,���
�#����	������-���"��
�����	�.�
����"�
/01
��
#�����2��%�3�����%������
�(����������441)���"��������"������������
-�����(�����%�����������
��(����+����������
�	���"�/'���	�
�	��
�5�	�"�������
��
������	���������
������)����	���
�����	���"����"�����	�����
���	���������
�
�	���'���	�
�	���"���������
�	�"
��
�����������$�%����(������(������	�
#�
�����$
������
�������	��

6789:;<=79:>=?;@ABC>D9:=7>ABC;

�1�!EFGHIJJGKKILMNOHIJJGIKH	�$(�		�
�	���#����
����	
����������������(	�����	�
#�
�������������)���"��������"��
�����		�#��	�������������������
#������"��
��	
�����
#�
(�
����	)������"����(�($��	�
#���	�#�(��%���

���!,�����������#
�����"������"��
�����.�(���5����	������44��P.5�Q���"�����
��$����-���
��/&�����%����%�P�-/�Q���"�������/&�����%�����������������"�
"�	�$����%����������������
�����"�����������	���	��
������������-/��������	��
����������
#�����.5����&����	������"���	�
�	���	������	�����#
������������"�
#�(��%���#����"������
(���.
�����)����	������&����#��"������	������$%�
�����#�������(�%�$��R�	��#��"����������"�����$����������	���

�4�!��������
	��
#�������
�
	����
��"�$�����
	�������
�	�"�����
�)�������(	�
#�
���(��������"�	���(�����
�������	�����	
�	������������
�����"�����������	���	�
#�
������"

��"�	�$����%)��"���������&�����%�
#�
��
������%�#
����
	�����	
�	)���"�
#
	��������

"�������
�	�$����������(���"�
����	���

���!����
����,��SHOTSJIMFGMUVHMWHMFGHIJJGKKILMNOHJGXOWLIKHFGIKMFHVUXVYSOMILVGO)����
��	��
��$����"�(
�	�����"������������
�
	�"�"����
�(�����	�����
��%���%�
#�
(��������������	
��������������"	�
#��������������)��
�����������
��"������	����
�������	�����(#���
���
����

���!,��(������#
���	���	#��"�����������-/���
�	�"�����
�	���"�IJJGKKILMNOH���	
����
�����(	�����	�"
��
��
���������������������$������(������,�������"����#��"�
��"�������#�,�������
�"�	(�		�����������)�����
��"�$��������		��%���"�
��
�
���
���������
�����
�����������(������(�
#���
��������������������
�"���
�	�

#������$
������
�������	���"�������#�(����	)����������"�����$����������	���

Z[\]̂_̀ a[\b

���!������
�
	����
�#����	����������"����
�(�����������"�����(��������
�
�	�"�����
�	�"
��
����"����������������������	�
��"�$��"���"�"�
�������������
���
�"�������������������#
��)�������������	�"�	(�		�"���

cdeffghdd

,0-�/i�j5�

Page 130



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�

�

������������� !��
"����������#�$��
��%&�'��(�%)%&��

*+�,�- !���.�/0 !�1����23�4,235�

�!�5!����6 7���� �!6�8�*+�69��:��7�6�7+� ;�:6�6���

������ !�8�6�<�=>��?@?�6�>A>B�

�
���������,�;<��33C2B>=ACDC>BCEEBEFGG�
3�H�I�!6� C��BJ�0�+I�7K�6L�.?7+�.MF�A.N�

OP Q�������������#�$����$��������
��RS�
T�����Q
�����$�U
����(�V������	�W���XYY)�Z���
�#��$�$[��	����������T������
�	������������	����#����
���

OP Q�������������#�$��\(�]��̂
����_�$��	����������$�����
��
T�̀��(�a���
�
������̀
�
�	��
U
�������

OP Q������������
��b�T����R)&%%��
OP Q���$����
�#������
�
��$������������������
��
T���#����T�����
�����
##�������
����\�
�����$��	���$�T�\������
����$��$�������#����$�����(c��������������$���������������$�
$
��#������
���

�

�
�������.�,�;<��33C2B>=AC0C>BCEEBEFGF�
3�H�I�!6� C��BJ�0�+I�7K�6L�.?7+�.MF�A.N�

OP Q�������������#�$����$���b�	�����
��XR�
T�����Q
�����$�U
����(�V������	�ZU
���
��
T�
W$�������#���[�Zd�	���$[�b�	�����
���%))R��	����������T������
�	������e�������
��������

OP Q�������������#�$��\(�]��̂
����_�$��	����������$�����
��
T�̀��(�a���
�
������̀
�
�	��
U
�������

OP Q������������
��b�T����R)&%f���
OP Q���$����
�#������
�
��$������������������
��
T���#����T�����
�����
##�������
����\�
�����$��	���$�T�\������
����$��$�������#����$�����(c��������������$���������������$�
$
��#������
���

�

�

������ !�

X�PW������W���$�̀�����$��#����$���

37���I�!�7+�4�66�7��

%�PQ�����
�������������T
��������$���
�
�����
��������#��������W������W��
�������
������T�����
T��������	����#����
���
�����������#�����T�����
�����
##�������
��
��\��W������̀��
�������������T�����
T��e�������
�������
�$�����(�
�$�������#����c�����	����$����
�������\��]�������
���$���$�������������
��
�
����
������#�����c��
�����c�������(���������#�����������c�]�������
#\���$�
\
���$�����
�����������	���$�����
����������

f�PQ���V������T
��d���(
���'
����g����
�#����V����ZVTd[������$
���$����a�����
%)%&�\(������	�������a��������������
������c������$��	�̀��(�a���
�
������

̀�
�	��U
�������VTd��
�������'V�VX���$�'V�V%����������
�������dhX�X���$�dh%�
�����������(�
T�����̀��(�i�����(�g����
�#����V����ZXYYR[�ZigV[���T����$��
����
jklmnopqrstuvmwlrsvsoqmsqmxlvylrjmozm{yyl|tm{}m~klmnopqrstuvm�j|jl�lqjmozmn|vlm
�
�T��#�$�����������$
���
��
T�����VTd��
��$��
��������������$�����
�c���$�����
����������������$����
��
������(��
��
##����
�����������	������
���(���

Page 131



�����������	�
�	����
�����
�
��
������������
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
�� !
��������"��	����
#�������������������������������

��$����%
 �������	�&#����'(��������
���
�)����
���(�*+�
���������#��	
�	�,
#�
#�, 	���,
#��������-����&�.��������!���������
����
 ����	���'���#����
�
�	�&�#���
����
����#�������
�����&�%
 ��#(����������/%
��#
��
,�
�&��#��	�'���	0�/*�����&0�1�� ����
�	����2�/����1�� ����
�	0���&�����
+���
��������������
���(�3#�'��
#!�/����3#�'��
#!0�'�!�	��������#������
�
��#
��
,��&��#��	�'���	�'�(�
��(�4���5�#��	�&������������#�	��
,��'����(���&�
� 4����	�,��(��%
�	�6 ����(��)����
���(�*+�
����	��
����	��,�4����&���	�������
'(�&���#'�����
��
,��������-��

7�$�����#
�
	���#�����	��
�����	�������
,����#4(���	��&�4 ��&���	���&������������
	�����	������������- #(��
���%���#��%
�	�#����
���#�������
#&����(�����#�����
��
�
�����������.��������&�#���#&��
�����	��� �
#(�& ���	�	���
 �����8����
��99/�0�
��&�2�/�0�
,��������������/:�	��&�- ��&���	���&�%
�	�#����
���#��	0����������
/�������0���

;<=>?@AABCA?

9�$�����'�����		 �	����#�	�����
,�����������#�������,,����
,������#
�
	���
���

D$�������#����#���&������#�����
,�����	�#���	�������&�����- #(��
���
%���#��%
�	�#����
���#����

D$����	�������
,����#4(�:�	��&�- ��&���	����&�
���
�"&�	������&���#������
�		��	��

D$��&�	�#����	�,��(����&�������������#������	��#���
�	�
,�����%
 ������

D$������&�#�	�#����(�,
#��������&�,
#����&��#
��	�
��
,��&�,�4#�����
#	�
��#
 ��
 ������-
#
 ������

2�$����'�����		 �����#�	�����
,��������-��	������,,����
,������#
�
	�&�
�&��#��	�'����
����	 ����'����(���&�� 4����	�,��(��

EC<AF>A?

GHIJIKLMJNIOPNIQQMIJIOKMNRNSTLHNIQQMIUVNN

��$�����������	�����	�����#���
,�����'�����
 �	�&��+
��9���('�#!�����
����&��
�
�����
#���
,�������	��#�����#�����
,�����W����X����8�
������%���#����&��������
����- #(��
���%���#��%
�	�#����
���#���/����%�0��W�#!���8�#����/��&�
��('�#!��0��#��	��������##������(�������	��
�����������#�	�#����&������ ��#�
����		�4����������'���&���'���������&������'���	����������&�	�#����
�#�
#��(��-
���	�&�	�
,�����#
�&��#�����#����#�	�&�4(��
�����#�&�	�
,��
''�#�����
�#�'�	�	��������'�5�
,��#�&
'������(�#�	�� #�������,Y���&����	 #�� 	�	��

��$.���	��#
�
	�&��
���	�������,#��	���&����' ���", ����
�����
'' ������
��� 4�
'��	 #�����#
 �&���9'�������������&����'���&�������� 4��
 �&��#
��&����
�
 ���	�#������&�&�,�4#�����
#�
��
���	�&����&����:%���&��#��	�'����	�#����
��
����
���#�	�&��������#
�
	�&�� 4��
 �&�4��	���&��#
 �&����'�,#
'�����#
�&��
4#
�&�(����������������4
���#&�/
���
,���#��0��&Z����������&�	�#�����#
		�����
����
 �����������������&�	�#�4�	�����	������
,������#
�
	�&�� 4��	����������
���'���&��	����
��
,�������(�/����'���0�.�
4	�#��&�
��'(�	������	��������
���#���	�����5��#����	��������#���,
#�+
��9���('�#!���/+
��90�/-���	��&�����
	�
�����&������&Z
������ ���	0��������5���&	�����&�����
,��������
�(�
,�����
W����X����8�
������%���#���������&���
,���������'�����	����#�,
#��' ���
��##
��#�������	��
����
�������	 ���	��&���

Page 132



�����������	�
�	����
�����
�
��
������������
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
�� !
��������"��	����
#�������������������������������

���$����%���
��#	�������	�
#����
#��
&�����#���' #(�&
� 	�����#
 �)�����* ����
��
&�
+�#!����������'
��
��,�#�����,����#�,�#������)�����-
�!������	�����������#�	��
��)�	����&�������
&�����%���	�)�#���)�������#���&#
.���	�)����
�.�����	���
.�)������.�#!����
�����)���	��#
 ����	�
&�/���
#������)�0)��#)������������)�
�
..�#�����1 ��)���	���##����)��#
 �)����)����!�)�1(��� 1����	����	��

���$��!���
����	�
����1(�#��	
��
&���	���� #����)��2�����������������	����.�!�	�

��(�����.���)��
��#�1 ��
���
��������#����#���)������#�����
&�����%����)�
���#�1(��
���	�	����&��������	���)�	������)���#�������		����3
�������		������
��)�#�� 1����#���.�������	��
����
����
��1�(���������#
 	�����.���	���#
��)�	���
	��	��
&�	����
 	��		����������
�	�����	 ##
 �)�����
��	�������)���#���	�#����
��)�����.�����#��	��
�1��1����#����#������)�����	��
��#�1 ��	��
	������(��
�����
���#����#���)������#�����
&�����%���	�����
�����)��� 	��
���	�	����&��������	���
)�	������)���#�������		������

���$������������..�)������������(�
&������������	�����4�
1	�#��)���#�
 	��2�	�����
	�#����& #��� #������� )���������
� .�	���)�1
���#)	
&��������		
�����)����������
��)�	�#�����#
		�������1�����)�1��(����	���)	���������
�(���)����#�����&��� #��
5�������	 ��
#������
� .�	6�
&�����+����7����,�
������%���#��
��#����	���
�������
&���������.����������	��
����
�����)�������������
� .���)*������3
��8�
��)���&
#.���
��1
�#)������&����#�
	��	�����#��	���)��
�����	
 ���
&������������
	���9�������#��)����&��)�
�������#
�
	�)�,���������������#
�
	�)�� 1��
 �)�1��
#��������(��������)���)����������#
*����������
�(�&
#.�)�
&���	
��)�#������ ��#�
)�	������)��
 �)�.�#!�)�(����#��	��������	 ����#�	�����
&�	�#����& #��� #��
���������������.���9��	�)�	�#�1�)����#��)(���1 	(�	������

���$: #���#.
#�����������	��#
�
	�)�	��������#
		���������.�����	
���#���)�� ��#�
�
�����#
�)������
 �)�#�) ���1
�����	 �����#.��1����(� ����)�)
���+�#!���
,�#������)��������#����#�	����	��	��
&�	����
 	��		�4������)�	�#�1�)������
 ���
����
 �)�1����#�����(�
1	� #�)�1(�����2�	���������.�����#�������������)�&#
.�
�����
#����4��
�������		�&��)������#
�
	�)�� 1��
 �)������#� �) �(��#
.������
��)����
��# 
 	��������	�#���	������
�����)��#�.����
&��������#����#���)�
�����#�����
&�����%���

���$4�������)����&��)���#.��
�����%���	���#�	 ���
&������#
�
	������#��#������;�
&�
����:#�.��
#!��)��	�	������������
�	�)�#���������.�����
&����#
�
	�)�
)����
�.����
������	����&�������
&�)�	������)���#�������		��	���#�����������
	�
 �)�1���������
�����#��
�	�#����
���7���������	�����
&������#
�
	��	�#��������
�
�<=>?@AB?C?DEFG?<=H<?<=>?=HIJ?KLMNG?O>?PN>QQ?<=HF?QMOQ<HF<EHNR?EF?<=EQ?EFQ<HFS>?
1 �������#�����		��
&��
�	�)�#�1����.�
#��������)���������T�)�#�	 ���
��#� .	�����	����#��#��������
&�����:#�.��
#!��)��	�	���������	���#.�	�
 �)�
1��������)������	������� 1����1���&��	�
&������#
�
	����

�;�$4�#��
���	������������#
�
	�)��
.. ������
�	�� 1��
 �)�
&&�#���#�����
&�
1���&��	������ )������)�&�1#�����
#��&#�����
�������	��
����)����	���)����#����	��
�
.. ���(�.�		��������)�#���)��
������
���
��.�#����(�	�#����	������� 1�
�
 �)���	
�1���
��#�)�1(��#���������#����(���)����� 	��������"�������(�1����#��	��
�
��#�)�1(�	
��#����#�(��4���	
�#��
���	��������)��#��	�������(	�����.�
#�����
#
��������)���#	����)���1#����.�#!�����
�
.������)������#����1���
�
.. ������
�	��	��		�������&
#���
�
.����#
������)�	
���������"1������4�)
��
��
U �	��
���������)�&
#�	 ����
.. ������
��	(	��.	��
#���������(��#
��)����
� 1����1���&����1 ��4��.��
����#	 �)�)����������)�����#(�
&����	���	�)����)����

������	���.��1�&
#��.������#�&
#���
��#���������������������4��	�#�1���
�����

Page 133



�����������	�
�	����
�����
�
��
������������
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
�� !
��������"��	����
#�������������������������������

� $����$���%��	�������
 �&����# ��%#
'������#
�
	����	��
��	 %%��������
�
 �������
�����
�	�&�#�$����'�
#��������&�������������(���������
�������#'�(������%
 �&���

�)�*(����#�%
#���
��� &��
������%�#	��'�����		 �����������#�	�����
%���������������
�#
�
	����
 �&�%�����
��#�	�#���
#����������������#����#���&������#�����
%�����
+����
��#�#,��
�����#�- �#�'���	�
%�.����
��/�0�1�
%�����������&�����#��������
�#
��	�
�	�
%�����2#�'��
#!���%3��
�����	�4�"�����&�4�"�����&�5����
�����	�
36�
���36�
����&�36�
�������	���
�����	���'
��	��
���#������	��	��!��
�
��	 #�����������&����
�'��������� &����	�#����% #��� #����	�	 ���$�,��
����&���&�
����"&�	����&��#�	����	���&��
 �&��
���������� ��������$����&��#	���%%����
��
������#��� ��#����#����#���&��
��	��������&��
�	�#��	�������	�
#���
����#
�'������

�/�*�����#���#&	��
��������7�������#
�
	����
 �&��������� ��������$����%%����
��
�����'����,�
%������#���������
�����	�
%�����&����
�'��������������$����
�
�	�&�#�&��	�%�#��	����,��#��'���#�������&�������	�#�	�����������#
�
	����
 �&�
��	
��
�%���������������$
����&����%��&��
�����	���&�5����
���,�36�
��������
#�- �#�	��&��#��	�'���	��
������#���#&��
��������#����#�	���	�
%������
����
�����$
 #�

&��

89:;<=>?@9A=9BC>D>EFF<GA>E>>

���*����H�,�'
� '�����	�I#�&��((���	��&���&��	�	���&�����������&	����&���#&��	��
�#
 �&�/�'��
�����	
 ���
%������������	�������#$,���������"���J�#!���.�#����
��&���"�)�J�#!���.�#�����#��I#�&��((���	��&�$ ��&���	���
����&��
������
#����
�����#�	�&��
%�J�#!���.�#������

���*����
 �����!�
���&����������
����
��
%�������	��&�$ ��&���	���������������
���������
��	 $'�		�
��&�&��
���&����%,�����	����%�������
%����	��$ ��&���	���&�(�
������
����&�����$�%
#��'��
�����	�'����#��(����������,��#��	��� �
#��,���	��&��
����	�����������#�	����&�	����%������������$��&�#���&��������	�������#���$,�����#�
��	�
#�����&��#������� #�������#�	���	�������	�%#
'�����#�	��������(�
$	�#��&�
��
',�	������	�������������''�&�����	 ##
 �&�����#��	�
%�� $����#���'�K��
��$�,�
������&������&��#��	���&����&	����&���#&��	�K���	�����	 ����
������
���
�
���	����#�������		��	���	�����	�%#
'�������
	���
�����#�����,��#��$�	��
���#������&��

���*7�,
�&����	��(�
$	�#��&����������	 ##
 �&�����#����	�'�&�� ��
%�$ ����%
#'���&�
� $����#���'�
%���#,���������%
#'���&�- ����,�����	����� &�	������������	�����(��
���	���#��� ��#���	�������	 ##
 �&����&����
�'������	�����#�&��
��������#�
 	�
�		��	��
 �&������$�����L��#�����&���&��� 	���	�'
&�#���&������
��#�$ ��
��
������&�#�	�������'�!�	��
���	�	�����������#�	����&�	����%�����������#���	�	
'��
��'���&�����#��	�$����,���
���J�#!���.�#����$������������������	�����H�,�
'
� '������&���
	����	��&�$ ��&���	�
��J�#!���.�#�����
������
#�����
����#��
���	������	��#��%����#�&�$,��#��	���
�����������'������&������
	���
���	�����
��&���� #��
%������#
�
	�&��
'' ������
��� $��'���	������������	 ����
% ����
����&���,	�����#�����
�	����$������������������	������&�&�	������&�
��#�������		��	��
 �&�$��'��������&��������	�
#�����&��#������� #�������#�	��
%�
���	���		��	��
 �&���	
�#�'���� ��%%����&��

���*2
#�����	�'��#��	
��������#
�
	����
 �&��
���%%��������	�������
%������
�"
&�	������&���#�������		��	��&����%��&�$,�����+
 ��������'��,�����2
#'�#�I�
#���
�
������&���"�����,'�#!����

Page 134



�����������	�
�	����
�����
�
��
������������
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
�� !
��������"��	����
#�����������������������������$�

���%&����#�'
#���
��� (��������(�	����������)	�����
'�����#�������		�		*�������
	 ��
#��
'������#
�
	��	�������#
�
	�(��
** ������
��� )��
 �(��#�	�#�������
	�������
'��������#)+�(�	������(���(��
�"(�	������(���#�������		��	���� 	����
�
���#*��
�	����'��������,
�	�- ����+�������#
�
	����
 �(����
#(����������
#�- �#�*���	�
'�.����
��//0�1�
'��������������#���������#
��	�
�	�
'��'2��
���+�
3�"�����(�4����
���+�25�
����
�����#����	��	��!��
���	 #��(����
�*����(
�	�
�
���������� ��������)����(��#	���''����
���
��	�������
�	�#��	���#������
�		��	���(�����#�	��������&���
 �(�' #���#��
*��+����������� �(��������.����
��
�/�
'�����6#�*��
#!����#�	�����
'��
�	�#�������(�����������������	�
#���
����#
�*��������

789:;<=>?@ABC=D=9EBF=?GGA?:>=

���%�����#
�
	�(��
** ������
��� )��
 �(�)��	���(������� ##����+�
�����#���
'�
����*�������
	���
��������#�����
'�����H����I����.�
������,���#���J��� 	��
'�
���	�	��������(���	�	�K����#
 �(���/*��������(����*���(�������
 �(�
)	�# ���
	
*������	�
'�	�������
�����������*�����������#���) 	+��������(�	�#���	� 	����
)
���������(�	�#�����#
		����
��H�#!���.�#������(��������#������
�����
	�
����������#��������#
�
	�(�� )��
 �(���	
�)��	���(��������#���
'�����
����*������������	���#�	 ���
'��L��#����	��������		
�����(������5
��/�
��+*�#!�����	���##
��#���(�*
#���
�	�#����(������	 ���	��(�)+�����������������

���%�
����#��&�
)	�#��(��������������*�����
 �(�#�*������(����
 ���������	�
�
����
��	
�����������#����������(�	�#���	��
 �(�	����(�- ����+���������#�
(�#����
����
���H�#!���.�#�������(����#���
 �(�)��	 ''�������#

*��
���	��+���(�
	�'��+���		������#
�
	�(�� )��2�����������������
'���(�	�#���	��
��#���������
�
 	�������#
�
	�(�� )��&��*����#�'
#��	���	'��(�����
 �(��
���#�	�������

)	�# ���
���
���(�	�#����'�
��
#�*
��*��������� (������
	�������*
)����+�
�*���#*�����	 ������������
 �(�)���
�����(��#�*����
'�	�'��+��

�$�%&��
��������
�	 �����
��#�	�
�	��'#
*�����MNOPQRSTU����(�
'�2������#����#��	�(�
�
���#�	�����������#
�
	����
 �(�)������
 ����#��*����
'�����������+	�
� ��
#��+�'
#����������*����
'�	 ����- ��*�������(���������#���
 �(�)����
�
�'����������������������#������	��#���
�	�
'�����,
 ������VWXYZ[[XSSZP\TUY
���(������	���������+��#��	��� �
#+� �(�#��!�#	�
������ �#���	��#�(��(
���(�
������+���(�&�������
����(������
������
��#�#+��&����+�����������#�	�����
'�
�������J����	���(�#(��
�(���
��
'�����]�� ����
�	��	�������
��(��#��	�*�����	��
�
)��(�	���+�(�����
 ��������#*�		�
��
'�����
���#�
'�����	����
#���+�
���#�
��#	
��������������#�	���������	�����&������)�����#
��(�(�������
���'
#*���
��
#���#(����������������#������	��#���
�	�
'�����,
 ������	
�&��*� ��)����
�
�
��� (��
�����	��
�����

�/�%&����#�'
#���
��� (��
���������#(�*�����		 �����������#�	�����
'�)
������������
��(�J�����#���
 �(�)���
���#*��
�� )����	�'��+��,
�	�- ����+�����#�	�����
'�
�������������#���
 �(�)���
��
�'����������4����
�����	���/
�����$
����(�25�
���
�������
�����#�	��!��
���	 #�������(����
�*��������� (����	�#����' #��� #���
(
�	��
������## ���*������(�	�#����'�
�	���(��������(�	�#���	��#���)����
�*
���
	�'��+����(����
 #���	�	���	'���
#+�����		��
���(�	�#�����#��	�'
#���
	�������
	����������(	��&�(
��
��'��(������#
��	�
�	�
'�4����
���+�25�
���#���������
����	�
�		 ����

�̂ �%6�����+�������#
�
	����
 �(��
���
�'��������������� �(����������#��#��������
'�
����6#�*��
#!������(����
�*���	���	 #�������	�'����(�	 ���)�������		�����)��
�������(�'
#����� 	�#	��

Page 135



�����������	�
�	����
�����
�
��
������������
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
�� !
��������"��	����
#�����������������������������$�

%&'(&)*+,-.',/)-01'022(&.'3,4,566)(2,5,

���7����8
 �����#��	������		 ��������������������
����9�	 :;����9�����	��
������9�
��	 <<���������<
#;���
���
��#
��#�=��		�		������#
�
	������#�����
���
�����9�#�
	�#����=�<
#��������9���9��#
��	�
��
<�9�<�:#�����
#	���#
 ��
 ������>
#
 ����?�
@ABCDECCFDGHIBJKCKDFIDJFLIHMANJIFDJFDHCOGCPNDILDN@CDQIRFPJSTODUJKCHDONHANCVWXD
: ��?��
�����������������������	��
#!���������#���#	���������8
;; ���=�
���#�:�����# 	�����#���	��#�9����#��=�������#
;
��	��#����#�����		��
�
9�<�:#�����
#	����� :����	����	���

���7Y #���#���##�	��������
<������:	�����
<�����		�		;���������	����	�#����=�<
#�
�#
��	�
�������:���<��	�
<���#�=� 	��
<���9�<�:#�����
#����#�	�����
<����#��	��������
������	�
<�	 #������������#�������!���#�������!�
����?���	
����
���?�9
��
��
���#�<
#��<��9���=������������#;�����#
��9��������99���
����9�<�:#�����
#�������	�
�
����
�Z��
������
��#�#=�����	���:���<���
<������#
�
	����8
�	�[ ����=�������	��<��
�����#
�
	�9�9�<�:#�����
#�9
�	��
���
�<��������������
:\������	�
<�]����
���=�
8Y�
��������	 ��
#�	������#
��	�
��
<�������9��;�#
��9��
;; ���=�<��������	�
������#
�#������
����
�	���

_̂̀ abcde_̀ f

ghhijbfgf

���7�����#
�
	����
 �9����������������:����<<����
������	�������
<����#:=�
9�	������9���9��
�"9�	������9���#�������		��	����9�	�#����	�<��=���9�
9�<�:#�����
#��#
��	�
����
����#�����	�9
�	��
��
 �������������#;��
����#����#�
��9������#������������	�:�����9����<��9��
�����	�#���	�������9�> #=��
���
8���#��8
�	�#����
���#����������������	����#�<
#��9�	;�		�9��

ghhijbfkf

���7�����#
�
	����
 �9�:���������:��������#;	�
<�� :����	�<��=�: �����	�9
�	��
��

 �������������#;< ���<<��������
 �9������
����	 ����;����=��������������	�
���#�<
#��9�	;�		�9��

�

lmnopqrsn

?tu�v8�wx�

�

Page 136



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�

�

������������� !��
"����������#�$��
��%&�'��(�%)%&��

*+�,�- !���.�/0 !�1����23�4,235�

�!�5!����6 7���� �!6�8�*+�69��:��7�6�7+� ;�:6�6���

������ !�8�6�<�=>��?@?�6�ABAC�

�
���������,�;<��33D2CA=BDEDACD>>C>FFC�
3�G�H�!6� D��4����I�6��:9 ���!@�J�!67�K�L!� !�:67��6K�.?7+�.MF�BNO�

PQ R�������������#�$����$��������
��ST�
U�����R
�����$�V
����(�W������	�X���YZZ)�[���
�#��$�$\��	����������U������
�	������������	����#����
���

PQ R�������������#�$��](�̂��_
����̀�$��	����������$�����
��
U�a��(�b���
�
������a
�
�	��
V
�������

PQ R������������
��c�U����S)&%S��
PQ R���$����
�#������
�
��$������������������
��
U���#����U�����
�����
##�������
����]�
�����$��	���$�U�]������
����$��$�������#����$�����(d��������������$���������������$�
$
��#������
���

�

�
�������.�,�;<��33D2CA=BD0DACD>>C>FFe�
3�G�H�!6� D��4����I�6��:9 ���!@�J�!67�K�L!� !�:67��6K�.?7+�.MF�BNO�

PQ R�������������#�$����$���c�	�����
��YS�
U�����R
�����$�V
����(�W������	�[V
���
��
U�
X$�������#���\�[f�	���$\�c�	�����
���%))S��	����������U������
�	������g�������
�������

PQ R�������������#�$��](�̂��_
����̀�$��	����������$�����
��
U�a��(�b���
�
������a
�
�	��
V
�������

PQ R������������
��c�U����S)&&&���
PQ R���$����
�#������
�
��$������������������
��
U���#����U�����
�����
##�������
����]�
�����$��	���$�U�]������
����$��$�������#����$�����(d��������������$���������������$�
$
��#������
���

�

�

������ !�

Y�QX������X���$�a�����$��#����$���

37���H�!�7+�4�66�7��

%�QR�����
�������������U
��������$���
�
�����
��������#��������X������X��
�������
������U�����
U��������	����#����
���
�����������#�����U�����
�����
##�������
��
��]��X������a��
�������������U�����
U��g�������
�������
�$�����(�
�$�������#����d�����	����$����
�������]��̂�������
���$���$�������������
��
�
����
������#�����d��
�����d�������(���������#�����������d�̂�������
#]���$�
]
���$�����
�����������	���$�����
����������

h�QR���W������U
��f���(
���'
����i����
�#����W����[WUf\������$
���$����b�����
%)%&�](������	�������b��������������
������d������$��	�a��(�b���
�
������
a
�
�	��V
�������WUf��
�������'W�WY���$�'W�W%����������
�������fjY�Y���$�fj%�
�����������(�
U�����a��(�k�����(�i����
�#����W����[YZZS\�[kiW\���U����$��
����
lmnopqrstuvwxoyntuxuqsousoznx{ntloq|o}{{n~vo}�o�mno�������������]#����$��U����
�����$
���
��
U�����WUf���$������U
�����������������������$����
��
������(��
�
�
##����
�����������	������
���(���

Page 137



�����������	�
�	����
�����
�
��
������������
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
�� !
��������"��	����
#�������������������������������

��$����%
 �������	�&#����'(��������
���
�)����
���(�*+�
���������#��	
�	�,
#�
#�, 	���,
#��������-����&�.��������!���������
����
 ����	���'���#����
�
�	�&�#���
����
����#�������
�����&�%
 ��#(����������/%
��#
��
,�
�&��#��	�'���	0�/*�����&0�1�� ����
�	����2�/����1�� ����
�	0���&�����
+���
��������������
���(�3#�'��
#!�/����3#�'��
#!0�'�!�	��������#������
�
��#
��
,��&��#��	�'���	�'�(�
��(�4���5�#��	�&������������#�	��
,��'����(���&�
� 4����	�,��(��%
�	�6 ����(��)����
���(�*+�
����	��
����	��,�4����&���	�������
'(�&���#'�����
��
,��������-��

789:;<==>?=;

��$�����'�����		 �	����#�	�����
,�����������#�������,,����
,������#
�
	���
���

@$�������#����#���&������#�����
,�����	�#���	����������- #(��
���%���#��
%
�	�#����
���#�����&�+
��������1
�!�����
�"&�	������&���#������
�		����

@$��&�	�#����	�,��(����&�������������#������	��#���
�	�
,�����%
 ������

@$������&�#�	�#����(�,
#��������&�,
#���&��#
��	�
��
,�&�,�4#�����
#	�
��#
 ��
 ������-
#
 ������

A�$����'�����		 �����#�	�����
,��������-��	������,,����
,������#
�
	�&�
�&��#��	�'����
����	 ����'����(���&�� 4����	�,��(��

B?8=C:=;

DEFGFHIJGKFLMKFNNJFGFLHJKOKPQIEKFNNJFRSKK

2�$�����������	�����	���#��������(���&����&�	�#����	�&��#����
����&�
����	�
#��
�������
,�)��
��T�#����4������������
#���#�����#�����
,�����U����V����T�
������
%���#����&�����1
�!��.��,���	�W 	��
 �	�&������- #(��
���%���#��%
�	�#����
��
�#���/����%�0X�����4
 �&�#(�# �����������������
,�����	
 �����	��	�&��
,�)��
��
T�#�����)��
��T�#�����	����#����#�	�&�4(��
''�#����� ���	�
�������#�	�&����&�.�

4	�#��&������	������#�, 	��4�����&���
�4
���#&	�/�������W ����
�����������
1
�!0�����	���#��
,�)��
��T�#�����	�,#���
,�	�#����, #��� #���#�	 �����������
	����
 	���&�����
'������&�	�#��������#
�'�������

Y�$.���	��#
�
	�&��
�#��
����������5�	�����#�, 	��4�����
	�#��
��������#�����
,�����
	�
����������#����&��
���	�������,#��	���&����' ���", ����
�����
'' ������
��
� 4���#
��&�������
 ���	�#������&�&�,�4#�����
#�
��
���	�&����&����Z%��
�&��#��	�'����	�#����
������
���#�	�&�������� 4��
 �&�'��	 #���#
 �&���A'�
������������&����'���&����&��
 �&�4��	���4��!��#
 �&����Y'�,#
'�����,#
���
4 ��&���������
,��
''�#������#�'�	�	�,#
����������1
�!��.���
 �&�4���
����&������
4#
�&�(�����#����
	���
��
,,���4 	(�	����
��
,�����1
�!����������
''
&���	�
	����,������(�'
#��	�#����, #��� #�������)��
��T�#��������� &�����������
,�&�������
�&��#��	�'���������	����&������,
#'���
�������������,����#��
	��	��������V�����
��	��#
�
	�&��
����
�����������
'���
������&�� ##����(� ��� ���#�&��#��������
�#
�
	�&�� 4��
 �&������#�����	
����&���&���	 ���(�&
'������,��� #���������
	�#���	������

��$3 #���#'
#���������&�����&��������
,������#
�
	�&��
'' ������
��� 4��
�
'4���&��������	�	��������#
		�������&�	�#�����#����'���	�����
 �&���#�����(�
4�
�!���������#�	���������	���&�����#��	�4����(�4�����������U����V����T�
������
%���#����&�����1
�!��
�����&��#�'����
,�������	 ����'����(�
,�����	�#���	�������

Page 138



�����������	�
�	����
�����
�
��
������������
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
�� !
��������"��	����
#�������������������������������

���$�	�%�	�#�&�%��&
���������������	����'���	�
 �	�%������(����������	�&#
�%�)�
�
����%��
�������	����
��#����������	�
#����
#��
'�����#���* #)�'
� 	�����#
 �%�
����+ ����
��
'�,�#!����������*
��
��-�#�����-����#�-�#������%�����.
�!����%�
���� %�	�/
��������.
�!�0����.*-�& ��%���1�
������	
 ��"��	��	�%��
'�2��
��
-�#����������	�����������#�	����%�	����'�������
'�����(���	�%�#���%�������#���'#
3�
��	�%����
�3�����	���3�%������3�#!����
�����%���	��#
 ����	�
'�4���
#������%�
5%��#%������������%��
33�#�����& ��%���	���##����%��#
 �%����%����!�%�&)��
� &����	����	��

���$����(���	�&�	�����#������%�������	��
����
������������%�'#
3�����+ ����
��
'�
2��
��-�#������%�����.
�!���

!������	���
��#%�6 ���#�5�%��7�����	�& 	)�
��%�	�#�����
����
������#���	����#
��'�#���
��
'�	�#����' #��� #������� %����
������
���!�
	!	��&�!��	���%	��#�' 	��&��	��������'
#3���
����������%����
�8�	�����%��������%��#��	�3����������0
''	���	������)�'#
3�����+ ����
�1������
�#
�
	�%��
33 ������
��� &��
 �%�&����	�&���'#
3����	��
����
��& ���
 �%�&��
�����%���������
���8��
'������8�	�����	�#����' #��� #����%��
 �%��
���������
3�#!�%��
���3�
#�	�����''�������	����������&	�����
'���' �����#������
�		�		3�����7�'��%�����
 �%��
��	 &	��������)��''��������	�������
'�����(���
���#�&)��#�	�#�������	����#����#���%������#������

���$����.*-�& ��%�����������#�� #�	������
#��#�
'�2��
��-�#������%�����.
�!���	���
��#�����#
3��������#��"	�
#�)�& ��%����& �������)���
��	��%	�
����	���#���%�#�%�
&#��!���������	���&��!�&� ��	�����3��	�#%��7����	�&�����%����'��%�&)�����(
 �����
�	����
�"%�	������%���#�������		�����%�'
#3	�������	��#��&
 �%�#)�
'�����(���
����.*-�& ��%�����	��
����#��8��#�����%���������
���8��
'��%+
������3
#��
�
���3�
#�#)�& ��%���	���
��&�)��������#�����'��� #��
'�����,����6����-�
������
(���#����%�������3��
#�
��& ��%����
��
	�������%��8�	�����	�#����' #��� #��
��
����.
�!��7�%
��
�����#�'
#��'��%�����������#
�
	�%��
33 ������
��� &��
 �%�
�''��������	�������
'����	��
�"%�	������%���#�������		�����
�	 �����%��#����
�
#�	 ��������#3���

���$��	�����3)��
��� 	�
�	�
����	��''����
������(����%��
�"%�	������%���#������
�		����7��
�������		��
��� %��
������'�#	��3�����		 ������������#
�
	����
 �%�
�� 	��	����'��������#3��
��������#����#���%������#�����
'�����	�#���	�������%�
��	 ����3����)��7��#�	�����
'���������������
 �%����#�'
#��&���
��#�#)��
��'5�
�
���)�9�"�����%�2����
�����	�5/�
���5/�
����%�5/�
�������	���
�����	��
�3
��	��
���#������	��	��!��
���	 #�����������%����
�3��������� %����	�#����
' #��� #����	�	 ���&�)��
����%���%�����"%�	����%��#�	����	���%��
 �%��
�������
��� ��������&����%��#	���''����
��������#��� ��#����#����#���%��
��	�������

���$�����#���#%	��
��������*�������#
�
	����
 �%��������� ��������&����''����
��
�����3����)�
'������#���������
�����	�
'�����%����
�3��������������&����
�
�	�%�#�%��	�'�#��	����)��#��3���#�������%�������	�#�	�����������#
�
	����
 �%�
��	
��
�'���������������&
����%����'��%��
�����	���%�2����
���)�5/�
��������
#�: �#�	��%��#��	�3���	��
������#���#%��
��������#����#�	���	�
'������
����
�����&
 #�

%��

;<=>?@ABCDEFGAHA=IFJACKKEC>BA

���$����	�������#
�
	�%��
33 ������
��� &��
 �%�&��	���%�&#
�%�)�����#���)��������
��& 	)���%�	�#����	�%��#������	���3���%���%���0
��)��#
 �%����31�3���	������
�3����	������
 �%�&��#������%������#�	�%������	��
 �%����&�����%�	�#���	��
�
��		��#
 �%������ &�����
 ��	����'������)�%���������'#
3�����#�#
 �������#�&)�
3������������8�	�����%�	�#������	��5�����������������
'���%�	�#���	��
��#��������
�
� 	�������#
�
	�%�� &��7��3�	���	'��%����������
 �%��
���#�	��������#��� ��#�

Page 139



�����������	�
�	����
�����
�
��
������������
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
�� !
��������"��	����
#�������������������������������


$	�# ���
���
���%�	�#����&�
��
#�'
��'��������� %������
	�������'
$����(�
�'���#'�����	 ������������
 �%�$���
�����%��#�'����
&�	�&��(��

�)�*+��
��������
�	 �����
��#�	�
�	��&#
'�����,-./01234����%�
&�5������#����#��	�%�
�
���#�	�����������#
�
	����
 �%�$������
 ����#��'����
&�����������(	�
� ��
#��(�&
#����������'����
&�	 ����6 ��'�������%���������#���
 �%�$����
�
�&����������������������#������	��#���
�	�
&�����7
 ������89:;<==:22</>34;
���%������	���������(��#��	��� �
#(� �%�#��!�#	�
������ �#���	��#�%��%
���%�
������(���%�+�������
����%������
������
��#�#(��+����(�����������#�	�����
&�
�������?����	���%�#%��
�%���
��
&�����@�� ����
�	��	�������
��%��#��	�'�����	��
�
$��%�	���(�%�����
 ��������#'�		�
��
&�����
���#�
&�����	����
#���(�
���#�
��#	
��������������#�	���������	�����+������$�����#
��%�%�������
���&
#'���
��
#���#%����������������#������	��#���
�	�
&�����7
 ������	
�+��'� ��$����
�
�
��� %��
�����	��
�����

�A�*+����#�&
#���
��� %��
������	��
�%�'�����		 �����������#�	�����
&�$
������������
��%�?�����#���
 �%�$���
���#'��
�� $����	�&��(��7
�	�6 ����(�����#�	�����
&�
�������������#���
 �%�$���
��
�&����������B����
�����	���)
������
����%�5C�
���
�������
�����#�	��!��
���	 #�������%����
�'��������� %����	�#����& #��� #���
%
�	��
������## ���'������%�	�#����&�
�	���%��������%�	�#���	��#���$����
�'
���
	�&��(����%����
 #���	�	���	&���
#(�����		��
���%�	�#�����#��	�&
#���
	�������
	����������%	��+�%
��
��&��%������#
��	�
�	�
&�B����
���(�5C�
���#���������
����	�
�		 ����

�D�*E�����(�������#
�
	����
 �%��
���
�&��������������� �%����������#��#��������
&�
����E#�'��
#!������%����
�'���	���	 #�������	�&����%�	 ���$�������		�����$��
�������%�&
#����� 	�#	��

FGHIGJKLMNOHMPJNQRHQSSIGOHTMUMVWWJISMVM

���*����7
 �����#��	������		 ��������������������
����%�	 $'����%�����	��
������%�
��	 &&���������&
#'���
���
��#
��#�(��		�		������#
�
	������#�����
���
�����%�#�
	�#����(�&
#��������%���%��#
��	�
��
&�%�&�$#�����
#	���#
 ��
 ������?
#
 ����+�
9<X:;Y::/;=Z-X1[:[;/-;1/\-Z]<>1-/;1/;Z:4=:0>;-\;>9:;,-./01234;̂1[:Z;4>Z<>:_̀a;
$ ��+��
�����������������������	��
#!���������#���#	���������7
'' ���(�
���#�$�����# 	�����#���	��#�%����#��(�������#
'
��	��#����#�����		��
�
%�&�$#�����
#	����� $����	����	���

���*E #���#���##�	��������
&������$	�����
&�����		�		'���������	����	�#����(�&
#�
�#
��	�
�������$���&��	�
&���#�(� 	��
&���%�&�$#�����
#����#�	�����
&����#��	��������
������	�
&�	 #������������#�������!���#�������!�
����+���	
����
���+�%
��
��
���#�&
#��&��%���(������������#'�����#
��%��������%%���
����%�&�$#�����
#�������	�
�
����
�b��
������
��#�#(�����	���$���&���
&������#
�
	����7
�	�6 ����(�������	��&��
�����#
�
	�%�%�&�$#�����
#�%
�	��
���
�&��������������
$c������	�
&�B����
���(�
7E�
��������	 ��
#�	������#
��	�
��
&�������%��'�#
��%��
'' ���(�&��������	�
������#
�#������
����
�	���

defghijkeeghli

���*+��������%�#���#%��
������ $����$���&��	�
&������#
�
	�%��
'' ������
��� $��
����������%%���
���
���%�&�$#�����
#������ %�	�&#�����
�������	��
����%����	���%�
���#����	���
'' ���(�'�		��������%�#���%��
������
���
��'�#����(�	�#����	��
����� $��
 �%���	
�$���
��#�%�$(��#���������#����(���%����� 	��������"�������(�
$����#��	���
��#�%�$(�	
��#����#�(���

Page 140



�����������	�
�	����
�����
�
��
������������
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
�� !
��������"��	����
#�������������������������������

���$%���	
��
���������&��#��	�������'	�����(�
#�����#
��������&���#	����&���)#����
(�#!�����
�
(������&������#����)����
(( ������
�	��	��		�������*
#���
�
(���
�#
������&�	
���������")������%�&
��
��+ �	��
���������&�*
#�	 ���
�
(( ������
��	'	��(	��) ��%��(��
����#	 �&�&����������&�����#'�
*����	���	�
&����&����
������	���(��)�*
#��(���,
�	�+ ����'������� )����)���*��	�
�&����*��&�
��'�������(
&�#����'����*��
 #�
*������#
�
	��	���&�&
��
��

 �������������#(������%�������&����*��&��

-./01234./5

677891565

���$�����#
�
	����
 �&����������������)����**����
����&�	�#����	�*��'���&�
&�*�)#�����
#��#
��	�
���) �����	�&
�	��
��
 �������������#(��
����#����#���&�
�����#������������	�)�����&����*��&��
�����	�#���	������������������	����#�*
#��
&�	(�		�&��

6778915:5

���$�����#
�
	����
 �&�)���������)��������#(	�
*�� )����	�*��'�) �����	�&
�	��
��

 �������������#(* ���**��������
 �&������
����	 ����(����'��������������	�
���#�*
#��&�	(�		�&��

�

;<=>?@AB=

%CD�E,�FG�

�

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

Meeting:  Planning Control Committee 

Meeting date:  27 August 2024 

Title of report:  VALIDATION CHECKLISTS 

Report by:  
 

DAVID MARNO – Head of Development Management 

Decision Type: Key Decision 

 

Ward(s) to which 
report relates 

ALL 

 

Executive Summary:   

The Council  is required to maintain a planning application validation checklist and 

there is a need to update Bury’s further following the adoption of the Places for 

Everyone Joint Development Plan (PfE). 

Recommendation(s)  

1. That: The Committee Approve the checklist attached to this report at Appendix 

1. 

Key considerations  

1.0 Background 
 

1.1  There are national requirements setting out what information is required to 
make a valid application for planning permission but a local planning authority 

may also publish a local validation checklist specifying its own local 
requirements for the supporting information required to make a valid 

application for planning permission.  Local information requirements have no 
bearing on whether a planning application is valid unless they are set out on 
such a list.  

 
1.2  Information included on local validation checklists must be:-    

Classification 
 
Open  

Item No. 7 

Page 143

Agenda Item 7



 

• reasonable having regard, in particular, to the nature and scale of the 
proposed development; and  
• about a matter which it is reasonable to think will be a material 

consideration in the determination of the application. 
 

1.3 The Council’s Planning Application local validation checklist criteria was 
updated on 19th March 2024, in line with the statutory requirement for it to be 
updated on a two yearly basis.  

 
1.4 Since the adoption of PfE with effect from 21st  March 2024, there are a 

number of additional policies within that document that require planning 
applications to contain additional information in order to determine whether or 
not the proposals are compliant with the respective policies. 

 
1.5 Officers have been seeking this information from applicants in line with the 

policies since adoption of PfE. However, seeking the additional information has 
had to take place post submission. 
 

1.6 This report sets out an update to the local validation checklist so that the 
Council is able to request this information as part of the validation of a 

planning application.  . 
 

2.0 The Proposal 
2.1 In total, there are 7 new ‘frequently used’ policies that require additional 

information on planning applications. These are set out in Appendix 1, 

together with the thresholds and development types that apply to each policy. 
 

2.2 The topic matters include  

• Carbon and Energy Statement  

• Heat and Energy Statement   

• Nationally Designed Space Standards Table   

• Density Statement  

• Health Impact Assessment  

• Digital Connectivity Statement   
• Transport Assessment   
  

2.3  The introduction of a validation checklist ensures consistency in submissions, 
that it is open and transparent and clarity on expectations. Additionally, it also 

expedites the planning application process itself by having the information 
upfront. This also reflects a Greater Manchester wide approach to 
standardisation of information for planning application submissions. 

 

3.0 Other alternative options considered 

3.1 Given that the Council already is complying with the regulations by having an 

up to date checklist criteria for the submission of planning applications, it 

follows that where new adopted policies are introduced, the validation 

checklists are equally updated. Failure to not have an upto date checklist 

would mean that application processing would be slower as information would 

have to be sought through the determination process. It is not impossible to 

Page 144



 

do this, but NPPG guidance encourages that Council’s maintain and keep 

checklists upto date.  

3.2 The information sought will form part of the consideration of the planning 

application and also is likely to feature within the decision-making process 

through the imposition of planning conditions. 

4.0 Conclusion 
4.1 The Council, like all others, has an upto date planning application validation 

checklist and there is a need to update Bury’s further through the adoption of 
the PfE Development Plan. 

 

4.2 It is therefore requested that the Committee accept and approve the additions 
to the pre-existing Validation Checklist Criteria.  

 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Community impact/links with Community Strategy 

The adoption of the checklist enables development to meet higher standards of 

policy compliance in the consideration of development proposals. 

____________________________________________________________ 

Equality Impact and considerations: 

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the ‘general duty’ on public authorities is set 

out as follows:  

A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need 

to -  

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 

is prohibited by or under this Act;  

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it.  

The public sector equality duty (specific duty) requires us to consider how we can positively 

contribute to the advancement of equality and good relations, and demonstrate that we 

are paying ‘due regard’ in our decision making in the design of policies and in the delivery 

of services.  

Equality Analysis Please provide a written explanation of the outcome(s) of either 

conducting an initial or full EA. 

Validation criteria that is adopted and published ensures that there is an equal playing 

field in terms of information required to make a planning application valid. It ensures that 

Page 145



 

all relative policies for development proposals are making full attempt to make 
development compliant across the various themes of the planning system. 

No policies adopted preclude any protected characteristics and the adoption of policies 
and the respective requirement for applications to be submitted with information relating 

to them ensure inclusion is at the heart of the process. 

 

 

___________________________________________________________ 

Assessment of Risk:  

The following risks apply to the decision:  

  

Risk / opportunity  Mitigation  

As discussed in the report .  

  

____________________________________________________________ 

Consultation: 

As the PfE policies themselves have been through independent public examination and 

significant consultation, no further consultation on the addition of these matters to the 

validation checklists is considered necessary.  

____________________________________________________________ 

Legal Implications: 

Where the Council requires that local information is submitted with a planning application, 

its requirements must be specified on a formally adopted ‘local list’ which is published on 

its website.  Any information requested must be reasonable and proportionate and about 

a matter which it is reasonable to think will be a material consideration in the 

determination of the planning application. These are statutory tests as set out in section 

62 (4A) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (inserted by the Growth and 

Infrastructure Act) and article 11(3)(c) of the Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) (Order) 2015.  

____________________________________________________________ 

Financial Implications: 

To be completed by the Council’s Section 151 Officer 

 

Page 146



 

____________________________________________________________   

Report Author and Contact Details: 

David Marno 
Head of Development Management 

Department for Business, Growth and Infrastructure 
3 Knowsley Place 
Duke Street 

Bury 
BL9 0EJ 

Tel: 0161 253 5291 
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

 

Background papers: 

NPPF 

NPPG 
Places for Everyone DPD  
SI. 2015 - No. 595 - Town & Country Planning (Development Management 

Procedure)(England) Order 2015 

 
 
 
Please include a glossary of terms, abbreviations and acronyms used in this 
report.  

  

Term  Meaning  

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 

NPPG National Planning Policy Guidance 

PFE Places for Everyone 

DPD Development Plan Document 

 

  

Page 147



 

APPENDIX 1 
 
PLACES FOR EVERYONE LOCAL REQUIREMENTS 

Following the adoption of the Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan in 

March 2024 the additional local provisions apply: 

1. Carbon and Energy Statement -  To explain how the proposal relates in policy 

terms to Policy JP-S2: Carbon and Energy and as they emerge, the Local Plan and 

Supplementary Planning Documents.  

Threshold: 

 All “major” developments 

 All new buildings – minor developments excluding householder development. 

 Change of use applications 

 And other developments if specified in pre-application advice.  

 

2. Heat and Energy Statement  -  To explain how the proposal relates in policy 

terms to Policy JP-S3: Heat and Energy Networks within the identified Heat and 

Energy network Opportunity Areas and as they emerge, the Local Plan and 

Supplementary Planning Documents.  

Threshold: 

 Residential developments of 10 dwellings or more in Heat and Energy Network 

Opportunity Areas 

 New industrial development in Heat and Energy Network Opportunity Areas. 

 

3. Nationally Designed Space Standards Table  -  To explain how the proposal 

relates in policy terms to Policy JP-H3: Type, Size and Design of New Housing and to 

show compliance with nationally described space standards.  

Threshold: 

 All new residential dwellings.  

 

4. Density Statement - To explain how the proposal relates in policy terms to Policy 

JP-H4: Density of New Houses which requires a density appropriate to the location, 

and as they emerge the Local Plan and Supplementary Planning Documents. 

Threshold: 

 All new residential dwellings.  

 

 

5. Health Impact Assessment - To explain how the proposal relates in policy 

terms to Policy JP-P6: Health, and as they emerge the Local Plan and Supplementary 

Planning Documents. 

Page 148



 

Threshold: 

 All developments required to be screened for an EIA. 

 New developments that provide new or improved health facilities. 

 Proposals which, due to their location, nature or proximity to sensitive 

locations, are likely to have a notable impact on health and wellbeing. 

 And other developments if specified in pre-application advice.  

 

6. Digital Connectivity Statement  - To explain how the proposal relates in policy 

terms to Policy JP-C2: Digital Connectivity, and as they emerge the Local Plan and 

Supplementary Planning Documents. 

Thresh hold: 

 All new buildings minor and major developments 

 All change of use – minor and major developments.  

 

7. Transport Assessment – In addition to the requirements listed within the 

existing local requirements, all applications that require a Transport Assessment will 

need to consider the impact of the proposal on Holcroft Moss in relation to Policy JP-

C8: Transport Requirements for New Developments and as they emerge the Local 

Plan and Supplementary Planning Documents. 

Thresh hold: 

 All development subject to a Transport Impact Assessment (TIA) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 23rd July 2024
	Minutes

	4 Planning Applications
	Item 1 Final
	Item 2 Final
	Sheets
	0201 - Block Plans - Existing and Proposed


	Item 3 Final
	80acba7d-9ed2-4006-a495-6749abf7b982.pdf
	9d97a1ee-a3d0-466e-ab46-b87447e61028.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	835-01


	c4506231-33c2-4544-a5d6-485a1378d3d0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	835 revised temp-835-02


	84bd6c94-bd86-4603-a753-9d7050617773.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	835 revised temp-835-03




	Item 4 Final
	4e863cbc-50a7-43ab-99cf-faeb86f19d6d.pdf
	dbcc59ee-c4a0-4800-ae82-121b20bbbfef.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	836-02





	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals
	7 Validation Checklists

